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1040 Spring Street
Silver Spring, MD 20910

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

        The 2013 annual meeting of shareholders of United Therapeutics Corporation will be held at 1110 Spring Street, Silver Spring, Maryland
20910, on Wednesday, June 26, 2013, at 9:00 a.m. local time for the following purposes:

1.
To elect the three Class II directors named in the proxy statement and nominated by our Board of Directors to serve
three-year terms until the 2016 annual meeting of shareholders and until their successors are duly elected and qualified or
until their office is otherwise vacated;

2.
To vote on an advisory resolution to approve executive compensation;

3.
To ratify the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for 2013; and

4.
To consider and act upon such other business as may properly come before the annual meeting of shareholders and any
adjournment or postponement thereof.

        Only shareholders as of April 29, 2013 are entitled to notice of, and to vote at, our 2013 annual meeting of shareholders.

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for United Therapeutics Corporation's 2013 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to Be Held on Wednesday, June 26, 2013:

United Therapeutics Corporation's Proxy Statement, Annual Report, Form 10-K and
other proxy materials are available at: http://ir.unither.com/annualProxy.cfm.

WHETHER OR NOT YOU EXPECT TO ATTEND THE MEETING, YOU ARE REQUESTED TO VOTE YOUR SHARES AS
PROMPTLY AS POSSIBLE SO THAT YOUR SHARES ARE REPRESENTED AT THE MEETING. ALL SHAREHOLDERS ARE
EXTENDED A CORDIAL INVITATION TO ATTEND THIS MEETING.

By Order of the Board of
Directors,

Paul A. Mahon
Corporate Secretary

April 30, 2013
Silver Spring, Maryland

Edgar Filing: UNITED THERAPEUTICS Corp - Form DEF 14A

3



Edgar Filing: UNITED THERAPEUTICS Corp - Form DEF 14A

4



Table of Contents

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE
INFORMATION ABOUT THE MEETING, VOTING AND PROXIES 1
General 1
Record Date and Outstanding Shares 1
Solicitation 1
Voting Rights and Quorum 1
Proxy 2
Voting Requirements 2
PROPOSAL NO. 1: Election of Directors 3
Nominees as Class II Directors for Election at our 2013 Annual Meeting of Shareholders 4
Class III Directors Continuing in Office with Terms Ending in 2014 6
Class I Directors Continuing in Office with Terms Ending in 2015 9
BOARD OF DIRECTORS, COMMITTEES, CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 11
The Role of our Board: Risk Oversight 11
Board of Directors Leadership 11
Director Nominations and Diversity 12
Director Independence 13
Committees of our Board of Directors 14
Corporate Governance Guidelines and Committee Charters 17
Stock Ownership Guidelines 17
Meetings of our Board of Directors and Board Attendance at Annual Meetings of Shareholders 18
Shareholder Communication with Directors 18
DIRECTOR COMPENSATION 19
Table: 2012 Director Compensation 20
PROPOSAL NO. 2: Advisory Resolution to Approve Executive Compensation 21
COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 22
Executive Summary 22
Executive Compensation Framework 28
Review of 2012 Executive Compensation 31
Table: Summary 2012 Target Total Direct Compensation 31
Other Executive Compensation Policies and Practices 40
COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT 44
EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 45
Table: Summary Compensation Table 45
Table: Grants of Plan-Based Awards in 2012 46
Narratives to Summary Compensation Table and Grants of Plan-Based Awards in 2012 Table 46
Named Executive Officer Employment Agreements 46
Summary of Terms of Plan-Based Awards 48
Table: Outstanding Equity Awards at 2012 Fiscal Year-End 49
Table: Option Exercises and Stock Vested in 2012 50
Table: Pension Benefits in 2012 51
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan 51
Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control 53
Table: Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control 54
Severance and Change in Control Payments to Named Executive Officers 55
Changes to Milestones for 2013 56
PROPOSAL NO. 3: Ratification of the Appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as United Therapeutics Corporation's
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm for 2013 57

i

Edgar Filing: UNITED THERAPEUTICS Corp - Form DEF 14A

5



Table of Contents

PAGE
REPORT OF OUR AUDIT COMMITTEE AND INFORMATION ON OUR INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 58
Report of our Audit Committee 58
Principal Accountant Fees and Services 60
Policy on Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Audit Services and Permissible Non-Audit Services of our Independent Auditors 60
OTHER MATTERS 61
Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions 61
Beneficial Ownership of Common Stock 62
Stock Split 65
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance 65
Shareholder Proposals and Director Nominations 65
Other Business 66
Shareholders Sharing the Same Address 66
Annual Report 66
Transportation Information 66
Annex A�Non-GAAP Financial Information
Proxy Card

ii

Edgar Filing: UNITED THERAPEUTICS Corp - Form DEF 14A

6



Table of Contents

UNITED THERAPEUTICS CORPORATION
1040 Spring Street

Silver Spring, MD 20910

PROXY STATEMENT FOR THE 2013 ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

 INFORMATION ABOUT THE MEETING, VOTING AND PROXIES

 General

        This Proxy Statement and enclosed proxy card are being furnished on or about May 8, 2013, to shareholders of United Therapeutics
Corporation in connection with the solicitation by our Board of Directors of proxies to be voted at our 2013 annual meeting of shareholders
(Annual Meeting) and any adjournment or postponement thereof. Our Annual Meeting will be held on Wednesday, June 26, 2013, beginning at
9:00 a.m. local time at 1110 Spring Street, Silver Spring, Maryland 20910.

 Record Date and Outstanding Shares

        On April 29, 2013 (the Record Date), there were 49,670,074 shares of our common stock outstanding and entitled to vote at our Annual
Meeting. Only shareholders of record on the Record Date will be entitled to vote, either in person or by proxy, at our Annual Meeting, and each
share will have one vote for each director nominee and one vote for each other matter to be voted on. If you are a beneficial owner of shares of
our common stock (that is, you hold shares through a broker, bank, trust or other nominee), you must obtain a legal proxy from the broker, bank,
trust or other nominee that holds your shares if you wish to vote in person at the meeting.

 Solicitation

        We will bear the cost of soliciting proxies. Our officers and employees may solicit proxies in person or by telephone, fax, email or regular
mail, and they will receive no additional compensation for such work. Copies of solicitation materials may be furnished to brokers, custodians,
nominees and other fiduciaries for forwarding to beneficial owners of shares of our common stock, and normal handling charges may be paid for
such forwarding service.

 Voting Rights and Quorum

        Shares can be voted at our Annual Meeting only by shareholders who are present in person or represented by proxy. Whether or not you
plan to attend our Annual Meeting in person, you are encouraged vote your shares. The representation in person or by proxy of at least a
majority of the outstanding shares entitled to vote is necessary to achieve a quorum for the transaction of business at the Annual Meeting.

        If you are a shareholder of record (that is, you hold shares in your own name), you may revoke any proxy given pursuant to this solicitation
at any time before it is exercised by delivering to the Corporate Secretary of United Therapeutics Corporation at 1040 Spring Street, Silver
Spring, Maryland 20910, a written notice of revocation or a fully executed proxy bearing a later date, or by attending the Annual Meeting and
voting in person. If you are a beneficial owner (that is, you hold shares through a broker, bank, trust or other nominee), please contact your bank
or broker to revoke a previously given proxy or change your voting instructions.

        If you are a beneficial owner, your broker, bank, trust or other nominee has the discretion to vote on routine corporate matters (including
the ratification of the appointment of the independent registered public accounting firm) presented in the proxy materials without your specific
voting instructions. Your broker, bank, trust or other nominee does not have the discretion to vote on
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non-routine matters (including the election of directors and the advisory resolution to approve executive compensation). For non-routine matters,
your shares will not be voted without your specific voting instructions.

        Abstentions, "broker non-votes" (i.e., shares held by brokers, banks, trusts or other nominees that are represented at the meeting but with
respect to which they have no discretionary power to vote on a particular matter and have received no instructions from the beneficial owners
thereof) and proxies that are marked "withhold authority" with respect to the election of any one or more nominees for election as directors will
be counted as present in determining whether the quorum requirement is satisfied.

 Proxy

        If the enclosed proxy card is properly executed and returned prior to the Annual Meeting, the shares represented by the proxy card will be
voted in accordance with the shareholder's directions. If the proxy card is signed and returned without any direction given, shares of our
common stock represented by the proxy will be voted in accordance with the Board's recommendations as follows: (i) FOR the election of each
of the three director nominees named on the proxy card, (ii) FOR the advisory resolution to approve executive compensation, and (iii) FOR
ratification of the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for 2013.

 Voting Requirements

Election of Directors

        Directors are elected by a plurality of the affirmative votes cast at our Annual Meeting. A "plurality" voting standard means that the three
nominees who receive the largest number of affirmative votes cast will be elected as directors. Broker non-votes and shares as to which a
shareholder withholds voting authority are not considered votes cast and therefore have no impact on the election of directors. Cumulative
voting is not permitted in the election of directors. Proxies may not be voted for more than three nominees.

All Other Proposals to Be Voted On

        The affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of common stock present, in person or by proxy, at our Annual
Meeting, and entitled to vote on the matter, is required for approval of each of the other proposals to be voted on at the meeting. Abstentions
have the same effect as an "against" vote. Broker non-votes, if any, have no impact on the vote.

2
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 PROPOSAL NO. 1
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

        Our Board of Directors (Board) consists of ten members and is divided into three classes of three or four members each. At each annual
meeting of shareholders, members of one of the classes, on a rotating basis, are elected to a three-year term. This year at our Annual Meeting,
Christopher Causey, Richard Giltner and R. Paul Gray are nominees for election as Class II directors to serve three-year terms until our 2016
annual meeting of shareholders or until their successors are duly elected and qualified or their office is otherwise vacated. Each of our director
nominees has consented to be named herein and to continue to serve on our Board of Directors, if elected. It is not anticipated that any nominee
will become unable or unwilling to accept his or her nomination or election. If such an event should occur, the persons named on the proxy card
intend to vote for the election of, in such nominee's stead, such other person as is recommended to our Board of Directors by our Board of
Directors' Nominating and Governance Committee. In the alternative, the persons named on the proxy card may simply vote for the remaining
nominees, leaving a vacancy that may be filled at a later date by our Board of Directors, or our Board of Directors may reduce the size of the
Board.

        We believe that our directors should possess the highest personal and professional ethics, integrity and values, and be committed to
representing the best interests of our shareholders. We also endeavor to have a Board of Directors that, as a whole, represents a range of
experiences in business, government, education and technology and in other areas that are relevant to our business activities. In addition, our
Board believes there are certain attributes every director should possess, which are described in the Director Nominations and Diversity section
below.

        In evaluating incumbent directors for re-nomination to our Board, the members of our Nominating and Governance Committee consider a
variety of factors. These include each director's independence, financial literacy, personal and professional accomplishments, tenure on our
Board and experience in light of our business goals. The following presents information concerning persons nominated for election as directors
at our Annual Meeting and for those of our directors whose terms of office will continue after our Annual Meeting, including their age (as of the
date of this proxy statement), membership on committees of our Board, principal occupations or affiliations during the last five years or more,
director qualifications, and certain other directorships held. For additional information concerning the director nominees, including stock
ownership and compensation, see the section entitled Director Compensation and the Beneficial Ownership of Common Stock table below.

3
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 Nominees as Class II Directors for Election at our 2013 Annual Meeting of Shareholders

Christopher Causey, M.B.A.
Age 50

Chairman, Compensation Committee
Member, Nominating and Governance Committee
Mr. Causey has served as the Principal of the Causey Consortium, a professional services
organization providing business strategy and marketing counsel to the healthcare industry, since
2002. Previously, Mr. Causey served as a senior marketing officer for a variety of healthcare and
technology companies. From 2001 to 2002, Mr. Causey served as the Chief Marketing Officer for
Definity Health Incorporated. Since 2008, he has also been a member of the Board of Directors of
Data Sciences International, Inc., a private company that develops wireless physiological
monitoring solutions. Mr. Causey has served as a United Therapeutics director since 2003.

 Drawing upon over 20 years of experience in strategic planning and marketing for health care
delivery, financing and biotechnology organizations, including as Principal of Causey Consortium,
a professional services organization that provides strategy and marketing counsel to the
healthcare industry, Mr. Causey brings to our Board substantial experience in the health care and
biotech industries. Now that we have three marketed products, our Board benefits from
Mr. Causey's extensive leadership experience as a senior health care marketing executive at
companies such as Definity Health Incorporated.

Richard Giltner
Age 49

Member, Audit Committee
Member, Nominating and Governance Committee
From 2009 until his retirement in 2010, Mr. Giltner was a portfolio manager at Lyxor Asset
Management, an asset management group at the French bank Société Générale. From 2006 until
2009, he served as a managing director of Société Générale Asset Management, an international
fund management firm, and head of the European office for its fund of hedge funds group. From
2003 to 2006, Mr. Giltner was the global head of foreign exchange options for the investment
banking arm of Société Générale. He also held various other managerial positions within Société
Générale from 1991 until 2003. Mr. Giltner has been a private investor since his retirement from
Société Générale in 2010. Our Board of Directors has determined that Mr. Giltner meets the
financial sophistication requirements of NASDAQ's listing standards. Mr. Giltner has served as a
United Therapeutics director since 2009.

Mr. Giltner brings to our Board over twenty years of experience in the financial sector, including
international financial markets, financial derivatives, alternative investments and asset
management. As our business continues to grow and expand, our Board benefits from Mr. Giltner's
global business and financial experience and his perspective as an institutional investor as well as
his leadership experience in international finance from his service in various management roles at
Société Générale.

4
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R. Paul Gray
Age 49

Chairman, Audit Committee
Member, Compensation Committee
Mr. Gray is currently the Managing Member of Potomac Management Group, LLC and Core
Concepts, LLC, both of which are strategic and financial consulting firms he founded in 2011 and
2002, respectively. From 1985 to 1999, Mr. Gray practiced as a Certified Public Accountant at
Ernst & Young LLP, KPMG LLP and Beers & Cutler LLP. Mr. Gray has served as an officer for
his clients and companies within Potomac Management Group and Core Concepts' portfolios from
time to time. Our Board of Directors has determined that Mr. Gray is an audit committee financial
expert as defined under the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and
meets the financial sophistication requirements of NASDAQ's listing standards. Mr. Gray currently
serves on the boards of several private companies, including Red Branch Technologies, Inc. (since
2006), Critical Solutions, Inc. (since 2009) and Biomimix, Inc. (since 2006). Mr. Gray has served
as a United Therapeutics director since 2003.

Mr. Gray brings to our Board over twenty years of experience as an accountant (Ernst &
Young LLP, KPMG LLP and Beers & Cutler LLP) and entrepreneur (Potomac Management
Group,  LLC and Core Concepts, LLC). Mr. Gray's roles as a director of various public and
private companies (including Red Branch Technologies, Inc., Critical Solutions, Inc.,
Biomimix, Inc., TenthGate, Inc. and Earth Search Sciences, Inc.) provides him with experience on
governance, financial reporting compliance, accounting, finance, business development and audit
matters that is beneficial to our Board.

OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT OUR SHAREHOLDERS VOTE "FOR"
THE ELECTION OF EACH OF THE NOMINEES AS CLASS II DIRECTORS.

5
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 Class III Directors Continuing in Office with Terms Ending in 2014

Raymond Dwek, F.R.S.
Age 71

Chairman, Scientific Committee
Professor Dwek is a Fellow of the Royal Society, London, and has served as Director of the
Glycobiology Institute and Professor of Glycobiology at the University of Oxford since 1988. He
was President of the Institute of Biology (a professional organization) from 2008 through 2010.
From 2000 to 2006, Professor Dwek served as head of the Department of Biochemistry at the
University of Oxford. Professor Dwek has been serving in various positions at the University of
Oxford since 1966. In 1988, Professor Dwek was the scientific founder of Oxford
GlycoSciences PLC, which was publicly traded on the London Stock Exchange and NASDAQ,
and he served as a member of its Board of Directors until its sale in 2003. He was the 2007 Kluge
Chair of Technology and Society at the U.S. Library of Congress. Professor Dwek is the founder of
glycobiology, the study of the structure, biosynthesis and biology of sugar chains attached to
proteins. He has served as a United Therapeutics director since 2002.

Professor Dwek has extensive scientific experience as both head of the Department of
Biochemistry at the University of Oxford, the world's largest biochemistry department, and as a
biotechnology innovator at organizations such as the Glycobiology Institute and Oxford
GlycoSciences PLC. In evaluating existing and potential new programs, our Board benefits from
his scientific insight and experience in pharmaceutical research and development.

Roger Jeffs, Ph.D.
Age 51

President and Chief Operating Officer
Dr. Jeffs received his undergraduate degree in chemistry from Duke University and his Ph.D. in
pharmacology from the University of North Carolina. Dr. Jeffs joined United Therapeutics in
September 1998 as Director of Research, Development and Medical. Dr. Jeffs was promoted to
Vice President of Research, Development and Medical in July 2000, and to his current position of
President and Chief Operating Officer in April 2001. From 1993 to 1995, Dr. Jeffs worked at
Burroughs Wellcome & Company where he was a member of the clinical research team that
developed Flolan®, the first FDA-approved therapy for patients with pulmonary arterial
hypertension. From 1995 to 1998, Dr. Jeffs worked at Amgen, Inc. where he served as the
worldwide clinical leader of the Infectious Disease Program. Dr. Jeffs currently leads our global
clinical, commercial, manufacturing and business development efforts. He has served as a United
Therapeutics director since 2002.

As he is responsible for our global clinical, commercial and manufacturing operations, Dr. Jeffs
manages the largest portion of our annual budget and headcount. Our Board benefits from
Dr. Jeffs' thorough and real-time understanding of our company and knowledge of our existing
business, risks and prospects. Dr. Jeffs also brings to the Board extensive experience in the
biotechnology industry gained from his service at Burroughs Wellcome & Company and Amgen. In
addition to managing critical areas of our business, Dr. Jeffs manages the majority of our senior
managers and employees and offers valuable insights to our Board related to our infrastructure
and
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Christopher Patusky, J.D., M.G.A.
Age 49

Vice Chairman of the Board
Lead Independent Director
Chairman, Nominating and Governance Committee
Member, Audit Committee
From August 2007 until July 2011, Professor Patusky served as Director, Office of Real Estate, for
the Maryland Department of Transportation, where he was responsible for overseeing the
Department's real estate matters statewide, including its transit-oriented development program. He
continues to provide part-time services to the Maryland Department of Transportation while
offering consulting services to other clients as the founding principal of Patusky Associates, LLC,
a management consulting company he founded in 2012. From 2002 until May 2007, Professor
Patusky served as the Executive Director and a member of the faculty of the Fels Institute of
Government at the University of Pennsylvania. From 1989 until 2000, Professor Patusky practiced
law, focusing on litigation, intellectual property law and business startups. Our Board of Directors
has determined that Professor Patusky meets the financial sophistication requirements of
NASDAQ's listing standards. He has served as a United Therapeutics director since 2002.

Professor Patusky brings to our Board extensive governance experience from his former position
as an administrator and faculty member at the Fels Institute of Government, which is the
University of Pennsylvania's graduate program in public policy and public management, as well as
legal experience from his prior career in private practice, which focused on litigation, intellectual
property law, and business startups. Professor Patusky also brings to our Board familiarity with
governmental regulation and relations between the government and the private sector due to his
leadership experience in state government in the Maryland Department of Transportation. His
responsibilities at the Fels Institute and the Maryland Department of Transportation have included
significant budgetary management and oversight responsibilities.

7
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Tommy Thompson, J.D.
Age 71

Member, Audit Committee
Before entering the private sector in 2005, Governor Thompson enjoyed a long and distinguished
career in public service. As Secretary of U.S. Department of Health and Human Services from
2001 to 2005, he was a leading advocate for the health and welfare of all Americans. He also
served four terms as Governor of Wisconsin from 1987 to 2001. Governor Thompson served as a
partner at the law firm of Akin Gump Strauss Hauer & Feld LLP in Washington, D.C. from 2005
until January 2012, when he resigned in order to run for the United States Senate. From 2005 to
2009, he also served as the Independent Chairman of the Deloitte Center for Health Solutions,
which researches and develops solutions to some of our nation's most pressing health care and
public health related challenges. He also served as chairman of the board of directors of AGA
Medical Holdings, Inc. from 2005 until November 2010, and is a member of the boards of
directors of CareView Communications, Inc., Centene Corporation, C.R. Bard, Inc. and Cytori
Therapeutics, Inc. He previously served on the boards of directors of SpectraScience and CNS
Response, Inc. (through December 2009), and X Shares Advisors (through March 2007). Our
Board of Directors has determined that Governor Thompson meets the financial sophistication
requirements of NASDAQ's listing standards. Governor Thompson has served as a United
Therapeutics director since 2010.

Governor Thompson brings to our Board experience in the healthcare industry, both as a public
official (former Secretary of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services) and in the
private sector (Deloitte Center for Health Solutions), as well as public company board experience
(AGA Medical Holdings, Inc., CareView Communications, Inc., Centene Corporation, C.R.
Bard, Inc., Cytori Therapeutics, Inc., SpectraScience, CNS Response,  Inc., X Shares Advisors) and
knowledge of legislative affairs. Governor Thompson's legal experience from his private practice
at Akin Gump Strauss Hauer & Feld LLP also is useful in the Board's oversight of our legal and
regulatory compliance.
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 Class I Directors Continuing in Office with Terms Ending in 2015

Martine Rothblatt, Ph.D., J.D., M.B.A.
Age 58

Chairman of the Board
Chief Executive Officer
Dr. Rothblatt founded United Therapeutics in 1996 and has served as Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer since its inception. Prior to United Therapeutics, she founded and served as
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Sirius XM Satellite Radio. She is a co-inventor on three
of our patents pertaining to treprostinil. She has served as a United Therapeutics director since
1996.

Dr. Rothblatt brings to the Board extensive leadership and business experience at technology
companies such as Sirius XM Satellite Radio, as well as in-depth knowledge of our company from
her service as our founder, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. She also has substantial
knowledge of medical ethics, having obtained her Ph.D. in medical ethics from the Royal College
of Medicine and Dentistry, Queen Mary College, University of London.

Louis Sullivan, M.D.
Age 79

Member, Compensation Committee
Member, Nominating and Governance Committee
Member, Scientific Committee
Dr. Sullivan currently serves as a Director of Henry Schein, Inc. (since 2001), BioSante
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (since 1994), and Emergent BioSolutions, Inc. (since 2005), all publicly
traded companies. Dr. Sullivan previously served on the boards of directors of a wide range of
public companies, including General Motors Company, Bristol-Myers Squibb Company, Cigna
Corporation, 3M Company and Georgia Pacific Corporation. Dr. Sullivan was the founding
President of Morehouse School of Medicine, from 1981 to 1989, served as President again from
1993 to 2002, and became President Emeritus in July 2002. Dr. Sullivan was also one of the
founders and served as Chairman of Medical Education for South African Blacks, Inc., a member
of the National Executive Council for the Boy Scouts of America, and a member of the Board of
Trustees of Little League of America. Dr. Sullivan served as Secretary of the U.S. Department of
Health and Human Services from 1989 to 1993. He is a physician certified in internal medicine
with a subspecialty certification in hematology. He has served as a United Therapeutics director
since 2002.

Dr. Sullivan brings to our Board extensive experience in the healthcare industry as a public
official from his service as a Secretary of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,
physician certified in internal medicine and professor and administrator at Morehouse School of
Medicine. He also has substantial public company board experience gained from his service as a
director of Henry Schein, Inc., BioSante Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and Emergent BioSolutions, Inc. as
well as his previous public company board service.
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Ray Kurzweil
Age 65

Member, Scientific Committee
Mr. Kurzweil is an inventor, entrepreneur and author, and has created several important
technologies in the artificial intelligence field. He has received the National Medal of Technology,
the MIT-Lemelson Prize, nineteen honorary doctorates and honors from three U.S. Presidents.
Mr. Kurzweil was selected as a 2002 inductee into the National Inventors Hall of Fame. Since
1995, Mr. Kurzweil has served as the Chief Executive Officer of Kurzweil Technologies, Inc., a
technology development firm. Since January 2013, he has also served as Director of Engineering
for Google Inc., a global technology and Internet search company. He has served as a United
Therapeutics director since 2002.

Mr. Kurzweil brings to our Board extensive technological experience as an inventor and
technology developer. His technical experience in the areas of artificial intelligence, telemedicine,
and pharmaceutical research and development, and his experience in building businesses around
his inventions, provide our Board with perspective in evaluating current and proposed
technologies and business opportunities. Mr. Kurzweil also brings to our Board substantial
corporate leadership experience from his role as Chief Executive Officer of Kurzweil
Technologies, Inc.

10
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 BOARD OF DIRECTORS, COMMITTEES, CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

 The Role of our Board: Risk Oversight

        Our Board is responsible for overseeing the risks facing our company. Our Board works directly with our executive officers and other
members of our senior management in carrying out its risk oversight function. Our directors take a proactive, interested and detailed approach to
their service on our Board, and set expectations to promote our success through the achievement of business objectives while maintaining high
standards of responsibility and ethics. At its regularly scheduled meetings, our Board receives reports from our Chief Executive Officer,
President and Chief Operating Officer, Chief Financial Officer and General Counsel, and may also receive reports from the Committee
Chairmen, outside consultants and other members of senior management, among others. These presentations often include identification and
assessment of risks our company currently faces or may face in the future. Our Board is able to ask questions, discuss and provide guidance to
management on the risks presented, as well as any risks that our Board identifies. Our senior management is responsible for assessing risk on a
daily basis. Our Board expects that our senior management continually identifies, assesses and manages the short-term and long-term risks faced
by our company. If members of our senior management identify risks that are material to our company, our Board may convene a special
meeting to discuss, assess and address such risks.

        Our Board implements its risk oversight function both as a whole and through delegation to various committees. These committees meet
regularly and report back to the full Board. Our Audit Committee's responsibilities include general oversight of our company's practices with
respect to risk assessment and risk management. Our Compensation Committee's duties include overseeing an assessment of the incentives and
risks arising from or related to our compensation policies and practices, including but not limited to those applicable to executive officers, and to
evaluate whether those incentives and risks are appropriate.

        In April 2013, our Compensation Committee reviewed a risk assessment conducted by management and our Compensation Committee's
independent compensation consultant, Towers Watson & Co. (Towers Watson), to determine whether the design of our employee compensation
programs and the amounts and components of employee compensation might create incentives for excessive risk-taking by our employees.
Based on this review, our Compensation Committee concluded that the risks arising from our employee compensation programs are not
reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on our company. Our Compensation Committee believes that our compensation programs
encourage employees, including our executives, to remain focused on a balance of the short- and long-term operational and financial goals of
our company, thereby reducing the potential for actions that involve an excessive level of risk. See the section entitled Compensation Discussion
and Analysis�Executive Summary�Summary of Compensation Governance Policies for information regarding certain risk-mitigating features of
our compensation program.

 Board of Directors Leadership

        Our Chief Executive Officer, who founded our company, serves as Chairman of our Board. Our Board believes that the combined role of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer currently is an appropriate leadership structure for our company. In this regard, having a combined
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer provides an efficient and effective leadership model for a growing entrepreneurial company like ours, as
it fosters clear accountability, effective decision-making, and alignment on corporate strategy. In addition, because our Board works closely with
our executive officers and members of senior management, there is a natural synergy in the combined Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
role that facilitates our Board's guidance of management.

        The independent directors on our Board have designated a Lead Independent Director. The Lead Independent Director is selected annually
by the independent directors. Professor Patusky has served as
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Lead Independent Director for the past several years. Among other responsibilities, our Lead Independent Director coordinates the activities of
our other independent directors, approves Board meeting schedules, agendas and information sent to our Board, chairs all meetings of the Board
at which the Chairman is not present, including executive sessions of our independent directors, and serves as principal liaison between our
independent directors and our Chairman and senior management. The Lead Independent Director also has the authority to call meetings of the
independent directors and is available for consultation and communication with major shareholders, if requested. A more detailed description of
the responsibilities of the Lead Independent Director is included in our Corporate Governance Guidelines, which are available on our website at
http://ir.unither.com/governance.cfm.

 Director Nominations and Diversity

        The Nominating and Governance Committee of our Board does not have a formal policy with respect to considering director candidates or
director diversity. Once our Nominating and Governance Committee identifies a potential director nominee, it screens the candidate, performs
reference checks and conducts interviews with the assistance of our General Counsel. If the outcome of that process is favorable, our
Nominating and Governance Committee may recommend the candidate to our Board for nomination.

        Our Nominating and Governance Committee considers candidates recommended by shareholders and evaluates them using the same
criteria as it uses to evaluate all other candidates. Our Nominating and Governance Committee seeks to recommend director candidates who will
enhance the quality of our Board's deliberations and decisions, who will take their duties seriously and who will promote the values and ethics to
which we subscribe.

        A shareholder who wishes to recommend a prospective nominee for our Nominating and Governance Committee's consideration should
submit the candidate's name and qualifications to our Corporate Secretary at the address set forth under Shareholder Communication with
Directors below.

Minimum Criteria for Director Candidates

        To be considered by our Nominating and Governance Committee, a director candidate must meet the following minimum criteria:

�
Personal and professional integrity;

�
A record of exceptional ability and judgment;

�
Ability and willingness to participate fully and work constructively in Board activities, including active participation in
meetings of our Board and its committees;

�
Interest, capacity and willingness, in conjunction with the other members of our Board, to serve the interests of our
shareholders;

�
Reasonable knowledge of the fields of our operations, as well as familiarity with the principles of corporate governance;

�
Expertise to serve on one or more committees of our Board; and

�
Absence of any personal or professional relationships that would adversely affect his or her ability to serve our best interests
and those of our shareholders.

12
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Additional Qualities and Skills for Director Candidates

        In addition, our Nominating and Governance Committee is interested in candidates who possess the following skills:

�
The ability to contribute to the variety of opinions, perspectives, personal and professional experiences and backgrounds, as
well as other characteristics that differ among members of our Board;

�
A desire to contribute positively to the existing tone and collaborative culture among our Board members; and

�
Professional and personal experiences and expertise relevant to achievement of our strategic objectives.

        Our Nominating and Governance Committee's evaluation of director nominees takes into account their ability to contribute these qualities
and skills to the Board, and our Nominating and Governance Committee reviews its effectiveness in balancing these considerations when
assessing the composition of the Board.

 Director Independence

        Our Board has determined that: (i) Christopher Causey, Richard Giltner, R. Paul Gray, Christopher Patusky, Louis Sullivan and Tommy
Thompson are independent in accordance with the NASDAQ listing standards; (ii) Roger Jeffs and Martine Rothblatt are not independent, due
to Dr. Jeffs' employment as our President and Chief Operating Officer and Dr. Rothblatt's employment as our Chief Executive Officer; (iii) Ray
Kurzweil is not independent due to certain payments received in connection with the technical services agreement described in the section
entitled Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions below; (iv) Raymond Dwek is not independent due to certain transactions
between United Therapeutics and the University of Oxford described in the section entitled Certain Relationships and Related Party
Transactions below; and (v) R. Paul Gray, Christopher Patusky, Tommy Thompson and Richard Giltner meet the heightened independence
standards for audit committee members set forth in rules promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange
Act).

        Prior to 2011, Professor Dwek was regarded as one of our independent directors. In 2011, our Board determined not to designate Professor
Dwek as independent under the NASDAQ listing standards, after considering the transactions between United Therapeutics and the University
of Oxford described in the section entitled Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions below. Our Board believes that Professor
Dwek brings significant and valuable independent insight to the Board, and does not believe that our relationship with Oxford University falls
within any of the categorical prohibitions against a finding of independence under the NASDAQ listing standards. However, in an abundance of
caution and in light of the continuing and increasing extent of our relationship with Oxford, the Board no longer designates Professor Dwek as
an "independent director" within the meaning of the NASDAQ listing standards.

13
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 Committees of our Board of Directors

        Our Board has established four standing committees: an Audit Committee, a Compensation Committee, a Nominating and Governance
Committee and a Scientific Committee. The current composition of each committee is as follows:

Audit Compensation
Nominating

and
Governance

Scientific

Christopher Causey Chair ü
Raymond Dwek* Chair
Richard Giltner ü ü
R. Paul Gray Chair ü
Roger Jeffs**
Ray Kurzweil* ü
Christopher
Patusky*** ü Chair
Martine Rothblatt**
Louis Sullivan ü ü ü
Tommy Thompson ü

*
Non-Independent Director

**
Management (Non-Independent) Director

***
Lead Independent Director

Audit Committee

        Our Audit Committee's responsibilities include:

�
Representing and assisting our Board in its oversight responsibilities regarding our accounting and financial reporting
processes, the audits of our financial statements, including the integrity of our financial statements, and the qualifications
and independence of Ernst & Young, LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm;

�
Retaining and terminating our independent auditors;

�
Approving in advance all audit and non-audit services to be performed by our independent auditors; and

�
Approving related party transactions (as defined under the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC)).

        For additional information regarding the processes and procedures used by our Audit Committee, see the section entitled Report of our
Audit Committee and Information on our Independent Auditors below.

        Our Audit Committee's duties are outlined in more detail in its charter.

Compensation Committee
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        Our Compensation Committee oversees our company's compensation plans and policies, reviews and approves compensation for our
executive officers, oversees the administration of our equity
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incentive and share tracking awards plans, reviews and approves grants of stock options and share tracking awards to our executive officers and
the methodology and formulae for granting stock options and share tracking awards to other employees. Our Compensation Committee's
responsibilities include:

�
Creating a system for awarding long-term and short-term performance-oriented incentive compensation to attract and retain
senior management, and reviewing our compensation plans to confirm that they are appropriate, competitive and properly
reflect our goals and objectives; and

�
Assisting our Board in discharging its responsibilities regarding compensation of our executive officers.

        Our Compensation Committee's charter provides that it may delegate responsibilities to subcommittees if it determines such a delegation
would be in the best interest of the company. For additional information regarding the processes and procedures used by our Compensation
Committee, see the section entitled Compensation Discussion & Analysis below.

        Our Compensation Committee's duties are outlined in more detail in its charter.

Independent Compensation Consultant

        Our Compensation Committee has the authority to engage advisors to assist it in carrying out its responsibilities. In accordance with this
authority, our Compensation Committee directly engaged Towers Watson as its compensation consultant to provide advice to the Compensation
Committee on our executive and non-employee director compensation practices and policies. Our Compensation Committee, in its discretion,
may replace its independent compensation consultant or hire additional consultants at any time. Towers Watson did not provide any services to
United Therapeutics other than providing advice with respect to executive and director compensation, and received compensation only for
services it provided to or on behalf of our Compensation Committee. Our Compensation Committee considered the independence of Towers
Watson in light of newly effective SEC rules regarding conflicts of interest involving compensation consultants and recently adopted NASDAQ
listing standards regarding compensation consultant independence that take effect in July 2013. Based on its review, our Compensation
Committee determined that Towers Watson was independent and that the work of Towers Watson did not raise any conflicts of interest. In
making the foregoing determination, our Compensation Committee considered the following six factors, as well as other factors it deemed
relevant: (i) the provision of other services to us by Towers Watson; (ii) the amount of fees received from us by Towers Watson, as a percentage
of the total revenue of Towers Watson; (iii) the policies and procedures of Towers Watson that are designed to prevent conflicts of interest;
(iv) the lack of any business or personal relationship of the Towers Watson consultant with a member of our Compensation Committee; (v) the
lack of any United Therapeutics stock owned by the Towers Watson consultants performing services for our Compensation Committee; and
(vi) the lack of any business or personal relationship of the Towers Watson consultant or Towers Watson with any of our executive officers.

        Our Compensation Committee engaged Towers Watson to review and advise our Compensation Committee on all principal aspects of
executive and non-employee director compensation. This included base salaries, cash incentive bonus awards, and long-term incentive awards
for our executive officers, and cash compensation and long-term incentive awards for non-employee directors. Towers Watson performed the
following tasks for our Compensation Committee in 2012, among others:

�
Reviewing and advising on the structure of our compensation arrangements (i.e., base salary levels, cash incentive bonus
award target levels and the size of long-term incentive award targets) for our Chief Executive Officer and our other
executive officers;

�
Reviewing and advising on the structure of our compensation arrangements for our non-employee directors;
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�
Providing recommendations regarding the composition of our peer group;

�
Analyzing publicly available proxy data of companies within our peer group and survey data relating to executive
compensation;

�
Conducting pay and performance analyses relative to our peer group;

�
Updating our Compensation Committee on industry trends and best practices with respect to executive long-term incentive
compensation program design, including types of long-term incentive compensation awards, size of long-term incentive
compensation grants, and aggregate long-term incentive compensation grant usage;

�
Advising our Compensation Committee in connection with the implementation of our Employee Stock Purchase Plan;

�
Evaluating our share tracking awards plans against our design/cost targets and against industry norms;

�
Assisting with the drafting of the Compensation Discussion and Analysis for our proxy statement;

�
Advising our Compensation Committee in connection with its risk assessment relating to our compensation programs; and

�
Working on special or ad-hoc projects for, or at the request of, our Compensation Committee as they arose.

        In the course of fulfilling these responsibilities, Towers Watson regularly communicated with our Compensation Committee Chairman
outside of and prior to most Compensation Committee meetings. Our Compensation Committee may invite its independent compensation
consultant to attend its meetings. In 2012, our Compensation Committee's independent consultant attended six of our Compensation Committee's
nine meetings.

        While our Compensation Committee considered its independent consultant's recommendations in 2012, our Compensation Committee's
decisions, including the specific amounts paid to our executive officers and directors, were its own and may reflect factors and considerations in
addition to the information and recommendations provided by its independent consultant.

Nominating and Governance Committee

        In addition to the responsibilities described in the section entitled Director Nominations and Diversity above, our Nominating and
Governance Committee's responsibilities include:

�
Proposing nominees for election to our Board;

�
Proposing nominees to fill vacancies on our Board and newly created directorships;

�
Reviewing candidates for election to our Board recommended to us by our shareholders;

�
Recommending committee membership and chairmen;
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�
Reviewing management succession plans;

�
Developing, evaluating, recommending to our Board and monitoring all matters with respect to corporate governance; and

�
Overseeing our compliance with legal and regulatory obligations.

        Our Nominating and Governance Committee's duties are outlined in more detail in its charter.
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Scientific Committee

        Our Scientific Committee's responsibilities include:

�
Providing strategic advice and making recommendations to our Board and management regarding our current and planned
research and development programs;

�
Advising our Board and management on the scientific merit of technology or products involved in licensing and acquisition
opportunities; and

�
Reviewing new developments, technologies, and trends in biopharmaceutical research and development.

        Scientific Committee members with appropriate scientific expertise also serve as members of our Scientific Advisory Board and act as the
Board's liaisons to our Scientific Advisory Board. Our Scientific Advisory Board is composed of scientists and physicians who meet periodically
to discuss and evaluate potential opportunities for our company and guide our scientists as they work to develop new products and enhancements
to our existing products. From time to time, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer will ask Scientific Committee members to review
technological developments that are strategically important or promising to our company.

        Our Scientific Committee's duties are outlined in more detail in its charter.

 Corporate Governance Guidelines and Committee Charters

        At the recommendation of our Nominating and Governance Committee, the Board has adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines as a
framework for the governance of our company. Our Corporate Governance Guidelines, along with the charter for each Board committee, are
available electronically in the "Corporate Governance" section of the "Investor Relations" page of our website located at
http://ir.unither.com/governance.cfm, or by writing to us at United Therapeutics Corporation, Attention: Corporate Secretary, 1040 Spring
Street, Silver Spring, Maryland 20910, or by sending an e-mail to corporatesecretary@unither.com.

 Stock Ownership Guidelines

        Our Board adopted Stock Ownership Guidelines applicable to our directors and Named Executive Officers in order to further align the
financial interests of our directors and Named Executive Officers with those of our shareholders, to foster a long-term management orientation,
and to promote sound corporate governance. For non-employee members of our Board, our Stock Ownership Guidelines provide an ownership
target equal to the lesser of 5,000 shares or five times the annual cash Board retainer. Non-employee members of our Board are expected to
achieve their Stock Ownership Guideline target within five years of becoming subject to these guidelines. Ownership targets for our Named
Executive Officers (including those serving on the Board) are described below under Compensation Discussion and Analysis�Stock Ownership
Guidelines.

        In determining ownership levels for each director under our Stock Ownership Guidelines, credit is provided for shares held outright, as well
as the number of vested, but unexercised, stock options and share tracking awards. For purposes of vested, unexercised stock option and share
tracking awards, shares will be calculated on an "as if exercised" basis, assuming a cashless exercise and net of taxes (using an assumed 35% tax
rate). The guidelines provide procedures for granting exemptions in the case of severe financial hardship. As of April 12, 2013, all of our
directors had met the ownership targets in our Stock Ownership Guidelines or were on track to do so within the allowed time period.
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 Meetings of our Board of Directors and Board Attendance at Annual Meetings of Shareholders

        Our full Board held four meetings during 2012. In addition, during 2012, our Audit Committee held seven meetings, our Compensation
Committee held nine meetings, and our Nominating and Governance Committee held one meeting. Each of our directors attended more than
75% of the total number of meetings of our Board and the committees on which he or she served during 2012. In accordance with applicable
NASDAQ listing standards, the independent members of our Board met without management present four times during 2012.

        Although attendance is not mandatory, our Board encourages all of its members to attend the annual meeting of shareholders. All ten of our
directors attended our 2012 annual meeting of shareholders.

 Shareholder Communication with Directors

        Shareholders are encouraged to address any director communications to our Corporate Secretary by overnight or certified mail, signature
acceptance or return receipt required, at: United Therapeutics Corporation, Attention: Corporate Secretary, 1040 Spring Street, Silver Spring,
Maryland 20910. Our Corporate Secretary has the authority to disregard or take other reasonable action with respect to any inappropriate
shareholder communications. After confirming the stock ownership of the author of the communication, our Corporate Secretary will review the
appropriateness of a shareholder communication based on the relevance of the communication to Board decisions. If deemed an appropriate
communication, our Corporate Secretary will submit the shareholder communication to our Lead Independent Director. Shareholders will
receive a written acknowledgement from our Corporate Secretary upon receipt of such written communication.
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 DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

        Our non-employee director compensation program is comprised of three main elements:

�
an annual cash retainer (payable quarterly) for service as a member of the Board;

�
additional annual cash retainers (payable quarterly) for service on Board committees; and

�
stock options or share tracking awards (in either case, granted initially upon joining the Board, and thereafter on an annual
basis) for service as a member of the Board.

        Directors may also be compensated for special assignments from our Board. In 2012, no such special assignments occurred that involved
compensation to a director. Employee directors do not receive any compensation for service on our Board in addition to their regular
compensation as employees.

        Our Compensation Committee and Nominating and Governance Committee review non-employee director compensation levels
approximately once every two years, and final decisions with respect to any changes in director compensation levels are made by the Board
upon the recommendation of our Compensation Committee and our Nominating and Governance Committee. Non-employee director
compensation levels were established by the Board in June 2011, following a review of the compensation program over the course of late 2010
and early 2011. There were no changes to the non-employee director compensation program in 2012.

        The following table describes our compensation program for non-employee directors in 2012.

Stock Option or
Share Tracking
Awards(3)

Annual Cash Initial (#) Annual (#)
Board Membership $ 50,000 20,000 15,000
Lead Independent Director(1) $ 35,000 � �
Committee Chairmanship(2):
Audit Committee $ 25,000 � �
Compensation Committee $ 25,000 � �
Nominating and Governance Committee $ 15,000 � �
Scientific Committee $ 15,000 � �
Committee Membership(2):
Audit Committee $ 15,000 � �
Compensation Committee $ 15,000 � �
Nominating and Governance Committee $ 7,500 � �
Scientific Committee(4) $ 7,500 � �

(1)
Compensation for service as Lead Independent Director is paid in addition to amounts paid for membership on our Board and for any
committee chairmanship or membership.

(2)
Committee chairmen receive the compensation indicated for committee chairmanship in lieu of the compensation for committee
membership. Compensation for committee chairmanship and committee membership is paid in addition to amounts paid for
membership on our Board.

(3)
Annual awards are granted once per year on the date of the first meeting of our Board following our annual meeting of shareholders.
As such, the next grant to non-employee members of our Board is expected to occur on June 26, 2013.
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Scientific Committee members do not receive additional compensation for service on our Scientific Advisory Board.

        Our non-employee directors are eligible to receive stock options under the 1997 United Therapeutics Corporation Amended and Restated
Equity Incentive Plan (EIP) and awards under the
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2011 United Therapeutics Corporation Share Tracking Awards Plan (collectively with its predecessor plan adopted in 2008, the STAP).
Non-employee directors' initial and annual stock option and STAP awards are granted with an exercise price equal to the closing price of our
common stock as reported on the NASDAQ Global Select Market (NASDAQ) on the date of grant, or on the preceding trading day if the award
is granted on a date when the NASDAQ is not open. Initial grants of stock options or STAP awards, consisting of the initial membership award
and a pro-rated amount of the annual award for the remainder of the then-current term, are made on the date of a director's appointment or
election to our Board, or on the preceding trading day if the award is granted on a date when the NASDAQ is not open. Annual awards of stock
options or STAP awards are made on the date of the first meeting of our Board following our annual meeting of shareholders in the year of
grant. Awards of stock options and STAP awards to our non-employee directors become fully vested on the one-year anniversary of the grant
date only if the director attends at least 75% of the regularly scheduled meetings of our Board and his or her committee meetings from the date
of grant until the date of our next annual meeting of shareholders.

        The following table lists the compensation earned in 2012 by each non-employee director:

 2012 Director Compensation

Name
Fees Earned or
Paid in Cash(1)

Stock Option or
STAP

Awards(2)
All Other

Compensation Total
Christopher Causey $ 82,500 $ 297,900 $ � $ 380,400
Raymond Dwek $ 65,000 $ 297,900 $ � $ 362,900
Richard Giltner $ 72,500 $ 297,900 $ � $ 370,400
R. Paul Gray $ 90,000 $ 297,900 $ � $ 387,900
Ray Kurzweil $ 57,500 $ 297,900 $ � $ 355,400
Christopher Patusky $ 115,000 $ 297,900 $ � $ 412,900
Louis Sullivan $ 80,000 $ 297,900 $ � $ 377,900
Tommy Thompson $ 65,000 $ 297,900 $ � $ 362,900

(1)
Includes annual cash retainer and fees for serving on our Board, the committees of our Board, as a committee chairman and as Lead
Independent Director.

(2)
Represents the aggregate grant date fair value of STAP awards granted to non-employee directors in 2012, computed in accordance
with applicable accounting standards. For a discussion of the valuation assumptions for STAP awards, see Note 7�Share Tracking
Award Plans to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2012.

On June 26, 2012, each of our non-employee directors was granted 15,000 STAP awards with an exercise price of $48.11 per share
and a grant date fair value of $19.86 per share. No stock options were granted to our non-employee directors in 2012.

As of December 31, 2012, Mr. Causey had 55,500 stock options outstanding and 45,000 STAP awards outstanding, Prof. Dwek had
122,000 stock options outstanding and 45,000 STAP awards outstanding, Mr. Giltner had 92,500 stock options outstanding and 30,000
STAP awards outstanding, Mr. Gray had no stock options outstanding and 45,000 STAP awards outstanding, Mr. Kurzweil had no
stock options outstanding and 45,000 STAP awards outstanding, Prof. Patusky had 70,000 stock options outstanding and 75,000 STAP
awards outstanding, Dr. Sullivan had 102,000 stock options outstanding and 75,000 STAP awards outstanding and Governor
Thompson had 42,500 stock options outstanding and 30,000 STAP awards outstanding.
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 PROPOSAL NO. 2
ADVISORY RESOLUTION TO APPROVE EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

        We are asking our shareholders to vote on an advisory resolution to approve executive compensation as reported in this Proxy Statement.
As described below in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis, our Compensation Committee has structured our executive compensation
program to achieve the following primary objectives: (i) to attract and retain highly-competent Named Executive Officers capable of leading our
company toward the fulfillment of its business objectives and continued growth to augment shareholder value; (ii) to offer competitive
compensation opportunities that reward individual contributions and corporate performance; (iii) to align the interests and compensation of
our Named Executive Officers with the value created for shareholders through a strong pay-for-performance culture; and (iv) to incentivize our
Named Executive Officers to consider the best interests of our company in the short and long term.

        As described further under Compensation Discussion and Analysis�Executive Summary, we feel strongly that our executive compensation
programs have been well-designed to promote these objectives. In this regard, our 2012 executive compensation programs did not change
significantly from our 2011 programs, which our shareholders overwhelmingly supported by voting 97.9% in favor of our advisory "say on pay"
resolution at our 2012 annual meeting of shareholders.

        We urge shareholders to read the Compensation Discussion and Analysis beginning on page 22 of this Proxy Statement, which describes in
more detail how our executive compensation policies and procedures operate and are designed to achieve our compensation objectives, as well
as the Summary Compensation Table and other related compensation tables and narrative, appearing on pages 45 through 56, which provide
detailed information on the compensation of our Named Executive Officers. Our Compensation Committee and our Board of Directors believe
that the policies and procedures articulated in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis are effective in achieving our goals and that the
compensation of our Named Executive Officers reported in this Proxy Statement has supported and contributed to both our recent and long-term
success.

        Based on the results of our 2011 shareholder advisory vote on the preferred frequency of holding future advisory votes on executive
compensation, our Board of Directors has adopted a policy providing for an annual advisory resolution to approve executive compensation. In
accordance with this policy and Section 14A of the Exchange Act, and as a matter of good corporate governance, we are asking shareholders to
approve the following advisory resolution at the Annual Meeting:

RESOLVED, that the shareholders of United Therapeutics Corporation (the "Company") approve, on an advisory
basis, the compensation of the Company's Named Executive Officers disclosed in the Compensation Discussion and
Analysis, the Summary Compensation Table and the related compensation tables, notes and narrative in the Proxy
Statement for the Company's 2013 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

        This advisory resolution, commonly referred to as a "say-on-pay" resolution, is non-binding on our Board of Directors. Although
non-binding, our Board and our Compensation Committee will review and consider the voting results when making future decisions regarding
our executive compensation program. Unless our Board modifies its policy on the frequency of future "say-on-pay" advisory votes, the next
"say-on-pay" advisory vote will be held at our 2014 annual meeting of shareholders.

OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE "FOR"
THE ADVISORY RESOLUTION TO APPROVE EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.
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 COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

        This Compensation Discussion and Analysis describes compensation objectives and policies set by our Compensation Committee for our
Named Executive Officers, including executive pay decisions and processes and all elements of our executive compensation program. In this
Compensation Discussion and Analysis, the term "Compensation Committee" refers to the Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors,
and the terms "we" and "our" refer to United Therapeutics. Our Named Executive Officers in 2012 consisted of the following four individuals:

Martine Rothblatt, Ph.D. Chief Executive Officer
John Ferrari Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
Roger Jeffs, Ph.D. President and Chief Operating Officer
Paul Mahon, J.D. Executive Vice President and General Counsel

 Executive Summary

2012 in Review

        2012 was another successful year for United Therapeutics. We achieved record revenues of $916.1 million, record net income of
$304.4 million, and record earnings before non-cash charges(1) of $519.4 million. We are successfully managing the commercial sale of three
FDA-approved medicines, and we have an exciting pipeline of investigative products at all stages of the development cycle, including clinical
trials expected to further enhance our treprostinil-based franchise.

        Notably, 2012 marks our twelfth consecutive year of at least 20% revenue growth, and our stock price has achieved cumulative growth of
more than 600% over that same period. In addition, we have the second-highest revenue per employee of our peer group (as described below).
None of this exceptional performance would have been possible without the efforts of our Board of Directors and employees, including our
Named Executive Officers. The graphs below illustrate our financial and stock price performance over the last 12 years.

 United Therapeutics Stock Price Performance vs. NASDAQ Biotech Index
(January 2, 2001 through January 2, 2013)

(1)
Earnings before non-cash charges is a non-GAAP financial measure defined as net income, adjusted for the following non-cash
charges, as applicable: (1) interest; (2) income taxes; (3) license fees; (4) depreciation and amortization; (5) impairment charges; and
(6) share-based compensation (stock option, share tracking award and employee stock purchase plan expense). Please see Annex A to
this Proxy Statement for further details, including a reconciliation of this non-GAAP figure to net income in accordance with GAAP.
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 United Therapeutics 2001 - 2012
Revenue and Earnings Before Non-Cash Charges ($ Millions)

Impact of 2012 Advisory Resolution on Executive Compensation

        In June 2012, our shareholders voted on a non-binding advisory resolution to approve executive compensation, commonly referred to as a
"say on pay" vote, at our 2012 annual meeting of shareholders. Our shareholders overwhelmingly endorsed our "say on pay" resolution, with a
97.9% vote in favor (excluding the effect of broker non-votes and abstentions).

        Our Compensation Committee considered the results of the 2012 "say on pay" vote and also considered many other factors in evaluating
our executive compensation policies and practices throughout 2012, as discussed in this Compensation Discussion and Analysis. Our
Compensation Committee did not make any changes to our executive compensation program and policies as a result of the 2012 "say on pay"
vote and determined to maintain our general approach to executive compensation, described in more detail below, which emphasizes incentive
compensation that rewards our Named Executive Officers when they deliver value for our shareholders.
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Overview of our Executive Compensation Program

        We believe that we have an exceptional leadership team whose efforts are among the principal reasons we have consistently generated
outstanding performance over the past 10+ years in terms of revenue growth and average stock price increase. We further believe it is critical to
our future success that we retain and reward our leadership team in a manner that reinforces our strong pay-for-performance philosophy. In other
words, the compensation realized by our leadership team, including our Named Executive Officers, should reflect our financial and operational
performance and the value realized by our shareholders. This principle is reflected in the composition of the average target total direct
compensation for our Named Executive officers in 2012, which, as in years' prior, included a greater proportion of performance-based pay and
less guaranteed pay than the executives in our peer group, as illustrated below:

 United Therapeutics Compensation Mix vs. Peers

(1)
Target total direct compensation is defined as the sum of base salary, cash incentive bonus opportunity, and the grant date fair value of
long-term incentive awards, in each case for 2012. For United Therapeutics, a target long-term incentive award has been used, to
reflect historical payout levels, as follows: CEO�500,000 stock options; other Named Executive Officers�70% of long-term incentive
opportunity. For purposes of this chart, guaranteed pay includes base salary and time-based vesting restricted stock (note that we do
not issue time-based restricted stock). Performance-based pay includes stock options, share tracking awards (STAPs), cash incentive
bonuses and other forms of performance-based equity or long-term incentives awarded by companies in our peer group.

        The key features of our executive compensation program, which are designed to support the objectives discussed below at Executive
Compensation Framework�Compensation Program Objectives, are summarized below:

�
Pay Program Elements.  We provide our Named Executive Officers with annual compensation comprised of base salary,
cash incentive bonus and long-term incentives. We also offer health and retirement benefits, limited perquisites and
severance and change in control arrangements.

�
Competitive Positioning.  Generally, for 2012 we targeted total direct compensation (defined as base salary, cash incentive
bonus target, and long-term incentive award target) at or above the 75th percentile of our peer group. We believe this
benchmark target is appropriate in light of our strong pay-for-performance compensation structure. In particular, as shown in
the graph above, our compensation structure is more heavily weighted toward "at-risk," performance-based components,
versus "guaranteed" pay, when compared to our peer group. Individual compensation targets and actual compensation paid
may vary based on our Compensation
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Committee's assessment of corporate performance and each Named Executive Officer's individual performance. For details
regarding the composition of our peer group, see the section below entitled Compensation Peer Group.

�
Cash Incentive Bonus Program.  For the 2012 performance period, we paid cash incentive awards to our Named Executive
Officers based on the achievement of pre-established corporate goals under our Company-Wide Milestone Program. Named
Executive Officers became eligible to receive an additional "Herculean Milestone" as part of their cash incentive award in
2012. Achievement of Company-Wide Milestones, including the Herculean Milestone, is discussed below at Cash Incentive
Bonus Program.

�
CEO Long-Term Incentive Compensation.  Our CEO is eligible to receive long-term incentive compensation annually in the
form of performance-based stock options, under a pay-for-performance formula contained in her employment agreement,
which bases the number of stock options awarded (if any) on the increase in our market capitalization during the year. Under
this formula, our stock price must increase in order for our CEO to receive any stock options; then, the stock price must
increase further for our CEO to realize any economic benefit from those stock options. As a result of this formula, she has
received no performance-based stock option awards in three of the past ten years. This pay-for-performance formula, and the
fact that long-term incentive compensation is a substantial part of our CEO's total compensation, are the key reasons why
our CEO's total compensation is closely aligned with total shareholder return, as illustrated by the chart below. The increase
in our CEO's compensation between 2011 and 2012 was primarily due to two factors. Approximately 30% of the increase
was attributable solely to changes in the underlying assumptions, and in particular the discount rate, used to determine the
actuarial present value of retirement benefits under the SERP pursuant to generally accepted accounting principles and SEC
requirements. There were no changes to the SERP plan or plan benefits during 2012. The remaining compensation increase
was principally a function of our CEO, pursuant to the terms of her employment agreement, receiving a stock option grant of
153,225 shares in 2012, whereas she received no stock options in 2011.

 5-Year CEO Actual Total Direct Compensation(1) vs. United Therapeutics Indexed Total Shareholder
Return(2)

(1)
Actual total direct compensation is defined as the sum of base salary, cash incentive bonus earned, the grant date fair value of
long-term incentive awards, the change in the actuarial present value of retirement benefits under the SERP and the value of
benefits/perquisites.

(2)
Indexed total shareholder return is equal to United Therapeutics' stock price as of the end of each year as a percentage of the starting
point of December 31, 2008.
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�
Other Named Executive Officers' Long-Term Incentive Compensation.  Long-term incentive compensation for our other
Named Executive Officers is paid in the form of cash-settled STAP awards, based principally on company performance
(including Milestone attainment), plus an assessment of individual performance. Like stock options, STAP awards only
provide value to a recipient if our stock price increases between the grant date and the exercise date.

2012 Compensation Decisions and Pay-for-Performance Alignment

        At the beginning of 2012, based in part on strong company performance during 2011, our Compensation Committee approved 3% increases
in 2012 base salary for each Named Executive Officer other than Mr. Ferrari, which was consistent with the average companywide salary
increases for company personnel. Mr. Ferrari received a 15% increase in his base salary, in order to bring Mr. Ferrari's cash compensation closer
to the 60th percentile of chief financial officers of companies in our peer group. Cash bonus incentive targets, as a percentage of base salary, and
long-term incentive targets, remained the same as 2011 for 2012.

        At the end of 2012, as a result of our strong financial and operational performance, a 92% achievement of the goals in our Company-Wide
Milestone Program and each Named Executive Officer's performance during the year, our Compensation Committee made the following
compensation decisions:

�
Payout of cash incentive bonuses for 2012 equal to 102% of the respective cash incentive bonus target for each Named
Executive Officer, which includes a Herculean Milestone award; and

�
Grant of STAP awards for performance in 2012 to each Named Executive Officer (other than Dr. Rothblatt) equal to 92% of
their respective long-term incentive award targets.

        In addition, as a result of the increase in our market capitalization during 2012, in accordance with the formula set forth in her employment
agreement, Dr. Rothblatt received options to purchase 153,225 shares of our common stock on December 31, 2012.

        As a result of these actions, actual total direct compensation (defined as base salary, plus cash incentive bonus earned, plus the grant date
fair value of long-term incentive awards granted) was at approximately the 30th percentile of our peer group for our Chief Executive Officer and
above the 75th percentile for our other Named Executive Officers. Our Compensation Committee believes this was appropriate given the
pay-for-performance design of our compensation arrangements, where a significantly larger portion of Named Executive Officers' compensation
on average is performance-based, when compared to our peer group, and our track record of extraordinary performance against our internal
goals and relative to our peers. For example, in 2012, our revenue growth, net income growth, net income per employee and revenue per
employee each approximated or exceeded the 70th percentile of our peer group.

Summary of Compensation Governance Policies

        Our Compensation Committee and Board of Directors have taken the following steps to further enhance the governance of our executive
compensation program:

�
Stock Ownership Guidelines.  Our Board has adopted Stock Ownership Guidelines applicable to our directors and Named
Executive Officers. For details, see the section above entitled Board of Directors, Committees, Corporate Governance�Stock
Ownership Guidelines and the section below entitled Other Executive Compensation Policies and Practices�Stock Ownership
Guidelines.

�
Stock Option / STAP Repricing Policy.  Our Board has adopted a policy against repricing or exchanging underwater stock
options and STAP awards without shareholder approval. For

26

Edgar Filing: UNITED THERAPEUTICS Corp - Form DEF 14A

38



Table of Contents

details, see the section below entitled Other Executive Compensation Policies and Practices�Policy Against Repricing
Without Shareholder Approval.

�
Compensation Recovery Policy.  Our Board has the authority, to the extent permitted by governing law, to make retroactive
adjustments to any cash-, stock option- or STAP award-based incentive compensation paid to our Named Executive Officers
and certain other senior managers where the payment was predicated upon the achievement of certain financial results that
were subsequently the subject of a restatement.

�
Policy Regarding Tax Gross-Ups.  Our Compensation Committee has adopted a policy against adopting any future
employment arrangements with Section 16 officers that include tax gross-up provisions.

�
Prohibition Against Hedging and Pledging.  Pursuant to our insider trading policy, directors, officers and employees are
prohibited from, among other things, purchasing our securities on margin, engaging in "short" sales of our common stock, or
buying or selling puts, calls, futures contracts or other forms of derivative securities relating to our securities. In addition,
our Board has adopted a prohibition against the pledging of shares of our common stock by directors and executive officers.

�
Independent Consultant.  Our Compensation Committee has consistently retained nationally-recognized executive
compensation consulting firms since 2004 to advise it on compensation matters relating to our Named Executive Officers.
For details, see the section above entitled Board of Directors, Committees, Corporate Governance�Independent
Compensation Consultant.

�
Executive Sessions.  Our Compensation Committee regularly meets in executive session without members of management
present.
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 Executive Compensation Framework

Compensation Program Objectives

        Our executive compensation program is designed to achieve four primary objectives:

�
Pay for Performance.  Structure compensation programs to emphasize variable, performance-based elements so that realized
compensation is aligned with corporate performance (both financial and non-financial), stock price performance and
individual performance, based on achievement of performance goals established by our Compensation Committee.

�
Shareholder Alignment.  Align the interests and compensation of our Named Executive Officers with the value created for
shareholders through equity-oriented incentives and stock ownership guidelines.

�
Balance Short-Term and Long-Term Perspectives.  Encourage our Named Executive Officers to consider the long-term as
well as the short-term best interests of our company.

�
Market Competitiveness.  Offer competitive compensation opportunities that facilitate the attraction and retention of highly
competent executive officers capable of leading our company to the fulfillment of its business objectives and growth in
shareholder value.

        We accomplish these objectives through five primary compensation elements, as summarized in the table below:

Objective

Compensation Element
Pay for

Performance
Shareholder
Alignment

Balance Short-
and Long-Term
Perspectives

Market
Competitiveness

Base Salary ü
Cash Incentive Bonus ü ü ü ü
Long-Term Incentives (Stock Options/STAP Awards) ü ü ü ü
Benefits/Perquisites ü
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (SERP) ü ü
Severance/Change-of-Control Benefits ü ü

Compensation Peer Group

        Our Compensation Committee annually examines Named Executive Officer compensation levels relative to a peer group of industry and
labor market competitors. For 2012, our Compensation Committee examined a peer group comprised of the top 25 companies other than United
Therapeutics, ranked by market capitalization, in the NASDAQ Biotech Index (which we refer to throughout this Compensation Discussion and
Analysis as the "peer group"). Only companies that are U.S.-based or based in jurisdictions with similar compensation disclosure requirements as
U.S. companies were selected for the peer group. Our Compensation Committee believes this is an objective metric by which to select peers.
This selection metric results in a peer group that includes biopharmaceutical and biotechnology companies that are similar to us in terms of
financial performance, shareholder value creation and drug development and commercialization, and generally reflects the universe of
companies from which we recruit, and against which we retain, executive talent. The same peer group methodology was employed in 2011, so
any changes in composition of our peer group resulted from movement of companies into and out of the top 25 based on this methodology.

        The peer group includes the following companies: Alexion Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Amgen, Inc., BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc., Biogen
Idec Inc., Celgene Corporation, Cephalon, Inc., Dendreon
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Corporation, Endo Pharmaceuticals, Gen-Probe Inc., Gilead Sciences, Inc., Human Genome Sciences, Inc., Illumina, Inc., Incyte Corporation,
InterMune, Inc., Life Technologies Corp., Mylan Inc., Onyx Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Perrigo Company, Pharmasset Inc., Regeneron
Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Salix Pharmaceuticals, Ltd., Techne Corporation, Theravance, Inc., Vertex Pharmaceuticals Inc. and Warner Chilcott Ltd.

        While several members of our peer group may be considered substantially larger than our company, it is also true that approximate 33% of
the companies are less than one-third our size in terms of revenue (as of the time the peer group was established), and that our revenue ranking
against the total peer group is twelfth, or in the middle of peers. Furthermore, our Compensation Committee views it as critical to measure
ourselves against industry-leading peers (even if some are much larger than we are) in order to maintain a competitive edge in attracting and
retaining top talent to lead us to continued industry-leading results. It is noteworthy that our commercial products include the most
widely-prescribed pulmonary arterial hypertension therapies in three separate classes: parenteral prostacyclins, inhaled prostacyclins and PDE-5
inhibitors. This success, especially for a relatively smaller company, could not be achieved without the leadership of our top executive talent. In
addition, our commercial products compete with those of much larger companies, including Gilead Sciences Inc., the second largest company in
our peer group in terms of market capitalization. Our commercial products also compete with Actelion Pharmaceuticals Ltd, the largest
biotechnology company in Europe, as well as several of the largest pharmaceutical companies in the world, including as Pfizer Inc.,
GlaxoSmithKline plc, Teva Pharmaceuticals Industries Ltd. and Bayer Schering Pharma AG. The charts below illustrate our ranking within this
peer group with respect to several key metrics (at the time the peer group was established):

Rank Revenue Rank Net Income Rank Market Capitalization
1 Amgen 1 Amgen 1 Amgen
2 Gilead Sciences 2 Gilead Sciences 2 Gilead Sciences
3 Mylan 3 Biogen Idec 3 Celgene
4 Biogen Idec 4 Celgene 4 Biogen Idec
5 Celgene 5 Cephalon 5 Vertex Pharmaceuticals
6 Life Technologies 6 Life Technologies 6 Mylan
7 Warner Chilcott plc 7 Mylan 7 Life Technologies
8 Cephalon 8 Perrigo Company 8 Alexion Pharmaceuticals
9 Perrigo Company 9 Endo Pharmaceuticals 9 Illumina
10 Endo Pharmaceuticals 10 BioMarin Pharmaceutical 10 Perrigo Company
11 Illumina 11 Warner Chilcott plc 11 Warner Chilcott plc
12 United Therapeutics 12 Illumina 12 Dendreon
13 Alexion Pharmaceuticals 13 InterMune 13 Cephalon
14 Gen-Probe 14 Techne 14 Human Genome Sciences
15 Regeneron Pharmaceuticals 15 Gen-Probe 15 Endo Pharmaceuticals
16 BioMarin Pharmaceutical 16 United Therapeutics 16 Regeneron Pharmaceuticals
17 Salix Pharmaceuticals 17 Alexion Pharmaceuticals 17 United Therapeutics
18 ONYX Pharmaceuticals 18 Salix Pharmaceuticals 18 Gen-Probe
19 Techne 19 Incyte 19 Pharmasset
20 Vertex Pharmaceuticals 20 Pharmasset 20 BioMarin Pharmaceutical
21 Incyte 21 Theravance 21 Techne
22 Human Genome Sciences 22 Regeneron Pharmaceuticals 22 InterMune
23 Dendreon 23 ONYX Pharmaceuticals 23 ONYX Pharmaceuticals
24 InterMune 24 Human Genome Sciences 24 Salix Pharmaceuticals
25 Theravance 25 Dendreon 25 Theravance
26 Pharmasset 26 Vertex Pharmaceuticals 26 Incyte
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Rank Revenue Per Employee Rank Net Income Per Employee Rank Number of Employees
1 Gilead Sciences 1 InterMune 1 Amgen
2 United Therapeutics 2 Gilead Sciences 2 Mylan
3 Warner Chilcott plc 3 Amgen 3 Life Technologies
4 ONYX Pharmaceuticals 4 BioMarin Pharmaceutical 4 Perrigo Company
5 Salix Pharmaceuticals 5 Biogen Idec 5 Biogen Idec
6 Biogen Idec 6 Celgene 6 Celgene
7 Celgene 7 United Therapeutics 7 Gilead Sciences
8 Amgen 8 Techne 8 Cephalon
9 Cephalon 9 Cephalon 9 Endo Pharmaceuticals
10 Incyte 10 Alexion Pharmaceuticals 10 Warner Chilcott plc
11 Alexion Pharmaceuticals 11 Endo Pharmaceuticals 11 Illumina
12 Endo Pharmaceuticals 12 Gen-Probe 12 Vertex Pharmaceuticals
13 Illumina 13 Illumina 13 Dendreon
14 BioMarin Pharmaceutical 14 Warner Chilcott plc 14 Regeneron Pharmaceuticals
15 Mylan 15 Perrigo Company 15 Gen-Probe
16 Gen-Probe 16 Life Technologies 16 Human Genome Sciences
17 Techne 17 Mylan 17 BioMarin Pharmaceutical
18 Perrigo Company 18 Salix Pharmaceuticals 18 Alexion Pharmaceuticals
19 Regeneron Pharmaceuticals 19 Regeneron Pharmaceuticals 19 Techne
20 Life Technologies 20 Incyte 20 United Therapeutics
21 InterMune 21 Dendreon 21 Salix Pharmaceuticals
22 Theravance 22 Human Genome Sciences 22 ONYX Pharmaceuticals
23 Human Genome Sciences 23 ONYX Pharmaceuticals 23 Incyte
24 Vertex Pharmaceuticals 24 Theravance 24 Theravance
25 Dendreon 25 Vertex Pharmaceuticals 25 InterMune
26 Pharmasset 26 Pharmasset 26 Pharmasset
        Our Compensation Committee considered pay program design and individual executive compensation data based on the public filings of
our peer group in the fall of 2011. This information served as an important factor for the 2012 compensation decisions for our Named Executive
Officers described below.

Competitive Pay Positioning

        Our Compensation Committee evaluates our Named Executive Officers' pay competitiveness on a target total direct compensation basis. In
setting 2012 compensation levels, our Compensation Committee generally sought to set Named Executive Officer target total direct
compensation at or above the 75th percentile of our peer group. Target total direct compensation includes annual base salary, target cash
incentive bonus at 100% of opportunity and long-term incentive compensation at either 500,000 stock options (in the case of our Chief
Executive Officer) or 70% of opportunity (in the case of our other Named Executive Officers). Our Compensation Committee targeted at or
above the 75th percentile of the peer group in order to provide highly competitive compensation to retain what it believes is an exceptional
management team and in recognition of our long track record of performing at or near the top of the biotech industry. Individual compensation
targets and actual compensation delivered may vary based on our Compensation Committee's assessment of corporate performance and each
Named Executive Officer's individual performance. We believe these relative targets are particularly appropriate in light of our strong
pay-for-performance compensation structure, where a significantly larger portion of Named Executive Officers' compensation on average is
performance-based, when compared to our peer group (as shown in the chart above under�Overview of our Executive Compensation Program).
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Tally Sheets

        Our Compensation Committee periodically reviews tally sheets for our Named Executive Officers and utilizes them, along with peer group
compensation and performance analyses, in making its compensation decisions. These tally sheets assign dollar amounts to each component of
compensation for our Named Executive Officers, including target total direct compensation, outstanding long-term incentive awards, benefits,
perquisites and potential change in control severance payments. Tally sheets are not used in any formulaic manner to dictate pay decisions, but
rather are used to educate and inform our Compensation Committee regarding the potential value of existing compensation arrangements. Our
Compensation Committee reviewed tally sheets to prepare for its 2012 decisions regarding compensation for our Named Executive Officers.

Other Factors Affecting Compensation Decisions

        In addition to benchmarking and tally sheets, our Compensation Committee also takes into account the financial performance of our
company as well as a variety of other factors, including, among other things, changes in the price of our common stock and individual
achievements (such as management efforts resulting in successful clinical trial results). Based on this information, our Compensation Committee
may make individual adjustments to our Named Executive Officers' compensation accordingly. In addition, our Compensation Committee takes
into account the input of our Chief Executive Officer in determining the compensation levels for the Named Executive Officers other than the
Chief Executive Officer.

 Review of 2012 Executive Compensation

Summary of 2012 Compensation

        The components of our Named Executive Officers' target total direct compensation are base salary and variable compensation, including
cash incentive bonus compensation and long-term incentive compensation. The following table shows our Named Executive Officers' base
salaries and target variable compensation for 2012 and the amount of any increase of such compensation over 2011. The basis for our
Compensation Committee's decisions with respect to each of these components for 2012 is discussed in greater detail below.

 Summary 2012 Target Total Direct Compensation

Executive Officer
2012 Base
Salary

%
Increase
Over
2011
Base
Salary

2012 Cash
Incentive
Bonus
Target
as % of
Base
Salary

Change
in

Cash
Incentive
Bonus
Target
%(1)

2012
Long-Term
Incentive
Award

Target(#)(2)

% Increase
over 2011
Long-Term
Incentive
Award
Target

Martine Rothblatt $ 964,080 3% 100% 0% n/a(3) n/a(3)
John Ferrari $ 526,240 15% 60% 0% 125,000 0%
Roger Jeffs $ 782,000 3% 75% 0% 175,000 0%
Paul Mahon $ 680,200 3% 60% 0% 125,000 0%

(1)
Represents the difference in cash incentive bonus target as a percentage of salary, between 2011 and 2012.

(2)
The long-term incentive bonus opportunity represents the total number of STAP awards for our Named Executive Officers, other than
Dr. Rothblatt, that can potentially be granted based on 2012 performance.
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(3)
Long-term incentive bonus awards for Dr. Rothblatt, if any, are determined at the end of each calendar year in accordance with a
formula set forth in her employment agreement, which takes into account the rise, if any, in our market capitalization each year based
on the average closing price of our common stock for the month of December. For a description of Dr. Rothblatt's long-term incentive
bonus award opportunity, see the narrative under the section entitled Named Executive Officer Employment Agreements�Dr. Rothblatt
following the Grants of Plan-Based Awards in 2012 table below.

Base Salary

        Base salary is the primary fixed element of the compensation packages for our Named Executive Officers. Our Compensation Committee
reviews and establishes base salary levels for our Named Executive Officers each year taking into consideration one or more of the following
four factors, depending on the circumstances: (i) a subjective evaluation of individual performance, including contribution to the advancement of
corporate objectives, impact on financial results, and strategic accomplishments; (ii) our overall performance, financial condition and prospects;
(iii) the annual compensation received by executives holding comparable positions at our peers as described in the section entitled Executive
Compensation Framework above; and (iv) our annual company-wide budget for salary increases.

        In February 2012, our Compensation Committee approved the base salaries for our Named Executive Officers listed in the Summary 2012
Target Total Direct Compensation table above. Each Named Executive Officer other than Mr. Ferrari received a 3% salary increase, consistent
with our company-wide budget for salary increases. Mr. Ferrari's salary was increased by 15% in order to bring his cash compensation closer to
the 60th percentile of chief financial officers of companies in our peer group.

Cash Incentive Bonus Program

        All of our Named Executive Officers participate in our Company-Wide Milestone Incentive Bonus Program, which in 2012 provided
annual cash incentive awards based on the achievement of pre-established goals.

Cash Incentive Bonus Targets

        Each year, our Compensation Committee establishes cash incentive bonus targets for each of our Named Executive Officers, taking into
consideration the same factors as it uses to determine base salaries (other than the company-wide budget for salary increases). For 2012, our
Compensation Committee established cash incentive bonus targets for our Named Executive Officers as a percentage of base salary, as shown in
the Summary 2012 Target Total Direct Compensation table above. Under the Company-Wide Milestone Incentive Bonus Program, the
maximum potential payout equals 110% of these target amounts, and there is no threshold performance level. As a result, Named Executive
Officers can earn between 0 and 110% of their respective cash incentive bonus target, based on achievement of the Milestones (performance
goals). Beginning in 2012, this includes the application of the "Herculean Milestone," in the event the company attains at least 70% of its
Company-Wide Milestones, as follows:

Milestone Attainment Herculean Milestone Addition Total Attainment Range
70% to 79% +4% 74% to 83%
80% to 89% +7% 87% to 96%
90% to 100% +10% 100% to 110%

        Cash incentive bonus targets, as a percentage of base salary, remained unchanged for 2012.
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2012 Milestones

        The Milestones (or performance goals) are generally intended to create company-wide incentives relating to significant corporate
objectives, such as (a) financial performance and growth, (b) research and development programs, manufacturing capabilities and other
operational metrics and goals, and (c) ethical conduct. Our Compensation Committee, in its discretion, may amend our Company-Wide
Milestones and weightings from time to time, to reflect core performance measures for the success of our business and to set goals that translate
most directly into short-, medium- and long-term value growth. The Milestone performance targets are difficult to meet, and require significant
leadership and execution on the part of our Named Executive Officers. Based on these factors, our Compensation Committee established the
following Company-Wide Milestones and weightings for 2012:

2012 Company-Wide Milestone
Percentage of

Award Opportunity
Milestone 1�Cash Profits: Growth in Earnings before Non-Cash Charges of 30% or more in 2012 compared to 2011, as
reported in the company's earnings release, together with further adjustments for extraordinary items, including new
product licenses, acquisitions, project cancellations and royalty buy-outs. Up to 25%
Milestone 2�Financial Growth: Superior financial growth as evidenced by achieving 2012 revenue guidance of
$875 million, plus or minus 5% Up to 25%
Milestone 3�Manufacturing: Adequate manufacturing capabilities, evidenced by a two-year inventory of Remodulin
and Tyvaso Up to 15%
Milestone 4�Research & Development: Conduct of insightful research and development programs, taking into account
regulatory approvals, label extensions and the quantity and quality of trials that support our business goals. Up to 25%
Milestone 5�Ethics: Ethical conduct, evidenced by the absence of any material adverse proceedings involving
compliance issues of an ethical nature. Up to 10%
        Under the terms of the Company-Wide Milestone Program, our Compensation Committee has the authority to award partial credit under
any of the Milestones.
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        For 2012, our Compensation Committee determined that 92% of the Milestones were achieved, in accordance with the following analysis:

Milestone Performance

Goal
Achievement

% (A)
Weighting

(B)

% of Award
Earned
(A × B)

1 2012 Earnings Before Non-Cash Charges, as adjusted for a $31.1 million
insurance recovery, increased by 34% (from $363.3 million to $488.3 million)

100% 25% 25%

2 2012 revenue guidance was fully achieved by recording net revenues for
Remodulin, Tyvaso and Adcirca of $906.1 million

100% 25% 25%

3 Maintained greater than two-year inventory of all strengths of Remodulin and
Tyvaso

100% 15% 15%

4 Failed to secure FDA approval for oral treprostinil during 2012, but the company
made several significant advancements toward regulatory approvals, including:
Ch 14.18 for Neuroblastoma (phase III); Remodulin implantable pump
(phase IV); UV-4 antiviral (preclinical); FREEDOM-EV trial of oral treprostinil
(phase III); and beraprost (phase II/III)

68% 25% 17%

5 No material adverse regulatory proceedings involving compliance issues of an
ethical nature during 2012.

100% 10% 10%

Total 92%

        For Milestone #4, our Compensation Committee determined that it was appropriate to award partial credit equal to the portion of the
performance target actually achieved. Because aggregate Milestone Attainment exceeded 90%, our Compensation Committee also awarded a
Herculean Milestone of 10%, for a total Milestone Attainment level of 102% (applicable to cash bonuses only).

        Accordingly, cash incentive bonus awards earned by our Named Executive Officers and approved by our Compensation Committee for
2012 were as follows:

Executive Officer
2012

Base Salary (A)

2012 Cash
Incentive Bonus
Target as % of
Base Salary (B)

2012 Milestone
Attainment (C)

Total Cash
Incentive

Bonus Earned
(A × B × C)

Martine Rothblatt $ 964,080 100% 102% $ 983,362
John Ferrari $ 526,240 60% 102% $ 322,059
Roger Jeffs $ 782,000 75% 102% $ 598,230
Paul Mahon $ 680,200 60% 102% $ 416,282

Long-Term Incentive Compensation

        Our long-term incentive compensation program is structured to support our pay-for-performance and shareholder alignment objectives. We
currently award performance stock options to Dr. Rothblatt and STAP awards to our other Named Executive Officers (collectively, long-term
incentive awards). These long-term incentive awards provide value to our Named Executive Officers only if our stock price increases from the
date of grant (which benefits all shareholders), and only if each of our Named Executive Officers remains with our company until his or her
awards vest or, in the case of Dr. Rothblatt, until her awards are exercised.
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        Our Compensation Committee believes it is appropriate to consider, but not emphasize, the fair value of the long-term target opportunity
because the meaningful incentive in long-term incentive compensation for our Named Executive Officers lies not in the accounting values of
performance-based stock options and STAP awards but rather in the potential for appreciation in our stock price. In this regard, while we report
the grant date fair values of our performance stock options and STAP awards used for financial reporting purposes in the Summary
Compensation Table and Grants of Plan-Based Awards in 2012 table below, our Named Executive Officers may never realize these amounts.
Our Named Executive Officers realize compensation from their stock options and STAP awards only to the extent they have the opportunity to
exercise such grants at a time when the price of our common stock exceeds the awards' exercise prices.

        Incentive STAP awards, which are granted to our Named Executive Officers other than Dr. Rothblatt, convey the right to receive an amount
in cash equal to the positive difference between the exercise price (which equals the closing price of our common stock on the date of grant) and
the closing price of our common stock on the date of exercise. The purpose of the STAP is to mimic the economic features of traditional stock
options, thereby linking the interests and rewards of our Named Executive Officers and other STAP participants to those of our shareholders; but
they are settled in cash only. Since November 2009, STAP awards granted to our Named Executive Officers partially vest in one-fourth
increments on each of the first four anniversaries of the grant date. STAP awards are granted on an annual basis, and generally expire within
10 years from the date of grant, subject to earlier expiration upon termination of employment with us. The Committee views strictly time-based
vesting of STAP awards as appropriate for our Named Executive Officers other than Dr. Rothblatt, given that the Committee takes into
consideration aggregate attainment of our Company-Wide Milestones as a significant factor in determining the size of STAP award and given
that the future realizable value of these awards will be based on increases in our stock price, mirroring an increase in value to our shareholders.
In the case of 2012, payout levels precisely mirrored this performance-based metric. Given the heavy influence of this performance-based factor
on grant levels, the Committee does not believe a further performance-based condition for vesting would be necessary.

        Our Named Executive Officers other than Dr. Rothblatt received a STAP award in March 2012, relating to performance for the full year
2011, and a STAP award in March 2013, relating to performance during the full year 2012. Long-term incentive awards for Dr. Rothblatt are
granted, if earned, at the end of the year under the terms set forth in her employment agreement.

CEO Long-Term Incentive Award (Performance-Based Stock Option Award)

        In accordance with the terms of her employment agreement, Dr. Rothblatt is eligible to receive an annual award of performance-based stock
options under our EIP to purchase the number of shares of our common stock that is equal to one-eighteenth of one percent of the increase in our
market capitalization each year based on the average closing price of our common stock for the month of December. The exercise price of such
stock options, if any, is equal to or greater than the closing price of one share of our common stock on December 31st of each year. Prior to grant,
our Compensation Committee, with Dr. Rothblatt's consent, may reduce the number of stock options awarded under this contractual formula.
These stock options, if any, are granted on December 31st of each year and are fully exercisable on the date of grant. In addition, Dr. Rothblatt's
option grant may not exceed 1,000,000 shares in any given year, pursuant to the terms of our EIP. For 2012, based on the formula set forth in her
employment agreement (with no reduction), Dr. Rothblatt was awarded 153,225 stock options based solely on the increase in our market
capitalization in December 2012 compared to December 2011.

        Our Compensation Committee believes that the structure of Dr. Rothblatt's long-term incentive compensation is well designed to pay for
performance and align Dr. Rothblatt's interests with those of our shareholders. In calendar years in which our market capitalization increases,
Dr. Rothblatt receives
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long-term incentive compensation in proportion to the increase; however, because the exercise price of these options is the closing stock price on
the date of grant, our stock price must increase further in order for Dr. Rothblatt to recognize any value from these stock options. In calendar
years in which our market capitalization decreases, Dr. Rothblatt receives no long-term incentive award under her employment agreement and
her outstanding stock options suffer a decrease that approximates the decrease in our market capitalization, thus limiting the realizable value of
outstanding awards. This long-term incentive arrangement is embedded in Dr. Rothblatt's employment agreement, and over the past ten years
our Compensation Committee has not wavered from the application of the contractual formula. That is, even in years when Dr. Rothblatt earned
zero shares (which has happened three times in the last ten years), or a modest number of options, the Compensation Committee has not made a
discretionary equity grant to Dr. Rothblatt.

        Our Compensation Committee also views immediate vesting of the CEO stock option award at grant as appropriate in light of the fact that
the award is a function of a purely performance-based formula, and therefore the performance-based "condition" for this element of her
compensation has already been achieved in order for her to receive an award. This approach is similar to that of other biotech companies that
award contingent, performance-based equity at the beginning of an established performance period, and grant fully vested shares at the end of
the period, subject to achievement of specified performance goals. In our case, the performance period is our fiscal year, the performance metric
is growth in market capitalization over the performance period, and the ultimate grant (if any) at the end of the performance period is equal to
one eighteenth of one percent of such growth in market capitalization. However, unlike other biotech companies that typically grant fully vested
shares of stock at the end of the performance period, Dr. Rothblatt's arrangement provides for the grant of an option (to the extent earned) with
an exercise price equal to our stock price at the end of the year. Thus, there is an additional, inherent performance factor as compared to most
other companies because the stock price must increase further after the date of grant to produce any actual value.

        The following chart illustrates the impact of changes in our market capitalization on the value of Dr. Rothblatt's annual stock option grant
(as a percentage of the increase in market capitalization) during the last ten years. Despite significant changes in market capitalization growth
year-over-year during the ten-year period, the grant value of Dr. Rothblatt's stock options as a percentage of this change in market capitalization
has remained relatively steady, other than those years in which she earned no award at all.
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 Annual Change in Market Cap and CEO Annual Grant Value as a Percent of
Change in Market Cap(1),(2)

(1)
Reflects the percentage increase in market capitalization during the relevant year, calculated in accordance with Dr. Rothblatt's
employment agreement.

(2)
The value of Dr. Rothblatt's stock options as a percentage of the change in market cap represents aggregate grant date fair value,
computed in accordance with applicable accounting standards from 2006 to 2012 (as reported in our proxy statement for the relevant
year), divided by the change in our market cap for the relevant year. For stock options granted from 2003 to 2005 (before companies
were required to expense the fair value of stock options or report them in proxy statements), fair values are estimated based on the
Black-Scholes assumptions reported in the relevant Form 10-K with respect to expected volatility, dividend yield and risk free interest
rate, and an expected term of five years, which since 2006 approximates the expected term of stock options which vest immediately
upon grant.
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        The following chart illustrates the cumulative increase in our market capitalization over the last ten years, the cumulative grant value of
Dr. Rothblatt's stock option grants over this period of time, and the actual value realized plus gains associated with unexercised stock options as
of December 31, 2012. Over the last ten years, Dr. Rothblatt's actual realized and realizable pay from stock grants totalled approximately
$61.3 million, while shareholders have enjoyed an approximately $2.25 billion increase in market capitalization.

 2003-12 Total Change in Market Cap, CEO Option Grant Value and CEO Realized & Unrealized Gains (in $000s)

        Of the approximately 3.8 million stock options Dr. Rothblatt has been granted since the beginning of 2003 (as adjusted for our 2009 stock
split), she exercised less than one-third of the options, which demonstrates her positive view of the long-term growth prospects of our company
despite the immediate vesting of these awards upon grant. In addition to the approximately 2.6 million vested stock options she held as of
December 31, 2012, she also held 709,769 outright shares of our common stock, as shown on the table in the section of this Proxy Statement
entitled Beneficial Ownership of Common Stock. Given these facts, and given that immediate vesting of Dr. Rothblatt's stock options is required
pursuant to her binding employment agreement, our Compensation Committee believes that Dr. Rothblatt is already appropriately incentivized
to maximize shareholder value without the need for an extended vesting period for her stock options.
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Non-CEO Long-Term Incentive Award (Performance-Based STAP Awards)

        Our Compensation Committee sets the long-term incentive targets for Mr. Ferrari, Dr. Jeffs and Mr. Mahon each year. Our Compensation
Committee does not have a set benchmark or formula for setting the long-term incentive award target for these individuals. It reviews and
establishes long-term incentive target opportunities based on several factors, including: (i) the fair value of the long-term target opportunity in
relation to our peer group (i.e., at or above the 75th percentile of our peer group); (ii) past grant levels; (iii) individual and company performance;
and (iv) the potential gain to be realized from these awards based on the appreciation in the price of our common stock.

        The 2012 long-term incentive targets are shown in the Summary 2012 Target Total Direct Compensation table above, are unchanged from
2011 and represent the maximum potential long-term incentive award each Named Executive Officer can receive in relation to 2012
performance. The Committee approves actual awards annually taking into consideration: (i) our overall performance, financial condition and
prospects, including accomplishments under our Company-Wide Milestone Incentive Bonus Program; and (ii) a subjective evaluation of
individual performance, including contribution to the advancement of corporate objectives, impact on financial results, and strategic
accomplishments.

        For the 2012 performance year, our Compensation Committee approved STAP awards to Mr. Ferrari, Dr. Jeffs and Mr. Mahon that were
granted on March 15, 2013. Each award was equal to 92% of the individual's target as shown below:

2012 Long-Term Incentive Award
(Granted on March 15, 2013)

Executive Officer

Long-Term Incentive
Award Opportunity

(#) (A)

Earned Award as %
of

2012 Long-Term
Incentive Target (B)

Long-Term Incentive
Award Earned
(#) (A × B)

John Ferrari 125,000 92% 115,000
Roger Jeffs 175,000 92% 161,000
Paul Mahon 125,000 92% 115,000

        In determining the number of STAP awards earned, our Compensation Committee considered the company's overall performance, placing
heavy weight on the attainment of 92% of the Company-Wide Milestones for 2012. It also conducted a subjective review of individual
performance, and determined that each Named Executive Officer's efforts played a major role in the company's 92% Milestone achievement
level and therefore awarded them each 92% of their long-term incentive target. In particular, Mr. Ferrari's management of the accounting and
financial functions led to continued achievement of unqualified audit opinions, as well as excellent control over expenses, which helped us
achieve net income and net income per employee above the 90th percentile of our peer group. He also managed the company's continuing share
repurchase programs, returning $188.0 million in value to our shareholders through repurchases. Dr. Jeffs' management of our sales force was
critical to achieving record revenues and earnings before non-cash charges. He also managed the company's response to a difficult FDA decision
regarding oral treprostinil, by quickly resubmitting our new drug application, and launching a new phase III trial of oral treprostinil. His
management of our manufacturing operation, including upgrades to our inventory management system and management of outside vendors of
critical supply, resulted in a continually robust supply of drug product. Mr. Mahon managed a variety of compliance initiatives critical to
achieving full credit for the ethics component of our Company-Wide Milestones for 2012, and a growing in-house legal staff which, among
other things, actively negotiates contracts that are critical to our commercial, clinical and manufacturing successes. He successfully led the
negotiation of several significant strategic transactions, including the in-license of the TransCon technology for injectable treprostinil and
beraprost.
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 Other Executive Compensation Policies and Practices

Long-Term Incentive Awards Grant Timing Policy

        Beginning with the 2011 performance period, long-term incentive awards are paid annually on or about March 15th of the year following
the end of the relevant performance period, with the first such annual award having been paid on March 15, 2012. In the past, long-term
incentive awards have typically been granted to our Named Executive Officers and all other employees other than our Chief Executive Officer
on a semi-annual basis on March 15th and September 15th of each year.

        Our long-term incentive award grant timing is designed so that awards are granted after the market has had an opportunity to react to our
announcement of annual earnings. We also believe this timing helps us avoid broad internal communication of highly confidential financial
results prior to public announcement of our annual financial results. All long-term incentive awards granted to our Named Executive Officers
and other employees have an exercise price equal to the closing price for our common stock on the NASDAQ on the date of grant or, if the
award is granted on a date when the NASDAQ is not open, it has an exercise price equal to the closing price of our common stock on the
NASDAQ on the preceding trading day.

        Long-term incentive awards for our Named Executive Officers other than our Chief Executive Officer for 2011, as discussed in our 2012
Proxy Statement, were granted on March 15, 2012, and these awards are shown in the Summary Compensation Table and the tables thereafter.
Awards granted on March 15, 2013 for the full-year 2012 are not shown in the Summary Compensation Table and the tables thereafter, in
accordance with SEC disclosure rules. These awards will be included in these tables in our 2014 Proxy Statement.

        The long-term incentive award for our Chief Executive Officer, if earned, is granted in accordance with the formula set forth in her
employment agreement once each year on December 31st, or the preceding Friday if such date falls on a weekend.

        In July 2012, our Compensation Committee approved a new timing policy with respect to the issuance of STAP awards, stock options and
other equity-linked awards, effective beginning in 2013. Under this new timing policy, awards may be granted on the following pre-set dates
each year: (1) January 2 (or the following trading day, if markets are closed that day); (2) March 15 (or the preceding trading day, if markets are
closed that day); (3) the date of our Annual Meeting of Shareholders (which, for 2013, will take place on June 26); (4) September 15 (or the
preceding trading day, if markets are closed that day); and (5) December 31. Awards may also be granted on other dates in light of significant
personnel events such as new hires, promotions, new directorships, appointments to board committees and the achievement of significant
corporate objectives. This schedule contemplates the standard annual grants of STAP awards to our Named Executive Officers on March 15, and
stock options to our Chief Executive Officer on December 31, but provides the Committee the flexibility to grant awards on certain other pre-set
dates each year.

Benefits and Perquisites

        The benefits offered to our Named Executive Officers are substantially the same as those offered to all employees, with the exception of the
supplemental executive retirement plan (SERP) discussed in the section entitled Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan below. We provide a
tax-qualified retirement plan (a 401(k) plan) and medical and other benefits to executives that are generally available to other full-time
employees. Under our 401(k) plan, all employees are permitted to contribute up to the maximum amount allowable under applicable law
(i.e., $17,000 in 2012 or $22,500 for eligible participants who are age 50 or older). We make matching contributions equal to 40% of eligible
employee contributions with such matching contributions vesting 331/3% per year based on years of service, not the amount of time an employee
has participated in the 401(k) plan. Therefore, once an
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employee completes three years of service, his or her account is fully vested and any future matching funds will vest immediately. The 401(k)
plan and other generally available benefits programs allow us to remain competitive for executive talent. We also provide limited perquisites to
our Named Executive Officers, including participation in either our vehicle lease program, which covers the monthly lease payment and cost of
insurance and maintenance on vehicles, or a monthly car allowance of $600. Our Compensation Committee believes that the availability of these
benefit programs generally enhances executive recruitment, retention, productivity and loyalty to us.

        For additional details on certain benefits and perquisites received by our Named Executive Officers, see the Summary Compensation Table
below.

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

        We maintain our SERP for select executives to enhance the long-term retention of individuals who have been and will continue to be vital
to our success. Currently, only our Named Executive Officers and five other members of senior management participate in the SERP. The SERP
provides each participant with a lifetime annual payment after retirement (or at his or her election, a lump-sum payment) of up to 100% of final
average three year gross salary, less estimated social security benefit, provided that he or she is employed by us or one of our affiliates until age
60. Participants in the SERP are prohibited from competing with us or soliciting our employees for a period of twelve months following his or
her termination of employment (or, if earlier upon attainment of age 65). Violation of this covenant will result in forfeiture of all benefits under
the SERP.

        Additional details regarding the SERP, including provisions in connection with a participant's death or disability or change in control of our
company, are provided under the Pension Benefits in 2012 table below.

Post-Employment Obligations for Named Executive Officers

        Each of our Named Executive Officers is eligible for certain severance payments in the event his or her employment terminates under
specified circumstances, including in connection with a change in control, as provided in their employment agreements as well as the SERP, the
EIP and the STAP. These payments vary based on the type of termination but may include cash severance, stock option and STAP vesting
acceleration, SERP vesting acceleration, and/or continuation of health and other benefits.

        Our Compensation Committee approved these arrangements in order to promote the loyalty and productivity of our Named Executive
Officers and to align executive and shareholder interests by enabling executives to consider corporate transactions that are in the best interests of
our shareholders and other constituents of our company without undue concern about whether the transaction may jeopardize their employment.
Our Compensation Committee wants our Named Executive Officers to be free to think creatively and promote the best interests of our company
without worrying about the impact of those decisions on their employment. No amendments were made to any of our Named Executive Officers'
employment agreements in 2012.

        Details regarding severance and change in control arrangements for our Named Executive Officers are contained in the text following the
Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control table below.

Prohibition Against Hedging

        Pursuant to our insider trading policy, directors, officers and employees are prohibited from, among other things, purchasing our securities
on margin, engaging in "short" sales of our common
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stock, or buying or selling puts, calls, futures contracts or other forms of derivative securities relating to our securities.

Stock Ownership Guidelines

        As noted above under Board of Directors, Committees, Corporate Governance�Stock Ownership Guidelines, our Board has adopted Stock
Ownership Guidelines applicable to our directors and Named Executive Officers. Our Board adopted Stock Ownership Guidelines to further
align the financial interests of our directors and Named Executive Officers with those of our shareholders, to foster a long-term management
orientation, and to promote sound corporate governance. Our Stock Ownership Guidelines set targets for each Named Executive Officer
according to the lesser of a multiple of base salary or fixed number of shares of common stock as follows:

Title of Individual Ownership Target
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Lesser of 6x base salary or

100,000 shares
President and Chief Operating Officer Lesser of 3x base salary or 40,000

shares
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer Lesser of 3x base salary or 20,000

shares
Executive Vice President and General
Counsel

Lesser of 3x base salary or 30,000
shares

        In determining ownership levels for each Named Executive Officer, credit is provided for shares held outright, as well as the number of
vested, but unexercised, stock options and STAP awards. For purposes of vested, unexercised stock options and STAP awards, shares will be
calculated on an "as if exercised" basis, assuming a cashless exercise and net of taxes (using an assumed 35% tax rate). Named executive
officers are expected to achieve their Stock Ownership Guideline target within five years of becoming subject to this policy. The policy provides
procedures for granting exemptions in the case of severe financial hardship. As of April 12, 2013, all of our Named Executive Officers had met
the ownership targets in our Stock Ownership Guidelines or were on track to do so within the allowed time period.

Policy Against Repricing Without Shareholder Approval

        In the past, we have occasionally permitted the repricing or exchange of outstanding stock options or STAP awards that had become
"underwater" as a result of a significant decline in our stock price due to extraordinary events (collectively, "repricings"). These repricings were
conducted without shareholder approval, as permitted by the terms of the relevant plans. We believe these repricings were approved by our
Board of Directors with good reason, and have aided significantly in our efforts to attract, retain and motivate talented employees, directors and
Named Executive Officers. However, in 2011 our Board of Directors adopted a policy against conducting any future repricings without
shareholder approval, which the Board believes is consistent with evolving compensation governance best practices.

Policy Regarding Tax Deductibility of Executive Compensation

        Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code (the Code) generally provides that publicly held companies may not deduct compensation
paid to our Chief Executive Officer and the three other most highly paid executive officers (other than our Chief Financial Officer) that exceeds
$1 million per officer in a calendar year. Compensation that is considered "performance-based compensation" within the meaning of the Code
does not count toward the $1 million limit.

        While our Compensation Committee considers the impact of the tax treatment, the primary factor influencing program design is the support
of business objectives. Generally, whether incentive compensation will be deductible under Section 162(m) of the Code will be a consideration,
but not the decisive consideration, with respect to our Compensation Committee's compensation determinations.
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Accordingly, our Compensation Committee retains flexibility to structure our compensation programs in a manner that is not tax-deductible in
order to achieve a strategic result that our Compensation Committee determines to be more appropriate. For example, awards granted under the
annual cash incentive plan and the STAP do not meet all of the requirements for deductibility under the Code, and therefore may not be
deductible, even though we consider annual cash incentive awards and STAP awards to be based on performance.
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 COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

        The Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis required
by Item 402(b) of Regulation S-K and contained within this Proxy Statement with management and, based on such review and discussions, our
Compensation Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this Proxy
Statement and incorporated into United Therapeutics' Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Submitted by the Compensation Committee:
Christopher Causey (Chair)
R. Paul Gray
Louis Sullivan
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 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

        The following table shows compensation information for 2010, 2011 and 2012 for our Named Executive Officers.

 Summary Compensation Table

Name and Principal Position Year
Salary(1)

($)
Bonus
($)

Option/
STAP

Awards(2)
($)

Non-Equity
Incentive
Plan

Compensation(3)
($)

Change in
Pension
Value and
Nonqualified
Deferred

Compensation
Earnings(4)

($)

All Other
Compensation(5)

($)
Total
($)

Martine Rothblatt 2012 959,579(6) � 3,024,662 983,362 2,964,410 26,315 7,958,328
Chief Executive Officer 2011 931,485 � � 804,960 1,409,730 15,175 3,161,350

2010 874,768 � 14,263,681 900,000 1,526,156 56,203 17,620,808

John Ferrari 2012 514,800 � 2,273,625 332,059 1,636,616 12,640 4,759,740
Chief Financial Officer 2011 463,128(7) � 1,925,375 236,122 763,325 13,440 3,401,390
and Treasurer 2010 437,692 � 3,247,294 250,000 824,298 9,851 4,769,135

Roger Jeffs 2012 778,200 � 3,183,075 598,230 2,231,928 25,126 6,816,559
President and 2011 754,333 � 2,695,525 489,684 819,098 23,900 4,782,540
Chief Operating Officer 2010 725,000 � 4,546,212 550,000 944,919 39,334 6,805,465

Paul Mahon 2012 676,900 � 2,273,625 416,282 1,927,743 14,124 5,308,674
Executive Vice President 2011 656,167 � 1,925,375 340,766 682,551 13,800 3,618,659
and General Counsel 2010 630,000 � 3,247,294 375,000 796,619 13,800 5,062,713

(1)
Increases in base salaries for our Named Executive Officers became effective on March 1, 2012, 2011 and 2010. Therefore, a portion of the base salary
shown for each year reflects the salary level for the previous year.

(2)
Amounts shown represent the aggregate grant date fair value of stock options and STAP awards granted in each reported year, computed in accordance
with applicable accounting standards. For a discussion of valuation assumptions for stock options and STAP awards see Note 10�Stockholders' Equity
and Note 7�Share Tracking Award Plans, respectively, to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the

year ended December 31, 2012. The stock options were awarded under our EIP and the STAP awards were granted under the STAP. See the Grants of
Plan-Based Awards in 2012 table for more information on stock options and STAP awards granted to our Named Executive Officers in 2012.

(3)
Amounts shown for 2012 represent the total cash awards earned by each Named Executive Officer under our Company-Wide Milestone Incentive
Bonus Program for 2012. The payouts were determined based on our attainment of specific, pre-established performance Milestones. For information

on the amounts earned for 2012, see the section entitled Cash Incentive Bonus Compensation in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis above.

(4)
Amounts shown represent the change in the actuarial present value of retirement benefits under the SERP calculated in accordance with GAAP under
SEC requirements. The assumptions used in calculating the change in the actuarial present value of SERP benefits are described in the footnotes to the

Pension Benefits table below. The change in pension value from year to year as reported in the table will vary based on these assumptions and may not
represent the value that a Named Executive Officer will actually accrue or receive under the SERP.

(5)
The amounts shown represent the aggregate incremental cost that can be attributed to lease, insurance and maintenance payments made on vehicles
leased by us and used by a Named Executive Officer or for monthly automobile allowances, travel expenses for family members to our functions
(collectively, the perquisites), and our "matching contributions" under our 401(k) Plan equal to 40% of each participant's qualifying salary
contributions.

(6)
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Our Canadian subsidiary pays a portion of Dr. Rothblatt's total base salary in the amount of 120,000 Canadian dollars. The value of this portion in U.S.
dollars has been estimated for the purposes of disclosure here by using the spot exchange rate on the dates on which Dr. Rothblatt was paid. In 2012,
our Canadian subsidiary paid the equivalent of US$120,179 of Dr. Rothblatt's total base salary.

(7)
Includes $8,462 in accrued but unused vacation time that Mr. Ferrari cashed out in 2011, consistent with our company-wide vacation policy.

45

Edgar Filing: UNITED THERAPEUTICS Corp - Form DEF 14A

58



Table of Contents

 Grants of Plan-Based Awards in 2012

Estimated Future
Payouts

Under Non-Equity
Incentive Plan
Awards(1)

All Other
Option
Awards:
Number

of Securities
Underlying
Options or
STAP

Awards(2)
(#)

Exercise
or

Base Price
of

Option
or STAP
Awards
($/Sh)

Grant Date
Fair Value

of
Option or
STAP

Awards(3)
($)Name Award Type

Grant
Date

Target
($)

Maximum
($)

Martine
Rothblatt Stock Option 12/31/12 153,225 $ 53.42 $ 3,024,662

Milestone
Incentive $ 964,080 $ 1,060,488

John Ferrari STAP 03/15/12 107,500 $ 47.50 $ 2,273,625
Milestone
Incentive $ 315,744 $ 347,318

Roger Jeffs STAP 03/15/12 150,500 $ 47.50 $ 3,183,075
Milestone
Incentive $ 586,500 $ 645,150

Paul Mahon STAP 03/15/12 107,500 $ 47.50 $ 2,273,625
Milestone
Incentive $ 408,120 $ 448,932

(1)
The amounts in these columns represent each Named Executive Officer's cash incentive bonus target and maximum opportunities based on the annual

Company-Wide Milestone Incentive Bonus Program for 2012 described in the section entitled Company-Wide Milestone Incentive Bonus Program in

the Compensation Discussion and Analysis above. Our Company-Wide Milestone Incentive Bonus Program does not have a threshold payout.
Accordingly, no threshold column is shown. Beginning in 2012, maximum payout includes the potential application of the Herculean Milestone. Actual

bonuses earned under the program in 2012 are reported in the Summary Compensation Table under the column entitled "Non-Equity Incentive Plan
Compensation."

(2)
The amounts in this column reflect the number of stock options granted to Dr. Rothblatt pursuant to the formula set forth in her employment agreement
and the number of STAP awards granted to our other Named Executive Officers as long-term incentive awards under our STAP

(3)
For stock options, the grant date fair value is generally the amount that we will recognize as an expense over the award's vesting period, computed in
accordance with applicable accounting standards. For STAP awards, the dollar values in this column reflect the fair value of the awards on the grant
date computed in accordance with applicable accounting standards.

 Narratives to Summary Compensation Table and Grants of Plan-Based Awards in 2012 Table

 Named Executive Officer Employment Agreements

        The material terms of each Named Executive Officer's employment agreement are described below.

Dr. Rothblatt

        In April 1999, we entered into an employment agreement with Dr. Rothblatt. This agreement had been amended from time to time, most
recently in 2004, and we entered into an Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreement with Dr. Rothblatt effective January 1, 2009
in order to clarify the effectiveness of certain prior amendments, and to make certain other immaterial amendments.

        Dr. Rothblatt's employment agreement provides for an initial five-year term, which is automatically extended for additional one-year
periods after each year unless either party gives at least six months' notice of termination. Either party may terminate the agreement at least six
months prior to an annual renewal, which would result in a four-year remaining term.
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        Dr. Rothblatt's compensation in 2012 was paid pursuant to this employment agreement, which entitles her to a minimum base salary of
$180,000, annual cash and long-term incentive bonus compensation and participation in employee benefits generally available to other
executives of our company. The level of Dr. Rothblatt's base salary is subject to annual review and increase by our Compensation Committee.
Her annual salary was last reviewed on January 31, 2013, and beginning
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March 1, 2013, was $1,002,643. Her employment agreement also requires us to pay the cost of leasing, maintaining and insuring an automobile
for Dr. Rothblatt.

        With respect to her annual long-term equity incentive compensation, Dr. Rothblatt's employment agreement provides that she is eligible to
receive an annual award of options to purchase the number of shares of common stock that is equal to one-eighteenth of one percent of the
increase in our market capitalization, calculated using the average closing price for the month of December versus the average measured in
December of the prior year. Our Compensation Committee, with Dr. Rothblatt's consent, may reduce the number of stock options to be granted
in accordance with the formula in her employment agreement. On December 31, 2012, Dr. Rothblatt was awarded 153,225 stock options in
accordance with this formula. To date, all of Dr. Rothblatt's stock options have been awarded pursuant to our EIP, have a term of ten years and
are fully vested and exercisable on the date of grant. The stock options have an exercise price equal to or exceeding the fair market value of our
common stock at the closing price on the NASDAQ on the date of grant. If Dr. Rothblatt is a 10% owner at the time of any grant, the exercise
price will be equal to 110% of the fair market value and the options will be exercisable over five years. The maximum number of shares reserved
as of December 31, 2012 under our EIP for such grants is 10,925,714, and the maximum number of stock options that may be granted to
Dr. Rothblatt in a given year is 1,000,000 (both numbers, as adjusted for our September 2009 two-for-one stock split).

        Dr. Rothblatt's employment agreement prohibits her from engaging in activities competitive with us for five years following termination of
her employment. She will also be subject to a permanent confidentiality obligation. For information regarding severance and change in control
arrangements for Dr. Rothblatt, see the text following the Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control table below.

Mr. Ferrari, Dr. Jeffs and Mr. Mahon

        We have entered into employment agreements with each of Mr. Ferrari, Dr. Jeffs and Mr. Mahon. As amended, the agreements for
Mr. Ferrari, Dr. Jeffs and Mr. Mahon provide for an initial five-year term, which is automatically extended for additional one-year periods after
each year. Either party may terminate the agreement upon 60 days' notice prior to an annual renewal, which would result in a four-year
remaining term. Mr. Ferrari's agreement was entered into on August 2, 2006, Dr. Jeffs' on November 29, 2000 and Mr. Mahon's on June 16,
2001. Mr. Ferrari's agreement provides for an annual base salary of at least $240,000, Dr. Jeffs' agreement provides for an annual base salary of
at least $250,000, and Mr. Mahon's agreement provides for an annual base salary of at least $300,000. The level of each executive's base salary
is subject to annual review and increase by our Compensation Committee. Annual salaries for Mr. Ferrari, Dr. Jeffs and Mr. Mahon were last
reviewed on January 31, 2013, and beginning March 1, 2013, are set at $547,300, $813,300 and $707,400, respectively. Each executive is
eligible to participate in our broad-based employee benefit plans. In accordance with the terms of Dr. Jeffs' employment agreement, we also pay
the cost for leasing, maintaining and insuring an automobile for Dr. Jeffs. Mr. Ferrari and Mr. Mahon each receive a $600 monthly car
allowance.

        Mr. Ferrari's employment agreement also provides his level of annual cash and long-term incentive award target opportunities. The bonus
amounts earned by Mr. Ferrari are ultimately subject to the criteria set forth in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis above. Under his
employment agreement, Mr. Ferrari's annual cash incentive award target opportunity must be equal to at least 35% of his base salary and his
annual long-term incentive bonus target opportunity must be at least 30,000 stock options or STAP awards; provided, however, that the
foregoing long-term incentive award target opportunity is subject to review and adjustment from time to time by our Compensation Committee.
Our Compensation Committee has set Mr. Ferrari's long-term incentive award target opportunity at 125,000 STAP awards.
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        Each of their employment agreements prohibits Mr. Ferrari, Dr. Jeffs and Mr. Mahon from accepting employment, consultancy or any other
business relationships with an entity that directly competes with us or from engaging in the solicitation of our employees on behalf of a
competitor for a period of two years following his last receipt of compensation from us. Each of Mr. Ferrari, Dr. Jeffs and Mr. Mahon is under
an obligation of confidentiality for three years after termination of his employment.

        For information regarding severance and change in control arrangements for these Named Executive Officers, see the text following the
Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control table below.

 Summary of Terms of Plan-Based Awards

Equity Incentive Compensation Plan

        Dr. Rothblatt is eligible to receive an annual award of performance-based stock options to purchase shares of common stock, as described
above under Named Executive Officer Employment Agreements�Dr. Rothblatt.

STAP Awards

        As described in the section entitled Long-Term Incentive Award Compensation in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis above, in
2012 our Named Executive Officers (other than Dr. Rothblatt) were granted STAP awards. Beginning in 2012, these long-term incentive awards
are granted annually, concurrently with the cash incentive bonus awards. The STAP awards convey the right to receive an amount in cash equal
to the positive difference between the exercise price (which equals the closing price of our common stock on the date of grant) and the closing
price of our common stock on the date of exercise. The fair value is based on the closing price of our common stock on the relevant grant date.

        Each STAP award granted before November 2009 vested in one-third increments on the first three anniversaries of the date of grant, while
those granted after November 2009 vest in one-fourth increments on the first four anniversaries of the date of grant, in each case subject to the
Named Executive Officer's continued employment. Each STAP award has a ten-year term. For information regarding acceleration of vesting
upon certain employment termination events, see the text following the Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control table
below.
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 Outstanding Equity Awards at 2012 Fiscal Year-End

        The following table sets forth information regarding unexercised stock options or STAP awards held by each of our Named Executive
Officers as of December 31, 2012.

Option Awards and STAP Awards
Number of Securities

Underlying Unexercised
Options

or STAP Awards

Option or
STAP
Award
Exercise
Price($)(2)

Option or
STAP Award
Expiration

DateName and Grant Date
Award
Type

(#)
Exercisable(1)

(#)
Unexercisable

Martine Rothblatt

12/30/2005
Stock
Option 498,350 � $ 34.56 12/30/2015

12/31/2007(3)
Stock
Option 764,000 � 30.75 12/31/2017

12/31/2009
Stock
Option 625,396 � 52.65 12/31/2019

12/31/2010
Stock
Option 540,861 � 63.22 12/31/2020

12/31/2012
Stock
Option 153,225 � 53.42 12/31/2022

John Ferrari

03/13/2009
STAP
Award 106,250 � $ 33.14 03/13/2019

09/15/2009
STAP
Award 106,250 � 50.09 09/15/2019

03/15/2010
STAP
Award 31,250 31,250 57.15 03/15/2020

09/15/2010
STAP
Award 31,250 31,250 51.37 09/15/2020

03/15/2011
STAP
Award 15,625 46,875 65.80 03/15/2021

03/15/2012
STAP
Award � 107,500 47.50 03/15/2022

Roger Jeffs

12/15/2005(3)
Stock
Option 210,000 � $ 30.75 12/15/2015

03/15/2007
Stock
Option 61,426 � 27.97 03/15/2017

09/14/2007(3)
Stock
Option 124,250 � 30.75 09/14/2017

06/03/2008(4)
STAP
Award 45,750 � 25.315 06/03/2018

09/15/2008(5)
STAP
Award 175,000 � 25.315 09/15/2018

03/13/2009
STAP
Award 140,000 � 33.14 03/13/2019

09/15/2009
STAP
Award 166,250 � 50.09 09/15/2019

03/15/2010
STAP
Award 43,750 43,750 57.15 03/15/2020

09/15/2010
STAP
Award 43,750 43,750 51.37 09/15/2020

03/15/2011
STAP
Award 21,875 65,625 65.80 03/15/2021

03/15/2012 � 150,500 47.50 03/15/2022
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Paul Mahon

12/15/2005(3)
Stock
Option 200,000 � $ 30.75 12/15/2015

09/14/2007(3)
Stock
Option 54,750 � 30.75 09/14/2017

06/03/2008(4)
STAP
Award 11,749 � 25.315 06/03/2018

03/13/2009
STAP
Award 118,750 � 33.14 03/13/2019

09/15/2009
STAP
Award 112,500 � 50.09 09/15/2019

03/15/2010
STAP
Award 31,250 31,250 57.15 03/15/2020

09/15/2010
STAP
Award 31,250 31,250 51.37 09/15/2020

03/15/2011
STAP
Award 15,625 46,875 65.80 03/15/2021

03/15/2012
STAP
Award � 107,500 47.50 03/15/2022

(1)
Stock options and STAP awards granted prior to November 2009 vest in one-third increments on the first three anniversaries of the
date of grant and STAP awards granted after November 2009 vest in one-fourth increments on the first four anniversaries of the date
of grant, assuming continued employment, except for Dr. Rothblatt's stock options, which are fully vested upon grant pursuant to her
employment agreement.

(2)
The exercise price of a stock option or STAP award is the closing price on the NASDAQ of a share of our common stock on the date
of grant. However, outstanding STAP awards were amended on November 24,
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2008, to reduce their exercise price to $50.63 ($25.315 after our September 2009 two-for-one stock split), the closing price of our
common stock on the NASDAQ on that date.

(3)
In November 2008, we commenced an option exchange program with respect to certain outstanding options to purchase shares of our
common stock that had an exercise price per share greater than $65.00 ($32.50 as adjusted for our September 2009 two-for-one stock
split). All of the replacement options were issued when the option exchange program terminated in December 2008, and had an
exercise price of $61.50 ($30.75 as adjusted for our September 2009 two-for-one stock split) per share, representing the closing price
of our common stock, as reported on the NASDAQ, on December 26, 2008. All replacement options were granted under our EIP and
have terms and conditions identical to those contained in the corresponding original option grants.

(4)
Represents a STAP award grant with an original exercise price of $94.06 ($47.03 after our September 2009 two-for-one stock split).
However, outstanding STAP awards were amended on November 24, 2008, to reduce their exercise price to $50.63 ($25.315 after our
September 2009 two-for-one stock split), the closing price of our common stock on the NASDAQ on that date.

(5)
Represents a STAP award grant with an original exercise price of $109.64 ($54.82 after our September 2009 two-for-one stock split).
However, outstanding STAP awards were amended on November 24, 2008, to reduce their exercise price to $50.63 ($25.315 after our
September 2009 two-for-one stock split), the closing price of our common stock on the NASDAQ on that date.

 Option Exercises and Stock Vested in 2012

        The following table shows (i) the number of shares of our common stock acquired upon exercise of stock options, and (ii) the number of
STAP awards exercised by each of our Named Executive Officers during the year ended December 31, 2012.

Option Awards STAP Awards

Name

Number of
Shares Acquired
on Exercise (#)

Value
Realized

on Exercise ($)(1)

Number of
STAP Awards
Exercised (#)

Value
Realized on

Exercise ($)(1)
Martine Rothblatt � $ � � $ �
John Ferrari � $ � 150,050 $ 4,143,734
Roger Jeffs 3,574 $ 71,837 65,000 $ 1,893,275
Paul Mahon � $ � 196,501 $ 5,284,538

(1)
Represents the difference between the exercise price of the stock options or STAP award and the fair market value of our common
stock on the date of exercise, multiplied by the number of options or STAP awards exercised. STAP awards convey the right to receive
an amount in cash equal to the positive difference between the exercise price and the closing price of our common stock on the date of
exercise.
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 Pension Benefits in 2012

        The table below describes the present value of the accumulated benefit for our Named Executive Officers under the SERP:

Name
Plan
Name

Number of
Years of
Credited
Service(1)

Present Value of
Accumulated
Benefit ($)(2)

Martine Rothblatt SERP 15.0 $ 13,759,072
John Ferrari SERP 11.6 $ 5,246,032
Roger Jeffs SERP 14.3 $ 8,795,964
Paul Mahon SERP 11.5 $ 7,132,492

(1)
Reflects number of years (up to the maximum of 15 years under the terms of the SERP) since each Named Executive Officer
commenced employment with us.

(2)
For a discussion of valuation assumptions, see Note 13�Employee Benefit Plans�Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan to our
Consolidated Financial Statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012. The present
value of accumulated benefits calculation includes non-service- related benefits; that is, it assumes continued service until participants
reach age 60. The present value is based on accumulated benefits projected at age 60 based on earnings at December 31, 2012, without
reflecting the age 62 social security offset. A discount rate of 3.36% is used and assumes no pre-retirement death, disability or
termination.

 Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

        In 2006, our Compensation Committee approved our SERP, which is a non-qualified supplemental defined benefit retirement plan for
select key executives to enhance the long-term retention of individuals that have been and will continue to be vital to our success. Participants in
the SERP generally must remain in the employ of our company or one of its affiliates until age 60 to receive a benefit except in the event of
death, disability or a change in control of our company. If a participant terminates employment with us for any reason prior to age 60 (other than
due to death or disability or following a change of control), no benefit will be paid. The benefit to be paid under the plan is based on when an
executive commenced participation in the plan. In general, a participant will be eligible for an unreduced benefit under the plan after 15 years of
service. Upon a change-in-control before a participant reaches age 60, he or she will immediately vest in and receive a prorated benefit based on
years of service to date.

        The SERP is administered by our Compensation Committee. Currently, our Named Executive Officers and five other key employees are
designated to participate in the SERP. Drs. Rothblatt and Jeffs and Mr. Mahon are all eligible, upon retirement after the age of 60, to receive
monthly payments equal to the monthly average of the total gross base salary received by the participant over his or her last 36 months of active
employment (the Final Average Compensation), reduced by the participant's estimated social security benefit (determined as provided under the
SERP), for the remainder of the participant's life (the aggregate amount of such payments, the Normal Retirement Benefit), commencing on the
first day of the sixth month after retirement. For executives who began participating in the plan after July 1, 2006, including Mr. Ferrari, the
retirement benefit is generally calculated as 100% of the final three-year average gross base salary reduced by the estimated social security
benefit they would receive in retirement, multiplied by a fraction (not to exceed 1) the numerator of which is their years of service and the
denominator of which is 15 (the Normal Retirement Benefit). This means that for participants who have less than 15 years of service with us, the
retirement benefit is prorated by the number of years of actual service divided by 15 years. By age
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60, all of the current participants except Mr. Ferrari will have had 15 years of service if they remain employed by us. In the event of termination
of employment due to disability prior to the age of 60 or death prior to retirement, a participant or the participant's beneficiary, as applicable,
will be entitled to a percentage of the Normal Retirement Benefit, as determined under the SERP (the aggregate amount of such payments
referred to as the Disability Retirement Benefit), commencing on the first day of the sixth month after termination of employment in the event of
a Disability and as soon as administratively practicable in the event of death. All of our Named Executive Officers have elected to receive their
benefit in the form of a lump sum, although they were also offered a choice of a single life annuity or an actuarially equivalent joint or survivor
annuity.

        In the event of a change in control, as defined in the SERP, a participant who is actively employed on the date of the change in control will
be entitled to a lump sum payment equal to the actuarial equivalent present value of a monthly single life annuity equal to (1) the participant's
Final Average Compensation, reduced by the participant's estimated future social security benefit (determined as provided under the SERP),
multiplied by (2) a fraction (no greater than one), the numerator of which equals the participant's years of service and the denominator of which
equals 15, to be paid as soon as administratively practicable following the change in control. In the event that a participant is entitled to a
Normal Retirement Benefit or Disability Retirement Benefit at the time of a change in control, all such payments (or any remaining payments,
with respect to any participant who is receiving payments under the SERP at the time of the change in control) will be made in a lump sum as
soon as administratively practicable following such change in control.

        Participants in the SERP will be prohibited from competing with us or soliciting its employees for a period of twelve months following his
or her termination of employment (or, if earlier upon attainment of age 65). Violation of this covenant will result in forfeiture of all benefits
under the SERP.

        No payments were made under the SERP in 2012. In addition, see the section entitled Severance and Change in Control Payments to the
Chief Executive Officer below for a description of potential additional years of service to be awarded to Dr. Rothblatt pursuant to her
employment agreement. There are no other supplementary service recognition or benefit enhancement provisions for our Named Executive
Officers.

 Rabbi Trust

        In December 2007, our Compensation Committee adopted the United Therapeutics Corporation Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan
Rabbi Trust Document (Rabbi Trust Document), providing for the establishment of a trust (Rabbi Trust), the assets of which will be contributed
by us and used to pay benefits under the SERP. The Rabbi Trust Document was entered into between our company and Wilmington Trust
Company, which will serve as trustee of the Rabbi Trust. The Rabbi Trust is irrevocable, and SERP participants will have no preferred claim on,
nor any beneficial ownership interest in, any assets of the Rabbi Trust.

        Generally, we may contribute additional assets to the Rabbi Trust at our sole discretion. However, pursuant to the terms of the Rabbi Trust
Document, within five days following the occurrence of a potential change in control (as defined in the Rabbi Trust Document), or if earlier, at
least five days prior to the occurrence of a change in control (as defined in the Rabbi Trust Document), we will be obligated to make an
irrevocable contribution to the Rabbi Trust in an amount sufficient to pay each SERP participant or beneficiary the benefits to which they would
be entitled pursuant to the terms of the SERP on the date on which the change in control occurred. The Rabbi Trust will not terminate until the
date on which SERP participants or their beneficiaries are no longer entitled to benefits pursuant to the terms of the SERP.
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Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control

        Each of our Named Executive Officers is eligible to receive certain payments and benefits if his or her employment is involuntarily
terminated without "Cause", terminated by the executive for "Good Reason", terminated by the executive voluntarily with continued status as a
"Senior Advisor" to us, terminated due to disability or death, or terminated in connection with a "Change in Control" (each such term, as defined
in the Named Executive Officer's employment agreement, the SERP, our EIP and related stock option agreements, and the STAP and related
award agreements) of our company in accordance with the applicable terms of their respective employment agreements, the SERP, our EIP and
related stock option agreements, and the STAP and related award agreements, as reported in the Potential Payments Upon Termination or
Change in Control table below and described in the narrative table that follows. The summary of these benefits is qualified in its entirety by the
specific language of the various agreements and plans that have been filed with the SEC. The amounts shown in the Potential Payments Upon
Termination or Change in Control table below are estimates of the value of these payments and benefits, assuming that such termination was
effective as of December 31, 2012. The actual compensation to be paid to a Named Executive Officer can only be determined at the time such
Named Executive Officer's employment is terminated and may vary based on factors such as the timing during the year of any such event, the
company's stock price, the executive officer's age, and any changes to our benefit arrangements and policies. In addition to the benefits described
below, our Named Executive Officers will be eligible to receive any benefits accrued under our broad-based benefit plans, such as distributions
under life insurance and disability benefit plans and accrued vacation pay.
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Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control

Executive Benefits and
Payments Upon Separation

Involuntary
Termination

Without Cause/
Resignation
for Good
Reason/

Resignation
While

Continuing as
Senior Advisor Disability(1) Death(1)

Termination
upon a

Change in
Control

Change In
Control
without

Termination of
Employment

Martine Rothblatt
Salary and bonus $ 6,290,482 $ 983,362 $ 983,362 $ 6,290,482 $ �
Stock option vesting acceleration(2) � � � � �
Supplemental Executive Retirement
Plan 10,478,303(3) 12,264,680 8,292,076 13,731,086 13,731,086
Health and other benefits(4) 159,517 � � 159,517 �
Excise tax gross-up(5) � � � � �

Total $ 16,928,302 $ 13,248,042 $ 9,275,438 $ 20,181,085 $ 13,731,086

John Ferrari
Salary and bonus 1,696,598 $ 322,059 $ 322,059 $ 1,696,598 $ �
STAP award vesting acceleration(2) 700,463 700,463 700,463 700,463 700,463
Supplemental Executive Retirement
Plan � 5,260,301 3,524,829 5,260,301 5,260,301

Total $ 2,397,061 $ 6,282,823 $ 4,547,351 $ 7,657,362 $ 5,960,764

Roger Jeffs
Salary and bonus $ 2,760,460 $ 598,230 $ 598,230 $ 2,760,460 $ �
STAP award vesting acceleration(2) 980,648 980,648 980,648 980,648 980,648
Supplemental Executive Retirement
Plan � 5,402,304 3,840,366 8,281,999 8,281,999

Total $ 3,741,108 $ 6,981,182 $ 5,491,244 $ 12,023,107 $ 9,262,647

Paul Mahon
Salary and bonus $ 2,192,964 $ 416,282 $ 416,282 $ 2,192,964 $ �
STAP award vesting acceleration(2) 700,463 700,463 700,463 700,463 700,463
Supplemental Executive Retirement
Plan � 3,674,090 2,404,274 5,429,496 5,429,496

Total $ 2,893,427 $ 4,790,835 $ 3,521,019 $ 8,322,923 $ 6,129,959

(1)
Based on the cash incentive bonus awards paid in March 2013.

(2)
The value shown is based on the positive difference between the aggregate exercise price of all accelerated stock options and/or STAP
awards and the aggregate market value of the underlying shares calculated based on the closing market price of our common stock on
December 31, 2012, $53.42.

(3)

Edgar Filing: UNITED THERAPEUTICS Corp - Form DEF 14A

69



Represents the estimated present value at December 31, 2012 of the retirement benefit payable under Dr. Rothblatt's employment
agreement when she reaches age 65 (including credit for three additional years of service). While this benefit is not provided by the
SERP itself, the retirement benefits would be calculated in accordance with similar inputs and assumptions as those used for the SERP.

(4)
Represents the estimated value of continued health care benefits for a three-year period after termination, outplacement services for
12 months and the fair value of one currently leased vehicle.

(5)
Upon a change in control, compensation and benefits in excess of three times compensation may be subject to a non-deductible 20%
excise tax under section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code. Dr. Rothblatt is entitled to a gross-up of this tax under her employment
agreement. Based on the assumptions underlying the calculations in the table above, Dr. Rothblatt is not subject to this excise and thus,
no gross-up would be provided.
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Severance and Change in Control Payments to Named Executive Officers

Provision Terms Applicable to CEO
Terms Applicable to Named Executive Officers

other than CEO
Payments Upon either
(i) Involuntary
Termination without
Cause, (ii) Resignation for
Good Reason, or
(iii) Resignation while
Continuing as Senior
Advisor

�

Lump sum prorated bonus and incentive payment*

�

Lump sum payment equal to 3.0 times base
salary + 3.0 times annual cash incentive bonus*

�

Continuation of health care benefits for 36 months,
outplacement services for 12 months and the
transfer of one currently leased vehicle

�

Lump sum payment of SERP benefits, plus
additional retirement benefits at age 65 with credit
for three additional years of service

�

Gross-up of excise tax (if any) under section 280G
of the Internal Revenue Code.

�

Lump sum payment equal to greater of: (a) base
salary through remainder of agreement term, or
(b) 2.0 times base salary + 2.0 times annual cash
incentive bonus

�

Immediate vesting of unvested stock options and
STAP awards

Payments Upon Disability �

Continued payment of current base salary through
the end of the calendar year following such death or
disability

�

Accrued but unpaid cash incentive bonus

�

Acceleration of SERP benefits, calculated as
described above under Supplemental Executive
Retirement Plan

�

Immediate vesting of unvested stock options and
STAP awards

�

Acceleration of SERP benefits, calculated as
described above under Supplemental Executive
Retirement Plan

Payments Upon Death � �
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Accrued but unpaid cash incentive bonus

�

Acceleration of SERP benefits, calculated as
described above under Supplemental Executive
Retirement Plan

Immediate vesting of unvested stock options and
STAP awards

�

Acceleration of SERP benefits

Payments Upon Change in
Control without
Termination

�

Acceleration of SERP benefits, calculated as
described above under Supplemental Executive
Retirement Plan

�

Immediate vesting of unvested stock options and
STAP awards

�

Acceleration of SERP benefits, calculated as
described above under Supplemental Executive
Retirement Plan

Payments Upon
Termination Following
Change in Control

�

Same as Payments Upon Involuntary Termination,
etc., except that payment of SERP benefits occurs
immediately, and is calculated as described above
under Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

�

Gross-up payment for any Internal Revenue Code
Section 280G excise tax liability

�

Same as Payments Upon Involuntary Termination,
etc.

�

Acceleration of SERP benefits, calculated as
described above under Supplemental Executive
Retirement Plan

*
Payment is equal to greater of payment for the prior year, or the average of such payments for the prior two years.
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        As used in the table above, the following terms are generally defined as follows:

Cause:

�
In the case of Dr. Rothblatt, her willful and continued failure to substantially perform her duties, or willfully engaging in
gross misconduct that is materially injurious to us.

�
In the case of the other Named Executive Officers, (i) failure to perform any of the material terms or provisions of his
employment agreement; (ii) negligent or unsatisfactory performance of duties, after notice and the opportunity to correct
such performance; (iii) employment- or profession- related misconduct; (iv) conviction of a crime involving a felony, fraud
or embezzlement; or (v) misappropriation of our funds or misuse of assets.

Good Reason:

�
In the case of Dr. Rothblatt, without her consent, the occurrence of any of the following: (i) the assignment of any duties that
are inconsistent with her position as Chief Executive Officer; (ii) a material adverse change in her reporting responsibilities,
titles or offices; (iii) failure to re-elect her to any position she held with us; (iv) a reduction in her base salary or failure to
increase her salary consistent with certain other executive salary increases; (v) relocation of 25 miles or more or additional
substantially more burdensome travel requirements; (vi) failure to continue her as a participant in any bonus or other
incentive plans in which she was participating; (vii) failure to keep in effect certain benefit plans and arrangements;
(viii) failure to obtain a successor entity's assumption of the agreement; (ix) failure to abide by certain provisions in the
agreement; or (x) any other material breach of the employment agreement.

�
In the case of the other Named Executive Officers, his authority and responsibilities being materially diminished without
cause.

        Change in Control:    Transfer of control of our company (generally, as a result of an acquisition, merger, hostile takeover or any other
reason).

 Changes to Milestones for 2013

        In January 2013, our Compensation Committee approved the Company-Wide Milestone metrics and weightings for 2013, which will be
used as the basis for determining Named Executive Officer cash incentive bonus awards for 2013 and factor into the determination of long-term
incentive awards (STAP) for each Named Executive Officer, other than Dr. Rothblatt. The revised Milestones for 2013 are as follows:

2013 Company-Wide Milestone
Percentage of
target award

Milestone 1�Cash Profits: Growth in Earnings before Non-Cash Charges of 30% or more in 2013 compared to 2012, as reported
in the company's earnings release, together with further adjustments for extraordinary items, including new product licenses,
acquisitions, project cancellations and royalty buy-outs. Up to 25%
Milestone 2�Financial Growth: Superior financial growth as evidenced by achieving 2013 revenue guidance of $1 billion, plus
or minus 5%. Up to 25%
Milestone 3�Manufacturing: Adequate manufacturing capabilities, evidenced by a two-year inventory of Remodulin and
Tyvaso. Up to 15%
Milestone 4�Research & Development: Conduct of insightful research and development programs, taking into account
regulatory approvals, label extensions and the quantity and quality of trials that support our business goals. Up to 25%
Milestone 5�Ethics: Ethical conduct, evidenced by the absence of any material adverse proceedings involving compliance issues
of an ethical nature. Up to 10%
        Under the terms of the Company-Wide Milestone Program, our Compensation Committee has the authority to award partial credit under
any of the Milestones.
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 PROPOSAL NO. 3
RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF

ERNST & YOUNG LLP AS UNITED THERAPEUTICS CORPORATION'S
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM FOR 2013

        The Audit Committee of our Board has appointed Ernst & Young LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the year
2013. Services provided to us and our subsidiaries by Ernst & Young LLP in 2012 are described under the section entitled Principal Accountant
Fees and Services below.

        We ask that our shareholders vote to ratify the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm.
Although ratification is not required by our By-laws or otherwise, our Board has chosen to submit the ratification of Ernst & Young LLP's
appointment to our shareholders as a matter of good corporate practice. In the event our shareholders do not ratify the appointment of Ernst &
Young LLP, such appointment will be reconsidered by our Audit Committee and our Board. Even if the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP is
ratified, our Audit Committee, in its discretion, may select a different independent registered public accounting firm at any time during the year
if it determines that such a change would be in our best interests and those of our shareholders.

        Representatives of Ernst & Young LLP are expected to be present at our Annual Meeting to respond to appropriate shareholder questions
and to make such statements as they may desire.

OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT SHAREHOLDERS VOTE "FOR"
RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP AS OUR
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM FOR 2013.
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 REPORT OF OUR AUDIT COMMITTEE AND INFORMATION ON OUR
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

 Report of our Audit Committee

        Our Audit Committee oversees United Therapeutics' financial reporting process and monitors compliance with our Code of Ethics and
Business Conduct on behalf of our Board of Directors. We are all independent directors under the listing standards of NASDAQ and the
independence standards set forth in Rule 10A-3(b)(1) of the Exchange Act. Our Board has determined that R. Paul Gray, our Audit Committee
Chairman, is an audit committee financial expert as defined under the rules and regulations of the SEC and that each member of our Audit
Committee meets the financial sophistication requirement of the NASDAQ listing standards. Our Audit Committee operates under a written
charter, which we review periodically and which was adopted by our Board. We have amended our charter to be consistent with the provisions
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as well as the corporate governance rules issued by the SEC and NASDAQ, as they relate to audit committee
requirements.

        We have met and held discussions with management and our independent auditors. Management is responsible for the financial reporting
process and preparation of the quarterly and annual consolidated financial statements, including maintaining a system of internal controls and
disclosure controls and procedures. Our Audit Committee is directly responsible for the appointment, compensation, retention, oversight and
termination of our independent auditors. Ernst & Young LLP functioned as our independent auditors for 2012. Ernst & Young LLP is
responsible for expressing an opinion on (1) the conformity of our financial statements with generally accepted accounting principles and (2) our
internal control over financial reporting. Our Audit Committee does not prepare financial statements or conduct audits.

        In conjunction with the December 31, 2012, audited consolidated financial statements, we have:

�
reviewed and discussed our 2012 audited consolidated financial statements with our management and Ernst & Young LLP,
including discussions about critical accounting policies, other financial accounting and reporting principles and practices
appropriate for us, and the reasonableness of significant judgments;

�
reviewed and discussed management's assessments of the effectiveness of internal controls over financial reporting and
Ernst & Young LLP's related assessments and auditing procedures;

�
discussed with Ernst & Young LLP the overall scope of and plans for our audits and reviews. Our Audit Committee has met
with Ernst & Young LLP, with and without management present, to discuss our financial reporting processes and internal
accounting controls. We have reviewed all important audit findings prepared by Ernst & Young LLP;

�
discussed with Ernst & Young LLP matters that are required to be discussed by applicable Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (PCAOB) requirements. Ernst & Young LLP also provided to our Audit Committee the written disclosures
and the letter required by applicable requirements of the PCAOB regarding its communications with our Audit Committee
concerning independence. We also discussed with Ernst & Young LLP their independence, including any relationships that
may have an impact on their objectivity and independence, and satisfied ourselves as to Ernst & Young LLP's independence.
We also reviewed and pre-approved the scope and fees for all audit and other services performed by Ernst & Young LLP for
us; and

�
met and reviewed with members of senior management and Ernst & Young LLP the certifications provided by our Chief
Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer under the
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Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the rules and regulations of the SEC relating to these certifications and the overall
certification process.

        Based on these reviews and discussions, our Audit Committee recommended to our Board of Directors that our audited consolidated
financial statements for 2012 be included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012, as filed with the SEC.

Submitted by the Audit
Committee:
R. Paul Gray (Chair)
Richard Giltner
Christopher Patusky
Tommy Thompson
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 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

        Fees for professional services provided by Ernst & Young LLP in each of the last two years in each of the following categories were:

2012 2011
Audit fees $ 847,500 $ 810,000
Audit-related fees 7,000 220,000
Tax fees:
Fees for tax compliance services 448,000 480,000
Fees for tax consulting services (including tax advice and tax planning) 177,000 65,000

Total tax fees 625,000 545,000
All other fees � 156,000

$ 1,479,500 $ 1,731,000

        Audit fees include the aggregate fees billed for the audit of our consolidated annual financial statements, reviews of our interim
consolidated financial statements included in quarterly reports, accounting and financial reporting consultations and services in connection with
registration statements. Audit-related fees include the aggregate fees billed for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the
performance of the audit or review of our consolidated financial statements and are not reported as audit fees. Tax fees include the aggregate
fees billed for professional services for tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning. All other fees include the aggregate fees billed for permitted
products and services other than those classified as audit, audit-related or tax.

        The Audit Committee of our Board of Directors has considered and determined that the provision of non-audit services by Ernst &
Young LLP is compatible with maintaining Ernst & Young LLP's independence. Since Ernst & Young LLP's appointment as our independent
registered public accounting firm, our Audit Committee has pre-approved all of the services performed by Ernst & Young LLP.

 Policy on Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Audit Services and Permissible Non-Audit Services of our Independent Auditors

        Our Audit Committee's policy is to pre-approve all audit and permissible non-audit services performed by our independent auditors. These
services may include audit services, audit-related services, tax services and other services. For audit services, our independent auditor provides
an engagement letter to our Audit Committee prior to commencing its second-quarter review work, which letter outlines the scope of the
proposed audit and audit-related fees. Our Audit Committee reviews the letter and negotiates with and formally engages the auditor.

        For non-audit services, our senior management may from time to time recommend to our Audit Committee that it engage our independent
auditor to provide non-audit services, and request our Audit Committee to approve such engagement. Our senior management and our
independent auditor will each confirm to our Audit Committee that each non-audit service is permissible under all applicable legal requirements.
A budget estimating non-audit service spending for the fiscal year will be provided to our Audit Committee along with the request. Our Audit
Committee must approve the permissible non-audit services and the budget for such services. Our Audit Committee will be informed
periodically as to the non-audit services actually provided by our independent auditor pursuant to this pre-approval process.
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 OTHER MATTERS

 Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions

Review and Approval of Related Party Transactions

        We have adopted a written policy for approval of transactions, arrangements and relationships between our company and our directors,
director nominees, executive officers, greater-than-five-percent shareholders, and their immediate family members where the amount involved
exceeds $100,000. The policy provides that our Audit Committee reviews certain transactions subject to the policy and determines whether or
not to approve or ratify those transactions. In doing so, our Audit Committee takes into account, among other things, whether the transaction is
on terms that are no less favorable to the company than terms generally available to an unaffiliated third party under similar circumstances and
the extent of the related person's interest in the transaction. The policy also provides the Chairman of our Audit Committee with the authority to
approve or ratify transactions in which the amount involved is expected to be less than $500,000. Information on transactions approved or
ratified by the Chair of our Audit Committee is provided to our Audit Committee at its next regularly scheduled meeting.

        Our Audit Committee has considered and adopted standing pre-approvals under the policy for certain limited transactions with related
persons that meet specific criteria. Information on transactions subject to pre-approval is provided to our Audit Committee at its next regularly
scheduled meeting. Pre-approved transactions are limited to:

�
executive officers' compensation that is subject to required proxy statement disclosure or Compensation Committee
approval;

�
director compensation that is subject to required proxy statement disclosure;

�
certain transactions with other companies and certain charitable contributions that do not exceed the greater of $200,000 or
5% of the other company's or non-profit organization's total annual revenues or receipts; and

�
transactions where all shareholders receive proportional benefits.

Kurzweil Technologies, Inc. Technical Services Agreement

        In 2007, we entered into a technical services agreement with Kurzweil Technologies, Inc. (KTI). Ray Kurzweil, a member of our Board of
Directors, is the Chief Executive Officer and 80% shareholder of KTI. Pursuant to this agreement, we pay KTI consulting fees of up to
$6,000 monthly. We also reimburse KTI on a monthly basis for all necessary, reasonable and direct out of pocket expenses incurred in
connection with its services. Under the agreement, we agreed to pay KTI up to a 5 percent royalty on sales of certain products reasonably
attributed to and dependent upon certain technology developed by KTI. We paid $84,000 to KTI during the year ended December 31, 2012,
under this agreement. This agreement has an indefinite term, and is terminable by United Therapeutics upon 30 days' notice to KTI. Our Audit
Committee approved the technical services agreement.

Other Relationships

        In 2000, we entered into a research agreement with the University of Oxford and an agreement for consulting services with Isis Innovation
Limited (formerly Oxford University Consulting) with respect to the development of our iminosugar antiviral platform. The research agreement
has been amended several times. In August 2010, we amended the research agreement to extend its term through September 30, 2016 and to
decrease the monthly payments by approximately $4,600 to $57,000 per month. The aggregate amount of all monthly payments due under this
agreement on or after January 1, 2012 was $2.6 million. In addition, pursuant to the August 2010 amendment we agreed to fund
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additional work to support our antiviral program for the sum of $176,900 (based on the then-prevailing exchange ratio). In December 2012, we
further amended our research agreement with Oxford to include additional work supporting the development of our virology platform, in
exchange for an additional $871,000 in the aggregate (using the exchange rate as of the amendment date) in thirty-six equal installments
beginning in January 2013. Under exclusive licenses issued in accordance with the research agreement, we are required to pay the University of
Oxford a royalty equal to 1.5% percent of net sales of products arising under these agreements, less certain offsets. We paid approximately
$577,300 to Oxford in 2012 under our research agreement and related amendments with the University of Oxford.

        In connection with our collaboration with University of Oxford, one of our employees works out of one of Oxford's laboratories, and we
reimburse Oxford from time-to-time for consumables (supplies, staff resources and laboratory tests) in connection with our employee's work at
Oxford's lab. Under this arrangement, in 2012 we reimbursed Oxford approximately $111,000 (based on the then-prevailing exchange ratio).

        In March 2006, we entered into an agreement with the University of Oxford to fund an annual lecture in virology at the University of
Oxford through 2022. Under this agreement, we are obligated to make 16 annual payments of $27,600, totaling $442,200 (using the exchange
rate as of the date of the agreement). We paid approximately $51,000 to Oxford during 2012 under this agreement.

        Our director Raymond Dwek is a co-discoverer of our iminosugar platform, a co-principal investigator under our research agreement with
the University of Oxford, Director of the Glycobiology Institute, and Professor of Glycobiology at the University of Oxford. Our Board and
Nominating and Governance Committee each periodically review our agreements with the University of Oxford in light of Professor Dwek's
membership on our Board. As described above under Director Independence, our Board has determined not to designate Professor Dwek as
"independent" under the NASDAQ listing standards. Our Audit Committee approved these transactions and determined that these transactions
do not constitute related party transactions with respect to Professor Dwek.

 Beneficial Ownership of Common Stock

        The following table sets forth certain information as of April 12, 2013 (unless otherwise noted), with respect to the beneficial ownership of
our common stock by: (i) each person who we know beneficially owns more than 5% of the outstanding shares of our common stock; (ii) each
director and director nominee; (iii) each of our Named Executive Officers (which, for 2012, included our Chief Executive Officer, our Chief
Financial Officer, our President and Chief Operating Officer, and our Executive Vice President and General Counsel); and (iv) all of our
directors and executive officers as a group. Unless otherwise noted, the address of each person listed below is our corporate address. In
accordance with SEC rules, the number of shares of common stock beneficially owned and the percentage of outstanding shares shown in this
table exclude any STAP awards held by our directors and executive officers because they are cash-settled awards that do not involve the
issuance of shares of common stock.
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Name

Number of
Shares

of Common
Stock

Beneficially
Owned(1)

Percentage
of

Outstanding
Shares(2)

Vested
STAP

Awards(3)
BlackRock, Inc.(4) 6,604,444 13.3% �
40 East 52nd Street,
New York, New York 10022
Martine Rothblatt(5)

3,291,601 6.2% �
Eli Lilly and Company(6)

3,150,836 6.3% �
Lilly Corporate Center,
Indianapolis, Indiana 46285
FMR, LLC(7)

3,146,675 6.3% �
82 Devonshire Street,
Boston, Massachusetts 02109
LSV Asset Management(8)

2,652,983 5.3% �
155 N. Wacker Drive,
Suite 4600, Chicago, Illinois 60606
The Vanguard Group(9)

2,571,187 5.2% �
100 Vanguard Boulevard,
Malvern, PA 19355
Roger Jeffs(10)

422,209 * 665,250
Paul Mahon(11)

259,240 * 367,500
Raymond Dwek(12)

113,000 * 30,000
Louis Sullivan(13)

102,000 * 60,000
Richard Giltner(14)

92,500 * 15,000
Christopher Patusky(15)

57,300 * 60,000
Christopher Causey(16)

50,683 * 30,000
Tommy Thompson(17)

43,900 * 15,000
John Ferrari

� * 299,250
Ray Kurzweil

� * 30,000
R. Paul Gray

� * 30,000
All directors and executive officers as a group (12 persons)(18)

4,432,433 8.3% 1,602,000

*
Less than one percent.

(1)
Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC and generally includes ownership of those shares over
which the person has sole or shared voting or investment power. Beneficial ownership also includes ownership of shares of our
common stock subject to rights, options and warrants currently exercisable or convertible, or exercisable or convertible within 60 days

Edgar Filing: UNITED THERAPEUTICS Corp - Form DEF 14A

80



after April 12, 2013. Except where indicated otherwise, and subject to community property

63

Edgar Filing: UNITED THERAPEUTICS Corp - Form DEF 14A

81



Table of Contents

laws where applicable, to our knowledge, the persons listed in the table above have sole voting and investment power with respect to
their shares of our common stock.

(2)
Ownership percentage is based on 49,825,792 shares of our common stock outstanding on April 12, 2013, plus, as to the holder thereof
and no other person, the number of shares (if any) that the person has the right to acquire as of April 12, 2013, or within 60 days
thereafter, through the exercise of stock options or other similar rights.

(3)
Represents the number of outstanding, vested STAP awards on April 12, 2013. None of the individuals in the table below have STAP
awards scheduled to vest within 60 days after April 12, 2013. Because STAP awards are cash-settled and do not involve the issuance
of shares of stock, they are excluded from the other columns of this table.

(4)
Beneficial ownership information obtained from a Schedule 13G/A filed by BlackRock, Inc. on April 10, 2013 reporting beneficial
ownership as of March 28, 2013.

(5)
Includes currently exercisable options to purchase 2,581,832 shares. Also includes 709,769 shares held in property management trusts
and grantor retained annuity trusts.

(6)
Beneficial ownership information obtained from a Schedule 13G/A filed by Eli Lilly and Company on February 16, 2012, reporting
beneficial ownership as of February 16, 2012.

(7)
Beneficial ownership information obtained from a Schedule 13G filed by FMR LLC on February 14, 2013, reporting beneficial
ownership as of December 31, 2012. According to the Schedule 13G, FMR LLC has sole voting power over 60 shares, shared voting
power over 0 shares, sole investment power over 3,146,675 shares, and shared investment power over 0 shares.

(8)
Beneficial ownership information obtained from a Schedule 13G filed by LSV Asset Management on February 13, 2013, reporting
beneficial ownership as of December 31, 2012.

(9)
Beneficial ownership information obtained from a Schedule 13G filed by the Vanguard Group on February 12, 2013, reporting
beneficial ownership as of December 31, 2012. According to the Schedule 13G, the Vanguard Group has sole voting power over
35,747 shares, shared voting power over 0 shares, sole investment power over 2,537,940 shares, and shared investment power over
33,247 shares.

(10)
Includes currently exercisable options to purchase 395,676 shares. Also includes 6,773 shares held by a family limited liability
company of which Dr. Jeffs and his spouse are managing members.

(11)
Includes currently exercisable options to purchase 224,750 shares.

(12)
Includes currently exercisable options to purchase 113,000 shares.

(13)
Includes currently exercisable options to purchase 102,000 shares.

(14)
Includes currently exercisable options to purchase 92,500 shares.

(15)
Includes currently exercisable options to purchase 56,000 shares. Also includes 1,300 shares held in a family trust with Prof. Patusky
as trustee.
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Includes currently exercisable options to purchase 49,500 shares. Also includes 450 shares held in a Uniform Gift to Minors Act
account for the benefit of Mr. Causey's children with his spouse as trustee.

(17)
Includes currently exercisable options to purchase 42,500 shares.

(18)
Includes currently exercisable options to purchase 3,657,758 shares.
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 Stock Split

        On September 22, 2009, we completed a stock split in the form of a stock dividend, pursuant to which one share of our common stock was
distributed for each share issued and outstanding (or held in treasury) at the close of business on the record date, September 14, 2009. All
references in this Proxy Statement to the price of our common stock, number of shares of our common stock and per share data, including data
pertaining to share-based awards, have been restated to reflect the effects of the stock split for all periods presented.

 Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

        Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires our directors, executive officers and 10% shareholders to file reports of ownership of our equity
securities with the SEC and to furnish copies of all such reports to us. We routinely assist our officers and directors in preparing and filing these
reports. To our knowledge, based on a review of the copies of such forms in our possession and on written representations from reporting
persons, we believe that for the year ended December 31, 2012, all reporting persons filed the required reports on a timely basis under
Section 16(a), with the exception of the following untimely filings, each of which resulted from administrative error: on March 15 2012, Roger
Jeffs, Paul Mahon and John Ferrari were granted 150,500, 107,500 and 107,500 STAP awards, respectively. These transactions were reported on
three separate Form 4 filings on March 19, 2012.

 Shareholder Proposals and Director Nominations

        Shareholder proposals intended for inclusion in our Proxy Statement and form of proxy for our 2014 annual meeting of shareholders must
be received by us by overnight mail, acceptance signature required, no later than January 8, 2014, and must otherwise comply with the rules of
the SEC for inclusion in our Proxy Statement and form of proxy relating to that meeting.

        In order for a shareholder to bring other business before the 2014 annual meeting of shareholders, including director nominations, our
Amended and Restated By-laws require that the shareholder give timely notice of the proposal or nomination, as applicable, to our Corporate
Secretary in advance of the meeting. Such notice must be given no less than ninety (90) days nor more than one hundred and twenty (120) days
prior to the anniversary of the Annual Meeting unless the date of the 2014 annual meeting is advanced by more than thirty (30) days or delayed
(other than as a result of adjournment) by more than thirty (30) days from the anniversary of the Annual Meeting, in which case notice of a
proposal or nomination, as applicable, must be received by our Corporate Secretary no later than the close of business on the later of the sixtieth
(60th) day prior to the 2014 annual meeting or the tenth (10th) day following the date on which public announcement of the date of the 2014
annual meeting of shareholders is first made. Accordingly, for the 2014 annual meeting, notice of a proposal or nomination, as applicable, must
be received by our Corporate Secretary no later than March 28, 2014 and no earlier than February 26, 2014. In addition, the notice of such
proposal or nomination must meet all other requirements contained in our Amended and Restated By-laws. These requirements are separate
from the requirements a shareholder must meet to have a proposal included in our Proxy Statement. If a shareholder fails to meet these
requirements and fails to satisfy the requirements of Rule 14a-4 under the Exchange Act, we may exercise discretionary voting authority under
proxies that we solicit to vote on any such proposal or nomination in accordance with our best judgment.

        All notices of proposals or nominations, as applicable, must be given in writing to our Corporate Secretary by e-mail at
corporatesecretary@unither.com, by facsimile at (202) 483-4006 or by overnight mail, acceptance signature required, to United Therapeutics
Corporation, Attention: Corporate Secretary, 1040 Spring Street, Silver Spring, Maryland 20910.
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 Other Business

        Management knows of no matters to be presented for action at the Annual Meeting other than as described above. However, if any other
matter properly comes before the meeting, it is intended that the persons named in the accompanying form of proxy will vote on such matters in
accordance with their judgment of the best interests of our company.

 Shareholders Sharing the Same Address

        SEC rules permit the delivery of a single copy of a company's annual report and Proxy Statement to any household at which two or more
shareholders reside if they appear to be members of the same family. Each shareholder will continue to receive a separate proxy card. This
procedure, referred to as householding, reduces the volume of duplicate information shareholders receive and reduces mailing and printing
expenses.

        The bank, broker, trust or other holder of record for any shareholder who is a beneficial owner, but not the record holder, of United
Therapeutics shares may deliver only one copy of our 2012 Annual Report to Shareholders, 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K and this Proxy
Statement to multiple shareholders who share the same address, unless the bank, broker, trust or other holder of record has received contrary
instructions from one or more of the shareholders. Beneficial owners sharing an address who are receiving multiple copies of the 2012 Annual
Report to Shareholders, 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K and this Proxy Statement and who would prefer to receive a single copy in the future
should contact their bank, broker, trust or other holder of record to request delivery of a single copy in the future.

        Our 2012 Annual Report to Shareholders, 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K and this Proxy Statement are available at our web site at
http://ir.unither.com/annualProxy.cfm. We will deliver promptly upon written or oral request a separate copy of the 2012 Annual Report to
Shareholders, 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K and this Proxy Statement to any shareholder at a shared address to which a single copy of any
of those documents was delivered. To receive a separate copy of the proxy materials, now or in the future, write to: Investor Relations, 1040
Spring Street, Silver Spring, Maryland 20910 or call (301) 608-9292 and ask for Investor Relations.

 Annual Report

        A copy of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012, has been mailed concurrently with this Proxy
Statement to all shareholders entitled to notice of and to vote at our Annual Meeting. The Annual Report is not incorporated into this Proxy
Statement and is not considered proxy-soliciting material. Shareholders may obtain additional printed copies of our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012, as filed with the SEC, without charge by mailing a request to United Therapeutics
Corporation, Attention: Investor Relations, 1040 Spring Street, Silver Spring, Maryland 20910. The company's copying costs will be
charged if copies of exhibits to the Annual Report on Form 10-K are requested. An electronic copy is available on our website:
http://ir.unither.com/annualProxy.cfm.

 Transportation Information

        Our 2013 annual meeting of shareholders will be held at 1110 Spring Street, Silver Spring, Maryland 20910. A map and directions are
provided on the inside back cover page of this Proxy Statement. If you need additional information regarding directions or parking, please call
(301) 608-9292 and ask for Investor Relations.
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 ANNEX A
Non-GAAP Financial Information

        This proxy statement contains a financial measure, earnings before non-cash charges, that does not comply with United States generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Earnings before non-cash charges is defined as net income, adjusted for the following non-cash
charges, as applicable: (1) interest; (2) income taxes; (3) license fees; (4) depreciation and amortization; (5) impairment charges; and
(6) share-based compensation (stock option and share tracking award expense). This measure supplements our financial results prepared in
accordance with GAAP. In the past, we have also referred to this figure as "EBITDASO".

        We use earnings before non-cash charges to assist us in: (1) planning, including the preparation of our annual operating budget;
(2) allocating resources to enhance the financial performance of our business; (3) evaluating the effectiveness of our operational strategies; and
(4) evaluating our capacity to fund capital expenditures and expand our business. We believe this non-GAAP financial measure enhances
investors' understanding of our financial results by excluding certain expenses that we do not consider when evaluating and comparing the
performance of our core operations and making operating decisions. In addition, we have historically reported earnings before non-cash charges
to investors, and believe the inclusion of this non-GAAP financial measure provides investors with a consistent method of comparison to
historical periods. However, there are limitations in the use of this non-GAAP financial measure in that it excludes certain operating expenses
that are recurring in nature. In addition, our calculation of this non-GAAP financial measure may differ from the methodology used by other
companies. The presentation of this non-GAAP financial measure should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for our financial results
prepared in accordance with GAAP.

        A reconciliation of net income (loss), the most directly comparable GAAP financial measure, to earnings before non-cash charges, is
presented below (in millions):

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Net income (loss), as reported $ (24) $ (10) $ 15 $ 65 $ 73 $ 12 $ (49) $ 19 $ 106 $ 218 $ 304
Add (subtract) non-cash
charges:
Income tax expense (benefit) � � � (17) (35) (8) (34) (1) 42 82 136
Interest expense � � � � 2 14 11 13 20 21 17
License fees � � � � � 11 150 � � 37 �
Depreciation and
amortization 3 3 3 2 3 4 4 12 18 21 27
Impairment charges 10 � � � 2 4 2 5 7 � 5
Share-based compensation
(benefit) expense � � � 1 24 49 36 101 114 (16) 30

Earnings before non-cash
charges $ (11) $ (7) $ 18 $ 51 $ 69 $ 86 $ 120 $ 149 $ 307 $ 363 $ 519
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Using a black ink pen, mark your votes with an X as
shown in this example. Please do not write outside the
designated areas. X 01MIFC 1 U P X + q PLEASE
FOLD ALONG THE PERFORATION, DETACH AND
RETURN THE BOTTOM PORTION IN THE
ENCLOSED ENVELOPE. q Annual Meeting Proxy
Card . + A Proposals � THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS A VOTE �FOR�
EACH OF THE NOMINEES NAMED BELOW, AND
A VOTE �FOR� THE APPROVAL OF PROPOSALS 2
AND 3. For Against Abstain 2. Advisory resolution to
approve executive compensation. 4. The transaction of
such other business as may properly come before the
meeting and any and all adjournments or postponements
thereof. Should the undersigned be present and elect to
vote at the annual meeting of shareholders or at any
adjournment or postponement thereof and after
notification to United Therapeutics Corporation at the
annual meeting of the shareholder�s decision to terminate
this proxy, then the power of said attorneys and proxies
shall be deemed terminated and of no further force and
effect. 3. Ratification of the Appointment of Ernst &
Young LLP as United Therapeutics Corporation�s
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm for
2013. 1. Election of Directors: Mark here to
WITHHOLD vote from all nominees Mark here to vote
FOR all nominees For All EXCEPT - To withhold
authority to vote for any nominee(s), write the name(s)
of such nominee(s) below.
_____________________________________________
01 - Christopher Causey 02 - Richard Giltner 03 - R.
Paul Gray Change of Address � Please print your new
address below. Comments � Please print your comments
below. B Non-Voting Items Meeting Attendance Mark
the box to the right if you plan to attend the Annual
Meeting. Authorized Signatures � This section must be
completed for your vote to be counted. � Date and Sign
Below C Please sign exactly as the name(s) appears on
this proxy card. When signing as attorney, executor,
administrator, trustee, guardian, or custodian, please
give your full title. If shares are held jointly, each holder
should sign. If shareholder is a corporation, the signature
should be that of an authorized officer, who should
indicate his or her title. Signature 1 � Please keep
signature within the box. Signature 2 � Please keep
signature within the box. Date (mm/dd/yyyy) � Please
print date below. IMPORTANT ANNUAL MEETING
INFORMATION
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q PLEASE FOLD ALONG THE
PERFORATION, DETACH AND
RETURN THE BOTTOM PORTION
IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE. q
. Proxy for the 2013 Annual Meeting
of Shareholders to be Held on June 26,
2013 This proxy is solicited on behalf
of the Board of Directors. The
undersigned hereby appoints Martine
Rothblatt and Paul Mahon, and each
of them, with power to act without the
other and with power of substitution,
as proxies and attorneys-in-fact and
hereby authorizes them to represent
and vote, as provided on the other
side, all the shares of United
Therapeutics Corporation Common
Stock which the undersigned is
entitled to vote, and, in their
discretion, to vote upon such other
business as may properly come before
the annual meeting of shareholders of
our company to be held on June 26,
2013 at 9:00 a.m. local time at 1110
Spring Street, Silver Spring, MD
20910, or at any adjournment or
postponement thereof, with all powers
which the undersigned would possess
if present at the meeting. IF NO
SPECIFIC DIRECTION IS GIVEN
AS TO ANY OF THE ITEMS ON
THE REVERSE SIDE, THIS PROXY
WILL BE VOTED FOR EACH OF
THE NOMINEES NAMED IN
PROPOSAL 1, AND FOR
PROPOSALS 2 AND 3. IF ANY
OTHER BUSINESS IS PRESENTED
AT SUCH MEETING, THIS PROXY
WILL BE VOTED BY THE
PROXIES IN THEIR JUDGMENT.
AT PRESENT TIME, THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS KNOWS OF NO
OTHER BUSINESS TO BE
PRESENTED AT THE ANNUAL
MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS.
The undersigned acknowledges
receipt from United Therapeutics
Corporation prior to the execution of
this proxy of the notice of annual
meeting of shareholders, a Proxy
Statement, a 2012 Annual Report and
a 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K.
PLEASE DATE, SIGN AND MAIL
THIS PROXY PROMPTLY Proxy �
UNITED THERAPEUTICS
CORPORATION Important notice
regarding the Internet availability of
proxy materials for the Annual
Meeting of Shareholders The Proxy
Statement, Form 10-K and the 2012
Annual Report to Shareholders are
available at:
http://ir.unither.com/annualProxy.cfm
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At June 30, 2016
Less than 12
months

Greater than 12
months Total

Fair
value

Gross
unrealized
losses

Fair
value

Gross
unrealized
losses

Fair
value

Gross
unrealized
losses

(In thousands)
U.S. Government and federal agency obligations $4,998 $ 2 $— $ — $4,998 $ 2
Mortgage-backed securities:
FNMA — — 3,267 11 3,267 11

$4,998 $ 2 $3,267 $ 11 $8,265 $ 13

Management evaluated the securities in the above tables and concluded that none of the securities with losses has
impairments that are other-than-temporary.  The unrealized losses on investments in mortgage-backed securities were
caused by interest rate changes and market conditions.  Because the decline in fair value is attributable to changes in
interest rates and market conditions and not credit quality, and because the Company has no intent to sell and believes
it is not more than likely than not that it will be required to sell these investments until a market price recovery or
maturity, these investments are not considered other-than-temporarily impaired.
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Securities Available for Sale

The following is a comparative summary of securities available for sale at September 30, 2016 and June 30, 2016:

At September 30, 2016

Amortized
cost

Gross
unrealized
gains

Gross
unrealized
losses

Fair
value

(In thousands)
Equity securities $601 $ 627 $ — $1,228
Mortgage-backed securities:
FHLMC 715 31 — 746
FNMA 14,049 428 — 14,477
GNMA 45,275 — 164 45,111
CMO 113,700 1,070 71 114,699

$174,340 $ 2,156 $ 235 $176,261

At June 30, 2016

Amortized
cost

Gross
unrealized
gains

Gross
unrealized
losses

Fair
value

(In thousands)
Equity securities $601 $ 524 $ — $1,125
Mortgage-backed securities:
FHLMC 815 34 — 849
FNMA 14,650 535 — 15,185
CMO 123,173 1,548 30 124,691

$139,239 $ 2,641 $ 30 $141,850

The contractual maturities of mortgage-backed securities available for sale generally exceed 20 years; however, the
effective lives are expected to be shorter due to anticipated prepayments and, in the case of CMOs, cash flow
priorities. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or
prepay obligations with or without penalties.

The Company did not sell any securities available for sale during the three months ended September 30, 2016 and
2015.   The Equity securities caption relates to holdings of shares in financial institutions common stock.  Available
for sale securities with fair values of $72.6 million and $78.4 million at September 30, 2016 and June 30, 2016,
respectively, were pledged as collateral for advances.  The fair value of securities available for sale pledged as
collateral for cash flow hedge interest rate swaps totaled $1.0 million and $1.2 million at September 30, 2016 and June
30, 2016, respectively.  There were no other-than-temporary impairment charges on available for sale securities for
the three months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015.  
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Gross unrealized losses on securities available for sale and the fair value of the related securities, aggregated by
security category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position at
September 30, 2016 and June 30, 2016 were as follows:

At September 30, 2016

Less than 12 months
Greater than 12
months Total

Fair
value

Gross
unrealized
losses

Fair
value

Gross
unrealized
losses

Fair
value

Gross
unrealized
losses

(In thousands)
Mortgage-backed securities:
GNMA $45,112 $ 164 $— $ — $45,112 $ 164
CMO 17,334 29 4,768 42 22,102 71

$62,446 $ 193 $4,768 $ 42 $67,214 $ 235

At June 30, 2016
Less than 12
months

Greater than 12
months Total

Fair
value

Gross
unrealized
losses

Fair
value

Gross
unrealized
losses

Fair
value

Gross
unrealized
losses

(In thousands)
Mortgage-backed securities:
CMO $— $ —$5,112 $ 30 $5,112 $ 30

$— $ —$5,112 $ 30 $5,112 $ 30

Management evaluated the securities in the above tables and concluded that none of the securities with losses has
impairments that are other-than-temporary.  The unrealized losses on investments in mortgage-backed securities were
caused by interest rate changes and market conditions.  Because the decline in fair value is attributable to changes in
interest rates and market conditions and not credit quality, and because the Company has no intent to sell and believes
it is not more than likely than not that it will be required to sell these investments until a market price recovery or
maturity, these investments are not considered other-than-temporarily impaired.
22
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8. Deposits

Deposits include checking (non-interest and interest-bearing demand deposits), money market, savings and time
deposits. We had brokered deposits totaling $383.4 million and $253.2 million at September 30, 2016 and June 30,
2016, respectively.

 Deposit balances are summarized as follows:

September
30, 2016

June 30,
2016

Amount Amount
(In thousands)

Checking accounts $622,333 $453,136
Money market deposit accounts 732,418 681,710
Savings accounts 169,152 165,623
Time deposits 972,377 959,534

$2,496,280 $2,260,003

9. Derivatives and Hedging Activities

Oritani is exposed to certain risks regarding its ongoing business operations.  Derivative instruments are used to offset
a portion of the Company's interest rate risk. Specifically, the Company has utilized interest rate swaps to partially
offset the interest rate risk inherent in the Company's balance sheet. Oritani recognizes interest rate swaps as either
assets or liabilities at fair value in the statement of financial condition with an offset recorded in Other Comprehensive
Income and any ineffectiveness is recorded in earnings. The interest rate swaps have been designed as cash flow
hedges.  For all cash flow hedges that are currently effective, the balance sheet item that has been hedged is brokered
deposits.  For all cash flow hedges that are are not yet effective, it is anticipated that the balance sheet item that will be
hedged is brokered deposits.

Oritani is exposed to credit-related losses in the event of nonperformance by the counterparties to the agreements.
Oritani controls the credit risk through monitoring procedures and does not expect the counterparty to fail their
obligations. Oritani only deals with primary dealers and believes that the credit risk inherent in these contracts was not
significant during and at period end. Oritani has the right to demand that the counterparty post collateral to cover any
market value shortfall of the counterparty regarding the transaction.

At September 30, 2016, Oritani had entered into twenty one interest rate swap agreements with a total notional
outstanding of $430.0 million. These agreements all feature exchanges of fixed for variable payments covering
various hedging periods maturing between January 2017 and July 2024.  The Company is paying fixed rates on these
swaps ranging from 0.44% to 3.67%, in exchange for receiving variable payments linked to one month LIBOR.

The following table presents amounts included in the consolidated balance sheets related to the fair value of derivative
financial instruments at September 30, 2016 and June 30, 2016.

At September 30,
2016 At June 30, 2016

text Balance Sheet Line Item
Notional
Amount

Fair
Value

Notional
Amount

Fair
Value
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Cash flow hedge interest rate swaps
Gross unrealized gain Other Assets $150,000 $353 $25,000 $3
Gross unrealized loss Other Liabilities 280,000 (15,574) 405,000 (17,495)
Gross notional / net fair value $430,000 $(15,221) $430,000 $(17,492)

Gains (losses) included in the consolidated statements of income and in comprehensive income, on a pre-tax basis,
related to cash flow hedge interest rate swaps are as follows:

Three Months
Ended September
30,
2016 2015
(in thousands)

Amount of loss reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss to interest expense $(627 ) $—
Amount of gain (loss) recognized in other comprehensive income 1,647 (4,157)

There was no ineffectiveness recognized during the three months ended September 30, 2015.   The accumulated net
after-tax losses related to effective cash flow hedges included in accumulated other comprehensive loss were $8.6
million and $9.9 million at September 30, 2016 and June 30, 2016, respectively.   Amounts reported in accumulated
other comprehensive loss related to cash flow interest rate swaps are reclassified to interest expense as interest
payments are made.  The fair value of securities pledged as collateral for the swaps at September 30, 2016 and June
30, 2016 was $26.2 million and $21.5 million, respectively.
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10. Income Taxes

The Company files income tax returns in the United States federal jurisdiction and in New Jersey, Pennsylvania and
New York state and local  jurisdictions.

The Company is no longer subject to federal and state income tax examinations by tax authorities for years prior to
2012. The Company's federal return for the tax year ended December 31, 2012 was audited during fiscal 2016.   Our
state and city tax returns are not currently under audit and have not been subject to an audit during the past five years. 
The Company did not have any uncertain tax positions at September 30, 2016 and June 30, 2016.  The Company
recognizes accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits, where applicable, in income tax
expense.

11. Real Estate Joint Ventures, net and Real Estate Held for Investment

The Company accounts for investments in joint ventures under the equity method. The balance reflects the cost basis
of investments, plus the Company's share of income earned on the joint venture operations, less cash distributions,
including excess cash distributions, and the Company's share of losses on joint venture operations. Cash received in
excess of the Company's recorded investment in a joint venture is recorded as unearned revenue in other liabilities. 
As of September 30, 2016 and June 30, 2016, the Company has ownership interest in one joint venture entity that
owns an income-producing commercial rental property.  This entity is being marketed for sale.  The book value of this
joint venture is $4.2 million and $4.3 million at September 30, 2016 and June 30, 2016, respectively.   All other joint
ventures investments were sold during fiscal 2016 and 2015.  There were no sales for the three months ended
September 30, 2016.  Proceeds from the sale of joint investments for the three months ended September 30, 2015 were
$4.6 million resulting in gains of $4.2 million. 

Real estate held for investment included the Company's undivided interest in real estate properties accounted for under
the equity method and properties held for investment purposes. Cash received in excess of the Company's recorded
investment for an undivided interest in real estate property was recorded as unearned revenue in other liabilities. The
operations of the properties held for investment purposes were reflected in the financial results of the Company and
included in the Other Income caption in the Income Statement. Properties held for investment purposes were carried at
cost less accumulated depreciation.  As of June 30, 2016, all real estate investments were sold during fiscal 2016 and
2015.  There were no sales for the three months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015.
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12. Fair Value Measurements

The Company adopted FASB ASC 820, "Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures," on July 1, 2008. Under ASC
820, fair value measurements are not adjusted for transaction costs. ASC 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurements) and the lowest
priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under FASB ASC
820 are described below:

Basis of Fair Value Measurement:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical
unrestricted assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Quoted prices in markets that are not active, or inputs that are observable either directly or indirectly,
for substantially the full term of the asset or liability;

Level 3: Price or valuation techniques that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement
and unobservable (i.e. supported with little or no market activity).

A financial instrument's level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to
the fair value measurement.

Following are descriptions of the valuation methodologies and key inputs used to measure assets recorded at fair
value, as well as a description of the methods and significant assumptions used to estimate fair value disclosures for
financial instruments not recorded at fair value in their entirety on a recurring basis. The descriptions include an
indication of the level of the fair value hierarchy in which the assets or liabilities are classified.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Due to their short-term nature, the carrying amount of these instruments approximates fair value.

Securities

The Company records securities held to maturity at amortized cost and securities available for sale at fair value on a
recurring basis. The majority of the Company's securities are fixed income instruments that are not quoted on an
exchange, but are traded in active markets. The estimated fair values for securities are obtained from an independent
nationally recognized third-party pricing service. Our independent pricing service provides us with prices which are
primarily categorized as Level 2, as quoted prices in active markets for identical assets are generally not available for
the majority of securities in our portfolio. Pricing services may employ modeling techniques in determining pricing.
Inputs to these models include market spreads, dealer quotes, prepayment speeds, credit information and the
instrument's terms and conditions, among other things. Management compares the pricing to a second independent
pricing source for reasonableness. Equity securities are reported at Level 1 based on quoted market prices for identical
securities in active markets.

FHLB of New York Stock
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FHLB of New York Stock is recorded at cost (par value) and evaluated for impairment based on the ultimate
recoverability of the par value. There is no active market for this stock and no significant observable market data is
available for this instrument. The Company considers the profitability and asset quality of FHLB, dividend payment
history and recent redemption experience, when determining the ultimate recoverability of the par value. The
Company believes its investment in FHLB stock is ultimately recoverable at par. The carrying amount of FHLB stock
approximates fair value, since this is the amount for which it could be redeemed.
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Loans

The Company does not record loans at fair value on a recurring basis. However, periodically, the Company records
nonrecurring adjustments to the carrying value of loans based on fair value measurements. The estimated fair value for
significant nonperforming loans and impaired loans are valued utilizing independent appraisals of the collateral
securing such loans that rely upon quoted market prices for similar assets in active markets. These appraisals include
adjustments to comparable assets based on the appraisers' market knowledge and experience. The appraisals may be 
adjusted downward by management (0-20% adjustment rate and 0-10%  risk premium rate), as necessary, for changes
in relevant valuation factors subsequent to the appraisal date and the timing of anticipated cash flows (0-8% discount
rate).  The Company classifies impaired loans as Level 3.

Fair value for loans held for investment is estimated using portfolios of loans with similar financial characteristics.
Loans are segregated by type such as residential, multifamily, commercial real estate, construction, land and
consumer. Each loan category is further segmented into fixed and adjustable rate interest terms and by performing and
nonperforming/impaired categories. Fair value of performing loans is estimated using a discounted cash flow model
that employs a discount rate that reflects the current market pricing for loans with similar characteristics and
remaining maturity, adjusted by an amount for estimated credit losses inherent in the portfolio at the balance sheet
date. The rates take into account the expected yield curve. Fair values estimated in this manner do not fully
incorporate an exit-price approach to fair value. The Company classifies the estimated fair value of loans held for
investment as Level 3.

Real Estate Owned

Assets acquired through foreclosure or deed in lieu of foreclosure are recorded at fair value less estimated selling costs
when acquired, thus establishing a new cost basis. Subsequently, real estate owned is carried at the lower of cost or
fair value, less estimated selling costs. Fair value is generally based on independent appraisals. These appraisals
include adjustments to comparable assets based on the appraisers' market knowledge and experience, and are
considered Level 3. When an asset is acquired, the excess of the loan balance over fair value, less estimated
liquidation costs (5%-20% discount rate), is charged to the allowance for loan losses.  If the estimated fair value of the
asset declines, a write-down is recorded through expense. The valuation of foreclosed assets is subjective in nature
and may be adjusted in the future because of changes in the economic conditions.

Deposit Liabilities

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, such as checking, savings, and money market accounts, is
equal to the amount payable on demand at the balance sheet date. The estimated fair value of term deposits is based on
the discounted value of contractual cash flows. The discount rate is estimated using the rates currently offered for
deposits of similar remaining maturities. The Company classifies the estimated fair value of term deposits as Level 2.

Borrowings

The book value of overnight borrowings approximates the estimated fair value. The estimated fair value of term
borrowings is calculated based on the discounted cash flow of contractual amounts due, using market rates currently
available for borrowings of similar amount and remaining maturity. The Company classifies the estimated fair value
of term borrowings as Level 2.

Derivatives

Edgar Filing: UNITED THERAPEUTICS Corp - Form DEF 14A

103



The fair value of our interest rate swaps was estimated using Level 2 inputs.  The fair value was determined using
third party prices that are based on discounted cash flow analyses using observed market interest rate curves and
volatilities.

Commitments to Extend Credit and to Purchase or Sell Securities

The fair value of commitments to extend credit is estimated using the fees currently charged to enter into similar
agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and the present creditworthiness of the
counterparties. For fixed rate loan commitments, fair value also considers the difference between current levels of
interest rates and the committed rates. The fair value of commitments to purchase or sell securities is estimated based
on bid quotations received from securities dealers. The fair value of off-balance-sheet commitments approximates
book value.
26
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Assets and Liabilities Recorded at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

The following tables present the recorded amount of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as
of September 30, 2016 and June 30, 2016 by level within the fair value hierarchy. There were no transfers between
levels within the fair value hierarchy during the three months ended September 30, 2016.

Fair
Value as
of
September
30, 2016

Quoted
Prices
in
Active
Markets
for
Identical
Assets
(Level
1)

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

(In thousands)
Assets:
Equity Securities $1,228 $ 1,228 $— $ —
Mortgage-backed securities available for sale
FHLMC 746 — 746 —
FNMA 14,477 — 14,477 —
GNMA 45,111 — 45,111 —
CMO 114,699 — 114,699 —
Total securities available for sale 176,261 1,228 175,033 —

Interest rate swaps 353 — 353 —
Total assets $176,614 $ 1,228 $ 175,386 $ —

Liabilities:
Interest rate swaps $(15,574 ) $ — $ (15,574 ) $ —

Fair
Value as
of June
30, 2016

Quoted
Prices
in
Active
Markets
for
Identical
Assets
(Level
1)

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

(In thousands)
Assets:
Equity Securities $1,125 $ 1,125 $— $ —
Mortgage-backed securities available for sale
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FHLMC 849 — 849 —
FNMA 15,185 — 15,185 —
CMO 124,691 — 124,691 —
Total securities available for sale $141,850 $ 1,125 $ 140,725 $ —

Interest rate swap 3 — 3 —
Total assets measured on a recurring basis 141,853 1,125 140,728 —

Liabilities:
Interest rate swaps $(17,495 ) $ — $ (17,495 ) $ —
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Assets Recorded at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis

The Company may be required, from time to time, to measure the fair value of certain other financial assets on a
nonrecurring basis in accordance with U.S. GAAP. The adjustments to fair value usually result from the application of
lower-of-cost-or-fair value accounting or write downs of individual assets.

The following tables present the recorded amount of assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis as of
September 30, 2016 and June 30, 2016 by level within the fair value hierarchy.

Fair
Value
as of
September
30,
2016

Quoted
Prices
in
Active
Markets
for
Identical
Assets
(Level
1)

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

(In thousands)
Assets:
Impaired loans:
Residential $222 $ — $ — $ 222
Other commercial real estate 3,225 — — 3,225
Construction and land loans 9 — — 9
Total impaired loans 3,456 — — 3,456
Real estate owned
Other commercial real estate 449 — — 449
Total real estate owned 449 — — 449
Total assets measured on a non-recurring basis $3,905 $ — $ — $ 3,905

Fair
Value
as of
June
30,
2016

Quoted
Prices
in
Active
Markets
for
Identical
Assets
(Level
1)

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

(In thousands)
Assets:
Impaired loans:
Residential $164 $ — $ — $ 164
Other commercial real estate 3,269 — — 3,269
Construction and land loans 9 — — 9
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Total impaired loans 3,442 — — 3,442
Real estate owned
Other commercial real estate 487 — — 487
Total real estate owned 487 — — 487
Total assets measured on a non-recurring basis $3,929 $ — $ — $ 3,929
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Estimated Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following tables present the carrying amount, estimated fair value, and placement in the fair value hierarchy of
financial instruments not recorded at fair values in their entirety on a recurring basis on the Company's balance sheet
at September 30, 2016 and June 30, 2016. These tables exclude financial instruments for which the carrying amount
approximates fair value. Financial instruments for which the carrying amount approximates fair value include cash
and cash equivalents, FHLB stock, non-maturity deposits, and overnight borrowings.

September 30, 2016

Carrying
Amount Fair Value

Quoted
Prices
in
Active
Markets
for
Identical
Assets
(Level
1)

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

(In thousands)
Financial assets:
Securities held to maturity $177,849 $179,774 $ — $179,774 $—
Loans, net (1) 3,209,103 3,230,234 — — 3,230,234
Financial liabilities:
Time deposits 972,377 982,799 — 982,799 —
Term borrowings 476,392 486,215 — 486,215 —
 _____________
(1)Comprised of loans (including impaired loans), net of deferred loan fees and the allowance for loan losses.

June 30, 2016

Carrying
Amount Fair Value

Quoted
Prices
in
Active
Markets
for
Identical
Assets
(Level
1)

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

(In thousands)
Financial assets:
Securities held to maturity $168,107 $170,706 $ — $170,706 $—
Loans, net (1) 3,131,957 3,169,724 — — 3,169,724
Financial liabilities:
Time deposits 959,534 969,320 — 969,320 —
Term borrowings 464,623 474,843 — 474,843 —
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 ______________
(1)Comprised of loans (including impaired loans), net of deferred loan fees and the allowance for loan losses.

Limitations

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on relevant market information and information about
the financial instrument. These estimates do not reflect any premium or discount that could result from offering for
sale at one time the Company's entire holdings of a particular financial instrument. Because no market exists for a
significant portion of the Company's financial instruments, fair value estimates are based on judgments regarding
future expected loss experience, current economic conditions, risk characteristics of various financial instruments, and
other factors. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment
and, therefore, cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

Fair value estimates are based on existing on- and off-balance-sheet financial instruments without attempting to
estimate the value of anticipated future business and the value of assets and liabilities that are not considered financial
instruments. Significant assets and liabilities that are not considered financial assets or liabilities include the mortgage
banking operation, deferred tax assets, and premises and equipment. In addition, the tax ramifications related to the
realization of the unrealized gains and losses can have a significant effect on fair value estimates and have not been
considered in the estimates.
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13. Other Comprehensive Income

The components of comprehensive income, both gross and net of tax, are presented for the periods below (in
thousands):

Three months
ended September
30,
2016 2015

Gross:
Net income $16,290 $19,397
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Change in unrealized holding (loss) gain on securities available for sale (689 ) 718
Amortization related to post-retirement obligations 100 56
Net change in unrealized gain (loss) on interest rate swaps 2,274 (4,157 )
Total other comprehensive income (loss) 1,685 (3,383 )
Total comprehensive income 17,975 16,014
Tax applicable to:
Net income 5,679 6,782
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Change in unrealized holding (loss) gain on securities available for sale (297 ) 272
Amortization related to post-retirement obligations 28 23
Net change in unrealized gain (loss) on interest rate swaps 974 (1,793 )
Total other comprehensive income (loss) 705 (1,498 )
Total comprehensive income 6,384 5,284
Net of tax:
Net income 10,611 12,615
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Change in unrealized holding (loss) gain on securities available for sale (392 ) 446
Amortization related to post-retirement obligations 72 33
Net change in unrealized gain (loss) on interest rate swaps 1,300 (2,364 )
Total other comprehensive income (loss) 980 (1,885 )
Total comprehensive income $11,591 $10,730
30
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The following table presents the changes in the components of accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income, net of
tax, for the three months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015 (in thousands):

Unrealized
Holding
Loss on
Securities
Available
for Sale

Post
Retirement
Obligations

Unrealized
Holding
Loss on
Interest
Rate
Swaps

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
(Loss), Net of
Tax

Balance at June 30, 2016 $ 1,529 $ (1,657 ) $ (9,944 ) $ (10,072 )
Net change (392 ) 72 1,300 980
Balance at September 30, 2016 $ 1,137 $ (1,585 ) $ (8,644 ) $ (9,092 )

Balance at June 30, 2015 $ 1,496 $ (1,316 ) $ (2,028 ) $ (1,848 )
Net change 446 33 (2,364 ) (1,885 )
Balance at September 30, 2015 $ 1,942 $ (1,283 ) $ (4,392 ) $ (3,733 )

The following table sets forth information about the amount reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) to the consolidated statement of income and the affected line item in the statement where net income is
presented (in thousands).

Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Income (Loss) Component

Affected line item in the Consolidated
Statement of Income

Three
months
ended
September
30, 2016

Three
months
ended
September
30, 2015

Amortization related to post-retirement
obligations (1)
Prior service cost — —
Net loss 100 56

Compensation, payroll taxes and fringe
benefits 100 56

Total before tax 100 56
Income tax benefit 28 23
Net of tax 72 33

(1) These accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) components are included in the computations of net
periodic benefit cost. See Note 5. Post-retirement Benefits.
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Oritani Financial Corp. and subsidiaries
Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements

14. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In October 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued ASU 2016-16, "Income Taxes (Topic
740): Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets Other Than Inventory".  This update requires that an entity recognize the
income tax consequences of an intra-entity transfer of an asset other than inventory when the transfer occurs.  This
update is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 31, 2017, including interim periods within that year.  The
Company does not expect that the adoption of this guidance will have a significant impact on the Company's
consolidated financial statements.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-15, "Statement of Cashflows (Topic 230): Classification of Certain Cash
Receipts and Cash Payments".  This update addresses eight specific cash flow issue with the objective of reducing
existing diversity in practice.  This update is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 31, 2017, including
interim periods within that year.  The Company does not expect that the adoption of this guidance will have a
significant impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, "Financial Instruments-Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of
Credit Losses on Financial Instruments".  This update revises the methodology for estimating credit losses on loans
receivable, held-to-maturity debt securities, unfunded loan commitments, and certain other financial assets measured
at amortized cost.  Under ASU 2016-13, the current expected credit losses ("CECL") model is based on lifetime
expected losses, rather than incurred losses, and requires the recognition of credit loss expense in the statement of
income and a related allowance for credit losses on the balance sheet at the time of origination or purchase of a loan
receivable or held-to-maturity debt security.  Subsequent changes in this estimate are recorded through credit loss
expense and related allowance.  The CECL model requires the use of not only relevant historical experience and
current conditions, but also reasonable and supportable forecasts of future events and circumstances, thus
incorporating a broad range of information in developing credit loss estimates, which could result in significant
changes to both the timing and amount of credit loss expense and allowance.  Under ASU 2016-13, available-for-sale
debt securities are evaluated for impairment if fair value is less than amortized cost.  Estimated credit losses are
recorded through a credit loss expense and an allowance, rather than a write-down of the investment.  Changes in fair
value that are not credit-related will continue to be recorded in other comprehensive income.  Certain additional
disclosures are required, including further disaggregation of credit quality indicators for loans receivable by year of
origination.  This update is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019;
early adoption is permitted for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018.  Entities will
apply the standard's provisions as a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings as of the beginning of the first
reporting period in which the guidance is effective (i.e., modified retrospective approach).   The Company is
evaluating the impact of this update on its consolidated financial statements.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-07, "Investments—Equity Method and Joint Ventures (Topic 323):
Simplifying the Transition to the Equity Method of Accounting".  This ASU requires that the equity method investor
add the cost of acquiring the additional interest in the investee to the current basis of the investor's previously held
interest and adopt the equity method of accounting as of the date the investment becomes qualified for equity method
accounting.  Therefore, upon qualifying for the equity method of accounting, no retroactive adjustment of the
investment is required.  The amendments in this Update require that an entity that has an available for sale equity
security that becomes qualified for the equity method of accounting recognize through earnings the unrealized holding
gain or loss in accumulated other comprehensive income at the date the investment becomes qualified for use of the
equity method.  The ASU is effective for all entities in fiscal years, and interim periods in those fiscal years, beginning
after December 15, 2016.  Early adoption is permitted.  The new guidance will be applied prospectively to changes in
ownership (or influence) after the adoption date.   The Company does not expect that the adoption of this guidance
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Oritani Financial Corp. and subsidiaries
Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-05, "Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815): Effect of Derivative Contract
Novations on Existing Hedge Accounting Relationships (a consensus of the Emerging Issues Task Force))".  This
ASU clarifies that a change in the counterparty to a derivative instrument (novation), that has been designated as a
hedging instrument does not, on its own, require dedesignation of that hedge accounting relationship provided that all
other hedge accounting criteria continue to be met.  This ASU is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2016, and interim periods therein.  Early adoption is permitted, including
adoption in an interim period.  The Company does not expect that the adoption of this guidance will have a significant
impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, "Leases (Topic 842)".  This ASU requires lessees to put most
leases on their balance sheets but recognize expenses in the income statement in a manner similar to current
accounting treatment.  This ASU changes the guidance on sale-leaseback transactions, initial direct costs and lease
execution costs, and, for lessors, modifies the classification criteria and the accounting for sales-type and direct
financing leases.  For public business entities, this ASU is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15,
2018, and interim periods therein.  Entities are required to use a modified retrospective approach for leases that exist
or are entered into after the beginning of the earliest comparative period in the financial statements.  The Company is
currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this guidance on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01, "Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities", which is intended to improve the recognition and measurement of financial instruments.  The ASU revises
an entity's accounting related to (1) the classification and measurement of investments in equity securities and (2) the
presentation of certain fair value changes for financial liabilities measured at fair value.  It also amends certain
disclosure requirements associated with the fair value of financial instruments.  The ASU is effective for annual
periods, and interim periods within those annual periods, beginning after December 15, 2017.  The Company does not
expect that the adoption of this guidance will have a significant impact on the Company's consolidated financial
statements.

In January 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-01, "Simplifying Income Statement Presentation by Eliminating the
Concept of Extraordinary Items", which eliminates from U.S. GAAP the concept of an extraordinary item.  The Board
released the new guidance as part of its simplification initiative, which, as explained in the ASU, is intended to
"identify, evaluate and improve areas of U.S. GAAP for which cost and complexity can be reduced while maintaining
or improving the usefulness of the information provided to the users of financial statements". To be considered an
extraordinary item under existing U.S. GAAP, an event or transaction must be unusual in nature and must occur
infrequently. As a result, an entity will no longer (1) segregate an extraordinary item from the results of ordinary
operations; (2) separately present an extraordinary item on its income statement, net of tax, after income from
continuing operations; and (3) disclose income taxes and earnings-per-share data applicable to an extraordinary item.
However, the ASU does not affect the reporting and disclosure requirements for an event that is unusual in nature or
that occurs infrequently. For all entities, the ASU is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2015,
and interim periods within those annual periods.  Entities may apply the guidance prospectively or retrospectively to
all prior periods presented in the financial statements.  If an entity chooses to apply the guidance prospectively, it must
disclose whether amounts included in income from continuing operations after adoption of the ASU are related to
events and transactions previously recognized and classified as extraordinary items before the date of adoption.  Early
adoption is permitted if the guidance is applied as of the beginning of the annual period of adoption.  We adopted this
guidance on July 1, 2015 with no significant impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.
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Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Forward Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report contains certain "forward looking statements" within the meaning of Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Such forward looking statements may
be identified by reference to a future period or periods, or by use of forward looking terminology, such as "may,"
"will," "believe," 'expect," "estimate," 'anticipate," "continue," or similar terms or variations on those terms, or the
negative of those terms.  Forward looking statements are subject to numerous risks and uncertainties.  Factors that
may cause actual results to differ materially from those contemplated by such forward-looking statements in addition
to those risk factors disclosed in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2016,
include, but are not limited to, those related to the economic environment, particularly in the market areas in which
Oritani Financial Corp. (the "Company") operates, competitive products and pricing, fiscal and monetary policies of
the U.S. Government, changes in government regulations affecting financial institutions, including regulatory fees and
capital requirements, changes in prevailing interest rates, acquisitions and the integration of acquired businesses,
credit risk management, asset-liability management, the financial and securities markets and the availability of and
costs associated with sources of liquidity.

The Company wishes to caution readers not to place undue reliance on any such forward looking statements, which
speak only as of the date made.  The Company wishes to advise readers that the factors listed above could affect the
Company's financial performance and could cause the Company's actual results for future periods to differ materially
from any opinions or statements expressed with respect to future periods in any current statements.  The Company
does not undertake and specifically declines any obligation to publicly release the results of any revisions, which may
be made to any forward looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of such statements or to
reflect the occurrence of anticipated or unanticipated events.

Overview

Oritani Financial Corp. (the "Company") is a Delaware corporation that was incorporated in March 2010.  The
Company is the stock holding company of Oritani Bank.  The Company owns 100% of the outstanding shares of
common stock of the Bank.  The Company has engaged primarily in the business of holding the common stock of the
Bank and two limited liability companies.  The two limited liability companies previously owned a variety of real
estate investments but the majority of such investments have now been sold.  The Bank's principal business consists of
attracting retail, commercial and municipal bank deposits from the general public and investing those deposits,
together with funds generated from operations and borrowed funds, in multifamily and commercial real estate loans,
one- to four-family residential mortgage loans as well as in second mortgage and equity loans, construction loans,
business loans, other consumer loans, and investment securities.  The Bank originates loans primarily for investment
and holds such loans in its portfolio.  Occasionally, the Bank will also enter into loan participations.  The Bank's
primary sources of funds are deposits, borrowings, investment maturities and principal and interest payments on loans
and securities.  The Bank's revenues are derived principally from interest on loans and securities.  The Bank also
generates revenue from fees and service charges and other income.  The Bank's results of operations depend
significantly on its net interest income; which is the difference between the interest earned on interest-earning assets
and the interest paid on interest-bearing liabilities.  The Bank's net interest income is primarily affected by the market
interest rate environment, the shape of the U.S. Treasury yield curve, the timing of the re-pricing of interest-earning
assets and interest-bearing liabilities, and the prepayment rate on its mortgage-related assets.  Provisions for loan
losses and asset impairment charges can also have a significant impact on results of operations.  Other factors that
may affect the Bank's results of operations are general and local economic and competitive conditions, government
policies and actions of regulatory authorities.
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The Bank's business strategy is to operate as a well-capitalized and profitable financial institution dedicated to
providing exceptional personal service to its individual, business, and municipal customers. The Bank's primary focus
has been, and will continue to be, organic growth in multifamily and commercial real estate lending.
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Comparison of Financial Condition at September 30, 2016 and June 30, 2016

Total Assets.  Total assets increased $125.3 million to $3.79 billion at September 30, 2016, from $3.67 billion at June
30, 2016. 
Cash and Cash Equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents (which include fed funds and short term investments)
increased $8.7 million to $25.3 million  at September 30, 2016, from $16.6 million at June 30, 2016.
Net Loans. Loans, net increased $77.1 million, or 2.5%, to $3.21 billion at September 30, 2016, from $3.13 billion at
June 30, 2016.  The annualized growth rate was 9.9%.   The increase in loans was primarily in residential commercial
real estate (multifamily) which increased $93.7 million over the period.  The Company's primary strategic business
objective is the organic growth of multifamily and commercial real estate loans.  For the three months ended
September 30, 2016, loan originations and purchases totaled $152.6 million and $26.7 million, respectively.  Loan
principal payments totaled $102.6 million over that same period.  For the comparable 2015 period, loan originations
and loan principal payments totaled $114.6 million and $106.9 million, respectively.  There were no loan purchases in
the 2015 period.  The Company continues to limit the origination of loans with fixed rate periods greater than 5 years
and also continues to utilize the elevated underwriting standards regarding certain aspects of commercial real estate
lending implemented in the first calendar quarter of 2016.  These decisions had a negative impact on loan growth;
however, management believes these restraints are in the best long term interests of the Company.
Delinquency and non performing asset information is provided below:

9/30/2016 6/30/2016 3/31/2016 12/31/2015 9/30/2015
(Dollars in thousands)

Delinquency Totals
30—59 days past due $1,686 $ 8,912 $ 2,930 $ 6,320 $ 8,188
60—89 days past due 1,060 1,698 1,184 404 190
Nonaccrual 10,537 9,968 9,989 10,880 10,879
Total $13,283 $ 20,578 $ 14,103 $ 17,604 $ 19,257
Non Performing Asset Totals
Nonaccrual loans, per above $10,537 $ 9,968 $ 9,989 $ 10,880 $ 10,879
Real Estate Owned 449 487 487 487 2,926
Total $10,986 $ 10,455 $ 10,476 $ 11,367 $ 13,805
Nonaccrual loans to total loans 0.32 % 0.31 % 0.33 % 0.37 % 0.39 %
Delinquent loans to total loans 0.41 % 0.65 % 0.46 % 0.60 % 0.69 %
Non performing assets to total assets 0.29 % 0.28 % 0.29 % 0.32 % 0.41 %

Delinquent loan and non performing asset totals continue to illustrate minimal credit issues at the Company.  Further,
of the $10.5 million in loans classified as nonaccrual at September 30, 2016, $6.7 million were current.
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Securities available for sale. Securities AFS increased $34.4 million to $176.3 million at September 30, 2016, from
$141.9 million at June 30, 2016.  Although the Company had been classifying the majority of new purchases as held
to maturity, $46.0 million of adjustable rate mortgage backed securities were purchased that were classified as AFS.
Securities held to maturity. Securities HTM increased $9.7 million to $177.8 million at September 30, 2016, from
$168.1 million at June 30, 2016.  Purchases of $17.6 million were partially offset by sales, payments, calls and
maturities of $7.7 million.
Investments in real estate joint ventures, net and real estate held for investment. The Company previously announced
its intention to investigate the sale of the properties and interests in these portfolios.  As of September 30, 2016, all but
one such property had been sold and closed.  This remaining property is being marketed, and significant progress
regarding disposition of the property has been attained.  Management will provide additional updates as greater
certainty regarding the results of the marketing efforts are realized.

Federal Home Loan Bank of New York ("FHLB") stock.  FHLB stock decreased $5.1 million to $32.9 million at
September 30, 2016, from $38.0 million at June 30, 2016.  FHLB stock holdings are required depending on several
factors, including the level of borrowings with the FHLB.  As FHLB borrowings decreased over the quarter, excess
FHLB stock was redeemed.

Deposits.  Deposits increased $236.3 million to $2.50 billion at September 30, 2016, from $2.26 billion at June 30,
2016.  A portion of the growth achieved in the September 2016 quarter is attributable to increases in brokered
deposits.  The period end balance of brokered deposits at September 30, 2016 and June 30, 2016 was $383.4 million
and $253.2 million, respectively.  The average balance of deposits increased $175.9 million to $2.40 billion at
September 30, 2016 from $2.23 billion at June 30, 2016, which represents an annualized growth rate of 31.6%.
Borrowings. Borrowings decreased $114.0 million to $667.6 million at September 30, 2016, from $781.6 million at
June 30, 2016.  The decrease in borrowings is primarily in overnight and short-term borrowings.  Deposit growth has
enabled the Company to reduce borrowings.
Stockholders' Equity.  Stockholders' equity increased $4.5 million to $539.7 million at September 30, 2016, from
$535.2 million at June 30, 2016.  The increase was primarily due to net income and the net impact of the amortization
of stock based compensation plans, partially offset by dividends and repurchases.  During the September 30, 2016
quarter, 94,953 shares of stock were repurchased at a total cost of $1.5 million and an average cost of $15.88 per
share.  The shares repurchased were shares redeemed by employees, in lieu of payroll taxes due, in conjunction with
the vesting of stock awards from the 2011 Equity Plan.  Based on our September 30, 2016 closing price of $15.72 per
share, the Company stock was trading at 131.6% of book value. 
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Average Balance Sheet for the Three Months Ended September 30, 2016 and 2015

The following table presents certain information regarding Oritani Financial Corp.'s financial condition and net
interest income for the three months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015.  The table presents the annualized average
yield on interest-earning assets and the annualized average cost of interest-bearing liabilities.  We derived the yields
and costs by dividing annualized income or expense by the average balance of interest-earning assets and
interest-bearing liabilities, respectively, for the periods shown.  We derived average balances from daily balances over
the periods indicated.  Interest income includes fees that we consider adjustments to yields, including prepayment
penalties.

Average Balance Sheet and Yield/Rate Information
For the Three Months Ended (unaudited)
September 30, 2016 September 30, 2015
Average
Outstanding
Balance

Interest
Earned/Paid

Average
Yield/Rate

Average
Outstanding
Balance

Interest
Earned/
Paid

Average
Yield/Rate

(Dollars in thousands)
Interest-earning assets:
Loans (1) $3,151,514 $ 31,973 4.06 % $2,759,345 $30,789 4.46 %
Federal Home Loan Bank Stock 33,167 457 5.51 % 37,870 401 4.24 %
Securities available for sale 166,857 826 1.98 % 251,443 1,203 1.91 %
Securities held to maturity 171,904 803 1.87 % 111,679 571 2.05 %
Federal funds sold and short term
investments 808 1 0.50 % 1,624 1 0.25 %
Total interest-earning assets 3,524,250 34,060 3.87 % 3,161,961 32,965 4.17 %
Non-interest-earning assets 187,055 185,142
Total assets $3,711,305 $3,347,103
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Savings deposits 166,963 96 0.23 % 158,887 95 0.24 %
Money market 714,355 1,885 1.06 % 619,617 839 0.54 %
Checking accounts 550,886 548 0.40 % 436,462 396 0.36 %
Time deposits 972,335 3,210 1.32 % 781,646 2,332 1.19 %
Total deposits 2,404,539 5,739 0.95 % 1,996,612 3,662 0.73 %
Borrowings 674,088 3,021 1.79 % 751,255 5,154 2.74 %
Total interest-bearing liabilities 3,078,627 8,760 1.14 % 2,747,867 8,816 1.28 %
Non-interest-bearing liabilities 94,250 77,929
Total liabilities 3,172,877 2,825,796
Stockholders' equity 538,428 521,307
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $3,711,305 $3,347,103
Net interest income $ 25,300 $24,149
Net interest rate spread (2) 2.73 % 2.89 %
Net interest-earning assets (3) $445,623 $414,094
Net interest margin (4) 2.87 % 3.05 %
Average of interest-earning assets to
interest-bearing liabilities 114.47 % 115.07 %

(1)Average outstanding balance includes nonaccrual loans and interest earned includes prepayment income.

(2)Net interest rate spread represents the difference between the yield on average interest-earning assets and the costof average interest-bearing liabilities.
(3)Net interest-earning assets represents total interest-earning assets less total interest-bearing liabilities.
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(4)Net interest margin represents net interest income divided by average total interest-earning assets.
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Comparison of Operating Results for the Three Months Ended September 30, 2016 and 2015

Net Income. Net income decreased $2.0 million to $10.6 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2016, from
$12.6 million for the corresponding 2015 quarter.  The primary cause of the decreased net income in 2016 was due to
profits on the sale of real estate joint ventures in 2015.  The Company realized pretax gains of $4.2 million on the
sales of real estate joint ventures in the 2015 period that were not replicated in the 2016 period.  The impact was
partially offset by increased net interest income in the 2016 period.  Our annualized return on average assets was
1.14% for the quarter ended September 30, 2016, and 1.51% for the quarter ended September 30, 2015.

Interest Income. Total interest income increased $1.1 million to $34.1 million for the three months ended September
30, 2016, from $33.0 million for the three months ended September 30, 2015.  The components of interest income for
the three months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015, changed as follows:

Three months ended September
30, Increase / (decrease)
2016 2015
Interest
Income Yield

Interest
Income Yield

Interest
Income

Average
Balance Yield

(Dollars in thousands)
Interest on mortgage loans $31,973 4.06 % $30,789 4.46 % $1,184 $392,169 (0.40)%
Dividends on FHLB stock 457 5.51 % 401 4.24 % 56 (4,703 ) 1.27 %
Interest on securities AFS 826 1.98 % 1,203 1.91 % (377 ) (84,586 ) 0.07 %
Interest on securities HTM 803 1.87 % 571 2.05 % 232 60,225 (0.18)%
Interest on federal funds sold and short term
investments 1 0.50 % 1 0.25 % — (816 ) 0.25 %
Total interest income $34,060 3.87 % $32,965 4.17 % $1,095 $362,289 (0.30)%

The Company's primary strategic business objective remains the organic growth of multifamily and commercial real
estate loans.  The average balance of the loan portfolio increased $392.2 million, or 14.2%, for the three months ended
September 30, 2016 versus the comparable 2015 period.  On a linked quarter basis (September 30, 2016 versus June
30, 2016), the annualized growth rates of the portfolio were 12.0%  and 9.9%, when measured based on average and
period end balances, respectively.

The yield on the loan portfolio decreased 40 basis points for the quarter ended September 30, 2016 versus the
comparable 2015 period.  On a linked quarter basis (September 30, 2016 versus June 30, 2016), the yield on the loan
portfolio decreased 18 basis points.  Decreases in the level of prepayment income impacted these results.  Exclusive of
prepayment penalties, the yield on the loan portfolio decreased 26 basis points versus the quarter ended September 30,
2015 and decreased 6 basis points on a linked quarter basis.  The decrease continues a trend of decreased yield on
loans and was primarily attributable to the impact of current market rates on new originations as well as refinancings,
prepayments and repricings.  Competition for multifamily and commercial real estate loan originations remains
elevated and the spread to alternative costs of funds remains lower than historical levels.  The market rates on new
originations are below the average yield of the loan portfolio.  Prepayment penalties totaled $631,000, $1.5 million
and $1.6 million for the quarters ended September 30, 2016, June 30, 2016 and September 30, 2015, respectively. 
Prepayment penalty income boosted annualized loan yield by 8, 20 and 23 basis points for the quarters ended
September 30, 2016, June 30, 2016 and September 30, 2015, respectively.  See additional information regarding loans
in "Comparison of Financial Condition at September 30, 2016 and June 30, 2016-Net Loans."  

The average balance of securities available for sale decreased $84.6 million for the three months ended September 30,
2016 versus the comparable 2015 period, while the average balance of securities held to maturity increased $60.2
million over the same period.  The Company has been classifying the majority of new purchases as held to maturity.
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Interest Expense.  Total interest expense decreased $56,000 to $8.8 million for the three months ended September 30,
2016, from $8.8 million for the three months ended September 30, 2015.  The components of interest expense for the
three months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015, changed as follows:

Three months ended September
30, Increase / (decrease)
2016 2015
Interest
Expense Cost

Interest
Expense Cost

Interest
Expense

Average
Balance Cost

(Dollars in thousands)
Savings deposits $96 0.23% $95 0.24% $1 $8,076 (0.01)%
Money market 1,885 1.06% 839 0.54% 1,046 94,738 0.52 %
Checking accounts 548 0.40% 396 0.36% 152 114,424 0.04 %
Time deposits 3,210 1.32% 2,332 1.19% 878 190,689 0.13 %
Total deposits 5,739 0.95% 3,662 0.73% 2,077 407,927 0.22 %
Borrowings 3,021 1.79% 5,154 2.74% (2,133) (77,167 ) (0.95)%

$8,760 1.14% $8,816 1.28% $(56 ) $330,760 (0.14)%

Strong deposit growth remains a strategic objective of the Company.  As detailed above, the average balance of
deposits increased $407.9 million, or 20.4%, for the quarter ended September 30, 2016 versus the comparable 2015
period.  Growth was particularly strong when measured on a linked quarter comparison basis.  The average balance of
deposits increased $175.9 million, representing quarterly growth of 7.9% and annualized growth of 31.6%, for the
quarter ended September 30, 2016 versus the quarter ended June 30, 2016.  The average balance of brokered deposits
increased $71.0 million and $87.6 million versus the quarters ended June 30, 2016 and September 30, 2015,
respectively.  The overall cost of deposits increased 22 basis points for the quarter ended September 30, 2016 versus
the comparable 2015 period, and 3 basis points on a linked quarter comparison basis.  The increased cost is primarily
attributable to the costs of interest rate swaps that are being reflected as interest expense on money market accounts. 
The situation occurred as a result of two balance sheet restructures that are discussed in detail in the Company's Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended December 31, 2015, and the Company's Form 10-K for the annual period ended
June 30, 2016.  The increased cost of the money market accounts is partially offset by the decrease in cost of
borrowings.

As detailed in the table above, the average balance of borrowings decreased $77.2 million for the three months ended
September 30, 2016 versus the comparable 2015 period, while the cost decreased 95 basis points.  The increase in the
average balance of deposits allowed the Company to reduce borrowings while still funding growth.  The cost of
borrowings was also affected by the balance sheet restructures referenced above.  On a linked quarter basis, the
average balance of borrowings decreased $123.0 million and the cost of borrowings decreased 12 basis points.
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Net Interest Income Before Provision for Loan Losses.  Net interest income increased by $1.2 million to $25.3 million
for the three months ended September 30, 2016, from $24.1 million for the three months ended September 30, 2015.  
The Company's net interest income, spread and margin over the period are detailed in the chart below.

Including Prepayment
Penalties

Excluding Prepayment
Penalties*

For the Three Months Ended

Net
Interest
Income
Before
Provision Spread Margin

Net
Interest
Income
Before
Provision Spread Margin

(Dollars in thousands)
September 30, 2016 $$25,300 2.73 % 2.87 % $$24,669 2.65 % 2.80 %
June 30, 2016 25,707 2.82 % 2.97 % 24,169 2.64 % 2.79 %
March 31, 2016 25,151 2.86 % 3.01 % 24,154 2.74 % 2.89 %
December 31, 2015 25,294 2.99 % 3.14 % 23,744 2.79 % 2.95 %
September 30, 2015 24,149 2.89 % 3.05 % 22,567 2.69 % 2.85 %
* - Prepayment penalties on loans are excluded.

The Company's spread and margin have been significantly impacted by prepayment penalties.  The chart above details
results with and without the impact of prepayment penalties.  While prepayment penalty income is expected to
continue, significant fluctuations in the level of prepayment income are also expected.

The Company's spread and margin remain under pressure due to several factors.  These factors were discussed in the
Company's Form 10-K for the annual period ended June 30, 2016, and in other prior filings.   Despite the spread and
margin compression, the Company's net interest income excluding prepayment penalties has been expanding.  The
Company undertook the balance sheet restructures referenced above, in part, to counter some of the spread and margin
compression that is occurring.  The benefits of the balance sheet restructures can be seen most prominently in the
results (excluding prepayment penalties) for the quarters December 31, 2015 and September 30, 2016.  The results for
the quarter ended September 30, 2016 show expansion of the spread and margin by one basis point versus the quarter
ended June 30, 2016.  The positive impact of the balance sheet restructure that was discussed in the Company's Form
10-K for the annual period ended June 30, 2016, was almost fully offset by the compression that occurred over the
September 30, 2016 quarter.

The Company's net interest income and net interest rate spread were both negatively impacted in all periods due to the
reversal of accrued interest income on loans delinquent more than 90 days.  The total of such income reversed was
$119,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2016 and $177,000 for the three months ended September 30,
2015.

40

Edgar Filing: UNITED THERAPEUTICS Corp - Form DEF 14A

125



Index
Provision for Loan Losses. The Company recorded no provision for loan losses for both the three months ended
September 30, 2016 and the three months ended September 30, 2015.  A rollforward of the allowance for loan losses
for the three months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015 is presented below:

Three months
ended September
30,
2016 2015
(Dollars in
thousands)

Balance at beginning of period $29,951 $30,889
Provisions charged to operations — —
Recoveries of loans previously charged off 2 —
Loans charged off (75 ) (255 )
Balance at end of period $29,878 $30,634
Allowance for loan losses to total loans 0.92 % 1.09 %
Net charge-offs (annualized) to average loans outstanding 0.01 % 0.04 %

The improving delinquency and nonaccrual trends, changes in loan risk ratings, loan growth, charge-offs and
economic and business conditions continue to have a meaningful impact on the current level of provision for loan
losses.   In addition, improvements in general economic and business conditions have also impacted the level of
provisioning by decreasing the necessary level of general allowances.  See additional information regarding the
allowance for loan losses in Note 6 of the financial statements and "Comparison of Financial Condition at September
30, 2016 and June 30, 2016-Net Loans."

Other Income. Other income decreased $4.7 million to $1.3 million for the three months ended September 30, 2016,
from $6.0 million for the three months ended September 30, 2015.   In the 2015 period, the Company sold three of its
investments in real estate joint ventures and the total pretax gain was $4.2 million.  There were no comparable sales in
the 2016 period.  See additional information under "Comparison of Financial Condition at September 30, 2016 and
June 30, 2016," regarding the sales of investments in real estate joint ventures and real estate held for investment.  Net
income from investments in real estate joint ventures and income from real estate operations, net, decreased by a
combined $326,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2016 as compared to the three months ended
September 30, 2015.  Earnings from these two categories have decreased as the Company has disposed of the majority
of such properties.

Other Expenses. Other expenses decreased $469,000 to $10.3 million for the three months ended September 30, 2016,
from $10.7 million for the three months ended September 30, 2015.  Compensation, payroll taxes and fringe benefits
decreased $345,000 to $7.4 million for the three months ended September 30, 2016, from $7.7 million for the three
months ended September 30, 2015.  The cost for the majority of the stock awards and stock options granted in
conjunction with the Company's 2011 Equity Plan fully amortized in August 2016.  The 2015 period included the
amortization expense related to these plans for a full quarter while the 2016 period only had half of such expenses,
thereby reducing such expenses in the 2016 period by $735,000.  After adjusting for this situation, expenses increased
$390,000.  The increase was primarily due to increases in direct compensation, due to additional staffing and salary
adjustments and increases in the cost of a nonqualified benefit plan.  Real estate owned operations decreased $275,000
to $55,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2016, from $330,000 for the three months ended September 30,
2015. The majority of the decrease was due to a valuation adjustment made on a property in the 2015 period.  In
addition, the lower level of REO assets has also decreased the cost of REO operations in the 2016 period.

Income Tax Expense. Income tax expense for the three months ended September 30, 2016 was $5.7 million on pre-tax
income of $16.3 million, resulting in an effective tax rate of 34.9%.   Income tax expense for the three months ended
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September 30, 2015 was $6.8 million on pre-tax income of $19.4 million, resulting in an effective tax rate of 35.0%. 
The Company's effective rate in both periods was positively affected by the adoption of Accounting Standards
Codification ("ASC") 718, "Compensation—Stock Compensation," as well as Accounting Standards Update ("ASU")
2016-09, "Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting," which simplified certain aspects of
accounting for share-based compensation.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company's primary sources of funds are deposits, principal and interest payments on loans and mortgage-backed
securities, Federal Home Loan Bank ("FHLB") borrowings and investment maturities.  While scheduled amortization
of loans is a predictable source of funds, deposit flows and mortgage prepayments are greatly influenced by general
interest rates, economic conditions and competition.  The Company has other sources of liquidity if a need for
additional funds arises, including advances from the FHLB and Federal Reserve Bank of New York.

At September 30, 2016 and June 30, 2016, the Company had $191.2 million and $317.0 million in overnight
borrowings from the FHLB, respectively.  The Company had total borrowings of $667.6 million at September 30,
2016 and $781.6 million at June 30, 2016.  The Company's total borrowings at September 30, 2016 include $427.9
million in longer term borrowings with the FHLB.  In the normal course of business, the Company routinely enters
into various commitments, primarily relating to the origination of loans.  At September 30, 2016, outstanding
commitments to originate loans totaled $78.6 million and outstanding commitments to extend credit totaled $15.6
million.  The Company expects to have sufficient funds available to meet current commitments in the normal course
of business.

Time deposits scheduled to mature in one year or less totaled $618.1 million at September 30, 2016.  Based upon
historical experience, management estimates that a large portion of such deposits will remain with the Company.  The
portion that remains will be significantly impacted by the renewal rates offered by the Company.

The management of liquidity described in the above paragraphs primarily pertains to Oritani Bank. The Company, on
an unconsolidated basis, also has liquidity sources and uses. The Company's primary, recurring source of funds has
been dividends from Oritani Bank. As a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, the Bank will typically distribute
its net income to the Company as a dividend. Under the New Jersey Banking Act, a stock savings bank may declare
and pay a dividend on its capital stock only to the extent that the payment of the dividend would not impair the capital
stock of the savings bank. In addition, a stock savings bank may not pay a dividend unless the savings bank would,
after the payment of the dividend, have a surplus of not less than 50% of its capital stock, or alternatively, the payment
of the dividend would not reduce the surplus. Additionally, Oritani Bank must notify the Federal Reserve Board thirty
days before declaring any dividend to the Company. The Federal Reserve Board may object to the payment of the
dividend if it deems it to be unsafe or unsound or a violation of a law, regulation or order or if the institution will be
undercapitalized after the dividend. An inability of Oritani Bank to pay dividends may restrict the Company's ability
to pay dividends.

The Company's primary use of funds has been dividends to shareholders and repurchases of common stock. The
declarations of such dividends are at the discretion of the Company and the dividend amount could be reduced or
eliminated if the payment of a dividend to shareholders would result in a liquidity concern. The Company's loan
portfolio was an additional source and use of funds. The Company periodically originated loans which were a
significant use of funds. The principal and interest payments from these loans provided a recurring source of funds.
The majority of the Company's loans were directly or indirectly related to entities in the Company's investment in real
estate joint ventures and real estate held for investment portfolios. The Company announced its intention to explore
the strategic disposition of the properties and interests in these portfolios.  As of June 30, 2016, the properties and
interests in these portfolios were disposed, the related loans were repaid and the sales activity and loan repayments
were a significant, but transitory, source of funds. In addition, the Company secured external financing, a source of
funds independent of the Bank.  At September 30, 2016 and June 30, 2016, the Company had $12.5 million in
borrowings outstanding from another financial institution.  In addition, at September 30, 2016 and June 30, 2016 , the
Company, on an unconsolidated basis, had cash and cash equivalents of $57.4 million and $66.2 million, respectively.

In July 2013, the Federal Reserve Board and the FDIC issued final rules implementing the Basel III regulatory capital
framework and related Dodd-Frank Act changes.  The rules revise minimum capital requirements and adjust prompt
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corrective action thresholds.  Under the final rules, minimum requirements will increase for both the quantity and
quality of capital held by the Company and the Bank. The rules include a new common equity Tier 1 capital to
risk-weighted assets ratio of 4.5 percent and a common equity Tier 1 capital conservation buffer of 2.5 percent of
risk-weighted assets. The final rules also raise the minimum ratio of Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets from 4.0
percent to 6.0 percent and require a minimum leverage ratio of 4.0 percent. The final rule became effective January 1,
2015, subject to a transition period for various components of the rule that require full compliance for the Company
by January 1, 2019, including a capital conservation buffer of 2.5 percent of risk-weighted assets for which the
transitional period began on January 1, 2016.

As of September 30, 2016 and June 30, 2016, the Company and Bank exceeded all regulatory capital requirements as
follows:

September 30, 2016
Actual Required
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
(Dollars in thousands)

Company:
Common Equity Tier 1 ("CET1") (to risk-weighted assets) $548,750 16.45% $150,123 4.50 %
Tier 1capital (to risk-weighted assets) 548,750 16.45% 200,164 6.00 %
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets) 578,628 17.34% 266,885 8.00 %
Tier 1 leverage capital (to average assets) 548,750 14.82% 148,082 4.00 %
Capital Conservation Buffer 311,742 9.34 % 20,850 0.625%
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September 30, 2016
Actual Required Well-Capitalized
Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
(Dollars in thousands)

Bank:
Common Equity Tier 1 ("CET1") (to risk weighted
assets) $479,009 14.36% $150,103 4.50 % $216,815 6.50 %
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets) 479,009 14.36% 200,137 6.00 % 266,850 8.00 %
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets) 508,887 15.26% 266,850 8.00 % 333,562 10.00%
Tier 1 Leverage capital (to average assets) 479,009 12.94% 148,053 4.00 % 185,067 5.00 %
Capital conservation buffer 242,037 7.26 % 20,848 0.625%

June 30, 2016
Actual Required
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
(Dollars in thousands)

Company:
Common Equity Tier 1 ("CET1") (to risk-weighted assets) $545,272 16.77% $146,311 4.50 %
Tier 1capital (to risk-weighted assets) 545,272 16.77% 195,081 6.00 %
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets) 575,223 17.69% 260,108 8.00 %
Tier 1 leverage capital (to average assets) 545,272 14.94% 145,676 4.00 %
Capital Conservation Buffer 315,034 9.69 % 20,321 0.625%

June 30, 2016
Actual Required Well-Capitalized
Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
(Dollars in thousands)

Bank:
Common Equity Tier 1 ("CET1") (to risk weighted
assets) $466,987 14.36% $146,288 4.50 % $211,305 6.50 %
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets) 466,987 14.36% 195,050 6.00 % 260,067 8.00 %
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets) 496,938 15.28% 260,067 8.00 % 325,084 10.00%
Tier 1 Leverage capital (to average assets) 466,987 12.86% 145,255 4.00 % 181,569 5.00 %
Capital conservation buffer 236,871 7.29 % 20,318 0.625%

Critical Accounting Policies

Note 1 to the Company's Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2016, included in the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K, as supplemented by this report, contains a summary of significant
accounting policies. Various elements of these accounting policies, by their nature, are inherently subject to estimation
techniques, valuation assumptions and other subjective assessments. Certain assets and liabilities are carried in the
consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value or the lower of cost or fair value. Policies with respect to the methodologies
used to determine the allowance for loan losses and judgments regarding the valuation of securities and derivatives as
well as the valuation allowance against deferred tax assets are the most critical accounting policies because they are
important to the presentation of the Company's financial condition and results of operations, involve a higher degree
of complexity, and require management to make difficult and subjective judgments which often require assumptions
or estimates about highly uncertain matters. The use of different judgments, assumptions, and estimates could result in
material differences in the results of operations or financial condition. These critical accounting policies and their
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application are reviewed periodically and, at least annually, with the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors. For a
further discussion of the critical accounting policies of the Company, see "Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations" in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K, for the year ended
June 30, 2016.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The majority of our assets and liabilities are monetary in nature. Consequently, our most significant form of market
risk is interest rate risk. Our assets, consisting primarily of mortgage loans, have longer maturities than our liabilities,
consisting primarily of deposits. As a result, a principal part of our business strategy is to manage interest rate risk and
reduce the exposure of our net interest income to changes in market interest rates. Accordingly, our Board of Directors
has the authority and responsibility for managing interest rate risk. Oritani Bank has established an Asset/Liability
Management Committee, comprised of various members of its senior management, which is responsible for
evaluating the interest rate risk inherent in our assets and liabilities, for recommending to the Board the level of risk
that is appropriate, given our business strategy, operating environment, capital, liquidity and performance objectives,
and for managing this risk consistent with the guidelines approved by the Board of Directors. The Asset/Liability
Management Committee reports its activities to the Board on a monthly basis. An interest rate risk analysis is
presented to the Board on a quarterly basis.

We have sought to manage our interest rate risk in order to minimize the exposure of our earnings and capital to
changes in interest rates.  As part of our ongoing asset-liability management, we currently use the following strategies
to manage our interest rate risk:

(i)

originating multifamily and commercial real estate loans that generally tend to have shorter interest duration and
generally have interest rates that reset in five years or less. The chart below provides maturity/repricing
information for the entire loan portfolio, the majority of which is comprised of multifamily and commercial real
estate loans;

(ii) investing in shorter duration securities and mortgage-backed securities;
(iii)obtaining general financing through FHLB advances with a fixed long term; and
(iv) utilizing interest rate swaps or other derivative instruments

Loan Portfolio by Reprice/Maturity Date
At September 30, 2016
(Dollars in thousands)

Repricing or Maturing Within: Amount

Weighted
Average
Rate

% of
Total
Loans

Cumulative
% of Total
Loans

1 Year or less $468,041 3.97 % 14.41 % 14.41 %
1 - 3 years 1,202,605 3.54 % 37.04 % 51.45 %
3 - 5 years 835,344 3.71 % 25.72 % 77.17 %
5 - 7 years 323,971 3.98 % 9.98 % 87.15 %
7 to 10 years 116,274 4.69 % 3.58 % 90.73 %
Greater than 10 years 300,922 4.76 % 9.27 % 100.00 %
Total $3,247,157 3.84 % 100.00%

 At September 30, 2016, 51.45 % of the loan portfolio matured or repriced in 3 years or less, and 77.17% matured or
repriced in 5 years or less.

Shortening the average maturity of our interest-earning assets by increasing our investments in shorter-term loans and
securities, as well as loans and securities with variable rates of interest, helps to better match the maturities and
interest rates of our assets and liabilities, thereby reducing the exposure of our net interest income to changes in
market interest rates.  In addition, if changes occur that cause the estimated duration of a security to lengthen
significantly, management will consider the sale of such security.  By following these strategies, we believe that we
are well-positioned to react to changes in market interest rates.
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Net Portfolio Value. We compute the amounts by which the net present value of cash flow from assets, liabilities and
off balance sheet items (the institution's net portfolio value or "NPV") would change in the event of a range of
assumed changes in market interest rates. A basis point equals one-hundredth of one percent, and 100 basis points
equals one percent. An increase in interest rates from 3% to 4% would mean, for example, a 100 basis point increase
in the "Change in Interest Rates" column below.

The table below sets forth, as of September 30, 2016, the estimated changes in our net portfolio value that would
result from the designated instantaneous changes in the United States Treasury yield curve. Computations of
prospective effects of hypothetical interest rate changes are based on numerous assumptions, including relative levels
of market interest rates and loan prepayment and deposit decay rates, and should not be relied upon as indicative of
actual results.

Estimated Increase
(Decrease) in NPV

NPV as a
Percentage of
Present Value of
Assets (3)

Change
in
Interest
Rates
(basis
points)
(1)

Estimated
NPV (2) Amount Percent

NPV
Ratio
(4)

Increase
(Decrease)
basis
points

(Dollars in thousands)
+200 $542,671 $(58,142) (9.7 )% 14.7% (91 )
+100 574,553 (26,260) (4.4 )% 15.3% (34 )
— 600,813 — — % 15.6% —
(100 ) 675,275 74,462 12.4 % 17.0% 137

(1)Assumes an instantaneous uniform change in interest rates at all maturities.
(2)NPV is the discounted present value of expected cash flows from assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet contracts.
(3)Present value of assets represents the discounted present value of incoming cash flows on interest-earning assets.
(4)NPV Ratio represents NPV divided by the present value of assets.

The table above indicates that at September 30, 2016, in the event of a 100 basis point decrease in interest rates, we
would experience a 12.4% increase in net portfolio value. In the event of a 200 basis point increase in interest rates,
we would experience a 9.7% decrease in net portfolio value. These changes in net portfolio value are within the
limitations established in our asset and liability management policies.

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the methodology used in the above interest rate risk measurement. Modeling
changes in net portfolio value require making certain assumptions that may or may not reflect the manner in which
actual yields and costs respond to changes in market interest rates. In this regard, the net portfolio value table
presented assumes that the composition of our interest-sensitive assets and liabilities existing at the beginning of a
period remains constant over the period being measured and assumes that a particular change in interest rates is
reflected uniformly across the yield curve regardless of the duration or repricing of specific assets and liabilities.
Accordingly, although the net portfolio value table provides an indication of our interest rate risk exposure at a
particular point in time, such measurements are not intended to and do not provide a precise forecast of the effect of
changes in market interest rates on our net interest income and will differ from actual results.
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Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Principal Executive Officer and
Principal Financial Officer, we evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) as of the end of
the period covered by this report. Based upon that evaluation, the Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial
Officer concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this report, our disclosure controls and procedures were
effective.

There were no changes made in the Company's internal controls over financial reporting that have materially affected,
or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's internal controls over financial reporting during the period
covered by this report.

Part II – Other Information

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to various legal actions arising in the normal course of business. In the
opinion of management, the resolution of these legal actions is not expected to have a material adverse effect on the
Company's financial condition or results of operations.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

There have been no material changes from those risk factors previously disclosed in the Company's Annual Report on
Form 10-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 13, 2016.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

(a)Unregistered Sale of Equity Securities. There were no sales of unregistered securities during the period covered bythis report.
(b)Use of Proceeds. Not applicable.

(c)
Repurchase of Our Equity Securities.  The following table shows the Company's repurchases of its common stock
for each calendar month in the three months ended September 30, 2016 and the stock repurchase plan approved by
our Board of Directors.

Period

Total
Number of
Shares
Repurchased

Average
Price
Paid Per
Share

Total
Number of
Shares
Purchased
as Part of
Publicly
Announced
Plan

Maximum
Number of
Shares
That May
Yet Be
Purchased
Under the
Plan

July 31, 2016 763 $ 16.44 763 1,986,743
August 31, 2016 94,190 15.88 94,190 1,892,553
September 30, 2016 — — — 1,892,553

94,953 $ 15.88 94,953
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On March 4, 2015, the Board of Directors of the Company authorized a fourth stock repurchase plan pursuant to
which the Company is authorized to repurchase up to 5 % of the outstanding shares, or 2,205,451 shares.  As
of  November 9, 2016, the Company has repurchased, under the repurchase plans approved since the second step
transaction, 13,273,979 shares of its stock at an average price of $13.30 per share.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

Not applicable.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.

Item 5. Other Information

   Not applicable.
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Item 6. Exhibits

The following exhibits are either filed as part of this report or are incorporated herein by reference:

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Oritani Financial Corp. *
3.2 Bylaws of Oritani Financial Corp. *
4 Form of Common Stock Certificate of Oritani Financial Corp. *
10.1 Employment Agreement between Oritani Financial Corp. and Kevin J. Lynch**, ****
10.2 Form of Employment Agreement between Oritani Financial Corp. and executive officers**,****
10.3 Oritani Bank Director Retirement Plan**, ****
10.4 Oritani Bank Benefit Equalization Plan**, ****
10.5 Oritani Bank Executive Supplemental Retirement Income Agreement**, ****
10.6 Form of Employee Stock Ownership Plan**, ****
10.7 Director Deferred Fee Plan**, ****
10.8 Oritani Financial Corp. 2007 Equity Incentive Plan*, ****
10.9 Oritani Financial Corp. 2011 Equity Incentive Plan***, ****
21 Subsidiaries of Registrant**
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

101

Interactive data files pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T: (i) the Consolidated Statements of Financial
Condition, (ii) the Consolidated Statements of Income, (iii) the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive
Income, (iv) the Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity, (v) the Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows, and (vi) the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

101.INS XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase Document
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

* Incorporated by reference to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 of Oritani Financial Corp. (file no.
333-165226), originally filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 5, 2010.

** Incorporated by reference to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 of Oritani Financial Corp. (file no.
333-137309), originally filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 14, 2006.

*** Incorporated by reference to the Company's Proxy Statement for the 2011 Special Meeting of Stockholders
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 27, 2011 (file No. 001-34786).

**** Available on our website www.oritani.com.
*****Management contract, compensatory plan or arrangement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

ORITANI FINANCIAL CORP.

Date:November 9, 2016 /s/ Kevin J. Lynch
Kevin J. Lynch
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date:November 9, 2016 /s/ John M. Fields, Jr.
John M. Fields, Jr.
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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